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1. GENERAL

Cementarnica USJE AD Skopje (the “Company” or “USJE”) is incorporated in the Republic of North
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje.

The Company’s main activity is production and trade of cement, masonry cement, ready mix concrete,
clinker and other related products.

2. SALES PERFORMANCE

Cement

Following EU’s decision to delay the opening of the accession talks with N. Macedonia, at the end of 2019
the construction market gradually began to slow down. The main driver for the cement demand is attributed
to the residential and commercial real estate, while the realization of the major infrastructure projects
underperformed and many of them were postponed for 2020. Despite this and the ongoing blockage on

issuance of new construction permits in the two most attractive municipalities in Skopje, the domestic
cement market remained on par with last year.

The slight increase of cement import in the country resulted in USJE closing the year with a moderate
decrease of 1.9% on the sold quantities on the domestic market compared to last year.

The decrease of the domestic cement sales was compensated with the significantly increased exported

quantities of 7.4% in the Kosovo market compared to last year. Additionally, USIE’s revenues were further
facilitated by the sales of solid fuels mainly on the domestic market.

Nevertheless, the overall strong sales together with the lower variable production costs, resulted in
significant increase in USJE’s EBITDA at €25.4 mil, recording a 20.4% increase compared to 2018.

Vertical Integration

The sales of RMC significantly increased compared to 2018. The increased sales are attributed to USJE’s
participation in the biggest construction project in Skopje and that is the East Gate project, as well as the
Urban Garden project. In addition, the newly RMC plant commissioned at the end of 2018, considerably

improved the Company’s positioning on the RMC market and the ability to meet the demands of high value
and complex construction projects.

Total sold quantities of aggregates remained strong and achieved an increase of about 3.0 % compared to
2018.

Both Aggregates and RMC this year achieved solid EBITDA, which is noteworthy for such a competitive
business environment.

3. OPERATIONS

During 2019 the kilns’ operation followed sales domestic and export demand patterns, while at the same
time focusing on stocks, assets and working capital optimization. In 2019, USJE managed to substitute
about 5% of the conventional solid fuel with alternative fuel (RDF and rice husk) which contributed to the
improving of the fuel-mix cost. The electricity costs were decreased by 15% per ton of cement compared
to budgeted ones, which was a result from the continuous optimization of the process parameters. All this
contributed in decreasing CO2 emissions/ton cement. The clinker to cement ratio remained on a stable
level with a downward trend.
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4. HEALTH & SAFETY

USJE manages the occupational health and safety (OH&S) as a top business priority. The management is
committed to continuous development of the Company’s OH&S and strives for better OH&S performance
results. For this purpose, in 2019, the management engagement was confirmed through the increased
number of safety walks, field verifications and safe work plans. This year our employees received 14.4

hrs/employee of training, while contractors received 5.85 hrs/employee of training which is increased by
47%.

The external audits and state inspectorate confirmed the Company’s compliance with OH&S regulation and
standards. :

This year we ended up with 3 insignificant LTls, two of contractors, and one of our employees.

At the end 2019, we started the process of transition from OHSAS 18001 into the relevant ISO 45001
Occupational Health and Safety standard. It is expected for the transition to be finalized in 2020.

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employee engagement

Employee Survey 2019

In cooperation with the consultant firm Korn Ferry, during 2019 an employee Survey was implemented in
USIE. This survey was initiated by TITAN Group and implemented across all of its business units. The survey
in USJE was very successful with final response rate of 93% (220 out of 237 employees participated). The
completion of the survey went smoothly, and the employees were willing to share their opinion and views.

Following the analysis and presentation of the survey results to USJE’s employees, the Company will prepare
an Action Plan in 2020.

People Development

Following its commitment to continue investing in lifelong training and development of its employees, the
Company provided targeted training and development programs. Special focus was given on occupational
health and safety, digital, managerial, know-how and core competence skills, as well as other soft skills
aiming to better organizational development and growth.

In 2019, the Company organized a total of 9,976 training hours to all employees, including the health and
safety training hours and 1544 training hours to contractors.

Communication Day
The Company held a communication day for its employees in April 2019, during which Mr. Hrisafov, the

Chief Executive Director, presented the business strategy and results of TITAN Group and USJE, highlighting
the benefits of introducing alternative fuels.

Digital Evolution

In 2019, USJE launched three new modules of the Group-wide online platform uniTe people, which is based
on SAP SuccessFactors, and was introduced in our Company in 2018. The use of the SAP SuccessFactors in
2019, proved that it facilitates the employees in achieving their goals and maximizing their engagement,
while at the same time optimizing internal HR processes.

Medical Plan (private medical insurance) for employees

Following our commitment for taking care of the health and wellbeing of cur people, in 2019 USJE launched
a Medical Plan for all of its employees. It covers medical insurance for inpatient and outpatient treatments
in private medical institutions in the country and abroad as well as work accidents/life benefits core.
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Stakeholder engagement

Company Open Day

In line with our commitment to transparency and stakeholder engagement, this year's Company Open Day
was organized in cooperation with the civic organization with participation of pupils from the elementary
schools from the municipalities of Kisela Voda and Aerodrom, as well as children from municipal
kindergartens with more than 100 visitors. The focus of the event was on education and collaboration with
the youngest members of the community, who in addition to getting acquainted with the production
process of USJE, participated in educational interactive workshops.

Communication on Alternative Fuels

Aiming to further strengthen the Company’s image and deepen its transparent stakeholder engagement,
and in line with its communication strategy in 2019 USJE gave the opportunity to all of its stakeholders to
visit the plant and to familiarize themselves with the benefits of introducing alternative fuels in cement
production process. The Minister of Environment and Physical Planning, environmental inspectors, NGOs,
citizens, media and other interested parties visited our Company for this purpose. In addition, USJE
organized an educational workshop on the topic “Circular Economy” in Ohrid.

Youth Empowerment with Business-University Cooperation

Following the successful student competition in 2018 regarding the visual improvement of USJE’s silos
facades, and at the same time aiming to empower young people and foster strong business-university
relations, in 2019, USJE implemented the design project with the awarded students and professors from

Faculty of Architecture. The students combined the two best solutions into one best-fit design solution and
thereafter successfully implemented.

Awards and recognitions

In 2019, USJE was acknowledged by its community for its strong commitment in promoting human rights,
CSR activities and implementation of principles of the UN Global Compact. Namely, the Company was
awarded with the following awards and recognition:

- Award for its commitment to promoting human rights in its business environment,

- Recognition for its project “Cooperation for Better Education and Career Opportunities” in the
category “Community Relations”. awarded by the National CSR Coordinative Body and the Ministry
of Economy,

- award as SDG Pioneer as a recognition for its activities in the implementation of the principles of
the UN Global Compact in all of its business practices, especially in the areas defined with the
Compact — good health and well-being, responsible consumption and production, environmental
protection and partnership for the accomplishment of the Global Compact goals and

- received a Letter of Appreciation from the Faculty of Electrical Engineering, Faculty of Technology,

City of Skopje, New Impuls environmental NGO and Ss. Cyril & Methodius primary school for support
and longstanding cooperation.

Community Engagement Initiatives

USJE strategic CSR commitment is to support and participate in development of sustainable local and wider
communities.

Within Partnering with schools’ project, for more than ten years USJE continuously improves the wellbeing
of the youngest population through the renovation of the local schools. In 2019, USJE completely renovated
the hygienic facilities of the local primary school Kuzman Josifovski Pitu.

As well, USIE, as a Board and presiding member of the Council of entrepreneurs of Municipality Kisela Voda,
continues to support and organize activities in cooperation with local municipality and branching out the ,

corporate social responsibility among other member companies. "’[f,/
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6. ENVIRONMENTAL

As a part of TITAN Group, USJE is committed to sustainable development and continuous improvement of
its environmental footprint. Activities related to protection of environment are incorporated in all our
activities. In this context, some of the projects realized in the course of 2019 are listed below:

Green Belt

Within the project Green Belt, a total 28.893 plants were planted in year 2019, out of which 24.382 trees
were planted on the final benches of the marl quarry, 672 trees were planted at the limestone guarry in
Govrlevo, 3.000 trees were planted in sand quarry Vrlovica, and 839 plants (trees, flowers and bushes) were
planted at the factory green areas. Increasing of the green areas, positively contributes for reducing of the
fugitive dust and minimizing visual impacts to neighbouring residential buildings.

Noise minimization

In 2019, in cooperation with the Faculty of Natural and Technical Sciences in Shtip, USJE conducted a second
Follow up study for Noise minimization in the plant’s vicinity, including revision of the Action Plan.

USJE continues to implement the Action Plan for reduction of noise from the previous follow up study, and
for this purpose in 2019 the following activities were performed:

¢ Installation of several silencers on small fans for de-dusting;
¢ Closing of loading station of silo no. 06 with metal sheets;
e |Installation of acoustic insulation on blowers under raw meal silos (ongoing as of 2018).

The investments for noise minimization will continue in year 2020, as well.

The measured noise at the monitoring points in the perimeter of the factory and marl quarry does not
exceed the stipulated permissible limits.

Air Emissions

The monitoring of air emissions is a precondition for control and mitigation of the impacts from cement
production on the environment. USJE employs an independent 24-hour-system for continuous monitoring
of emissions, which enables it to closely monitor the emissions in real time and undertaking timely corrective

measures. As a corporate social responsible company, USIE regularly publishes the monthly air emissions
reports on its webpage.

Annual average of air emissions from the main emission sources, are presented in the following graphs:
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*MLV=50 mg/Nm? — Maximum limit value according to national law for emissions

*MLV=30 mg/Nm? — Maximum limit value accepted from USJE in the A-IPPC
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Reducing the Emissions of Fugitive Dust

Following the Action Plan for minimization of fugitive dust emissions in USJE’s Plant and quarries, the
following activities comprising individual or combined measures were completed within the year 2019:

System for central vacuum cleaning of materials in hali for materials,
Installation of filter for de-dusting in Govrlevo quarry,

Continuous monitoring and change of the auxiliary de-dusting filters,
Renewal of access roads within the factory - continuous activity,
Creating a green belt around the plant and quarries - continuous activity.

In compliance with the A-Integrated Environmental License for conformity with the operational plan, an
independent authorized laboratory performed measurements of PM10 particles at the plant’s perimeter.
Again, it was confirmed that there is no direct correlation between the operations of USJE’s Plant and the J
measured values of PM10 in the ambient air. These values mainly depend on the weather conditions. 4
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Usage of Alternative Fuels

In 2018, USJE introduced a new, modern technology that allows replacement of a certain percentage of the
conventional fossil fuels used for heating the kilns with alternative fuels. To this end, throughout 2019 the
Company gradually increasing the substitution rate, by utilising RDF/SRF and rice husk as alternative fuels.
In addition, the plant started collection of waste streams from domestic companies which plans to introduce
as alternative fuel following the implementation of the necessary equipment. The utilisation of the
alternative fuels is in line with the A-Integrated Environmental License for conformity with the operational
plan. In this process, we use the best world practices, proven efficient technologies and equipment.

7. OTHER INFORMATION

USJE’s Management is firmly committed to the continuing integration of the rules and practices into the
Company’s operations, which promote transparency, responsibility, reliability, sustainable development
and corporate social responsibility in every aspect and field of activity of the Company and its entire
network of relationships with shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, contractors and the society.
Respectively, USJE discloses the following information:

1. USJE has two executive members of the Board of Directors {(“BoD”), and that is the Chief Executive

Director (“CED”) and Executive Director, and 5 non-executive members from which 2 are
independent.

2. The CED and the Executive Director are not receiving any earnings based on their membership in
the BoD. The total income (salaries, other contributions, bonuses, insurance and other receipts) of
the executive members of the BoD and of the other members of the key personnel of the Company
in 2019 is in amount of 91,386 thousand denars. None of the 5 non-executive members have
earnings based on their membership in the BoD.

3. Dividend Policy
Based on the Company’s dividend policy dividend is distributed every year, according to proposal
on BoD and after approval of the Annual Shareholder's Assembly.
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
On 27 May 2019, the Annual Shareholder’'s Assembly adopted a Decision for distribution of
dividend for the year ended 2018 in accordance with the Trade Companies Law. The dividend
declared was in amount of MKD 853,005 thousand which consists of MKD 808,550 thousand profit
from 2018 and MKD 44,455 thousand unused reinvested profit from 2017. The remaining profit
from 2018 in amount of MKD 240,000 thousand was reinvested in order to benefit from the new
tax incentives available for such activities.

Declared and paid dividend in 2019 was MKD 1,513 per share, compared to 2018, which was at
MKD 1,523 per share.

4. The sources of the Company’s assets are its operating cash flow.

5. The financial results for 2019 are an integral part of the Financial Statements of the Company and
the Group as of 31 December 2019.

6. Consequently, to the previous, a financial risk management policy was explained in detail in the
Note 19 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2019.

7. Concerning the transactions with interested parties, on 31 October 2018 USJE concluded a
Revolving Credit Line Agreement with Sharrcem SH.P.K Kosovo (“the Borrower”) in amount of EUR

7,300 thousand. The Agreement was concluded for a maximum period of up to 30 April 2019 and /

/s
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the interest rate was fixed at 4.56 per cent p.a. The revolving credit line was completely repaid by
the borrower in the agreed period.

8. During 2019, except for above-mentioned transaction with the interested parties, all other
transactions with the interested parties are realized in the ordinary course of the business of the

Company (Note 17 to the Financial Statements of the Company and the Group as of 31 December
2019).

9. USIE shares the Titan Group’s CSR Vision and CSR Policy, to “conduct its business in an ethical and
socially responsible manner doing less harm and endeavouring to do more good.”

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Respecting human rights and protecting rights of people who report unlawful or inappropriate behavior is
a vital part of USJE’s approach to good corporate governance. We have established procedures to report
grievances, incidents or issues related to TITAN’s Code of Conduct and policies.

Internal Audit’s functions include monitoring implementation and compliance with the Company’s Internal
Regulation, Code of Conduct, Articles of Association and applicable laws and reporting to the Board of
Directors any conflict of interest situations relating to the members of the Board of Directors or the
Company’s executives towards the Company’s interests, as such situations may be identified in the frames
of the internal audit.

In line with the TITAN Group’s Fraud Risk Management program, at the end of 2018 and begging of 2019, a
Fraud Risk Assessment was performed in USJE by TITAN Group Internal Audit Department. USIE’s
management undertook necessary measures and addressed all identified areas for improvement.

Consistent with the Internal Audit Annual plan, throughout 2019 two (2) audit assignments were performed
in the Packaging and Procurement Department in USJE. The audit report confirmed that the Internal Control
System is well-designed and appropriately manages underlying risks and ensures compliance with the
statutory and internal framework in force.

The CSR Committee held 4 regular meetings during 2019. It continues to be the driving force and the
initiator for all CSR activities that we run as a corporate social responsible company.

a
!

Konstantinos Derdemezis

7

Presidgn{ of ;-I"ne Board of Directors
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cementarnica Usje AD Skopje

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Cementarnica Usje AD
Skopje and its subsidiary (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards applicable in the Republic of North Macedonia
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on auditing applicable in the Republic of
North Macedonia (the "Standards"). The Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO 16, 8 Septemvri Blvd. Hyperium Business Center, 2nd floor, 1000 Skopje
Republic of North Macedonia, VAT No. MK4030008022586, T: +389 2 3140 900, F: +389 2 3116 525, www.pwc.com/mk
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Group as of 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting standards applicable in the Republic of
North Macedonia.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Annual report prepared by the Management in accordance with the requirement of the article 384 of
the Company Law.

Management is also responsible for the preparation of the Annual accounts and Annual Report of the
Group, which were approved by the Board of Directors.

As required by the Audit Law, we report that the historical information presented in the Annual Report
prepared by Management of the Group in accordance with article 384 of the Company Law is
consistent in all material respects W|th the financial information presented in the Consolidated Annual
Accounts and audited Consolidate ncial Statements of the Group, as of 31 December 2019 and
for the year then ended.

’ s
agan Davitkov
Certified Auditor

ﬁg@%{] Davitkov
General Manager

PricewaterhouseCoopers Revizija DOO Skopje

26 March 2020
Skopje, Republic of North Macedonia
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes
Sales 3a
Other revenue 3b
Cost of sales 3c
Gross profit
Other operating income 3d
Other operating expenses 3e
Selling and marketing expenses 3f
Administrative expenses 39
Operating profit
Finance income
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) net
Finance costs
Net finance income 3h
Profit before tax
Income tax expense 4
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Investment Property revaluation surplus 7
Total comprehensive income for the year
Net profit for the period attributable to:
Equity holder of the parent company
Non- controlling interest
Earnings per share information:
Basic, profit for the period attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent company 5

Total Comprehensive income for the period
attributable to:

Equity holder of the parent company

Non - controlling interest

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
4,524,156 4,172,634

109,086 97,578

(2,955,315) (2,893,780)

1,677,927 1,376,432

97,253 102,351
(150,558) (137,993)
(41,061) (37,925)
(195,355) (171,188)
1,388,206 1,131,677
10,098 5,698
(3,196) 3,222
(1,459) (1,071)
5,443 7,849
1,393,649 1,139,526
(120,276) (92,366)
1,273,373 1,047,160
10,605 9,844
1,283,978 1,057,004
1,207,667 993,127
65,706 54,033
1,273,373 1,047,160
2.28 1.88
1,217,725 1,002,463
66,253 54,541
1,283,978 1,057,004

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements 4
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD — Skopje bl st
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31 December 2019
2019 2018
Notes MEKD'000 MKD'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 2,473,733 2,423,837
Investment properties 7 208,428 187,396
Exploration and evaluation assets 8 4,232 4,183
Deferred Tax Assets 7 7
2,686,400 2,615,423
Current assets
Inventories 9 709,660 712,461
Trade and other receivables 10 315,583 500,204
Income tax receivable 2 15,564
Cash and short term deposits 11 1,604.884 93127
2630129  2.159.500
TOTAL ASSETS 5,316,529 4,774,923
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 12 1,747,730 1,747,730
Retained earnings 1,273,103 1,048,280
Other reserves 13 557,533 547,917
Reinvested profit 996625  801.080
4,574,991 4,145,007
Provision for retirement benefits 14 45,979 46,177
Provision for rehabilitation of quarries 9.121 10.612
55,100 56,789
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 637,166 546,547
Provision for unused vacations 10,072 10,139
Current portion of retirement benefit
obligations 14 4,275 6,707
Income tax payable 34,482 8,869
Dividend payable o 443 865
686,438 573.127
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5316529 4774923
Authorized on F&i fnn',i' [ f the Boaridof Dircctors on 26 February 2020: ;'.? ? i
1/
Hrisafov B-e}n‘# Nikos mr; us-.ru,t as/ ,.'r _
Joutd0 Direc Fmann,x M’rqh'j_,i"r / "”ff

Chief L ’{ w6390 Director |

Pregarid by authorised accounram with certificate number 1026137 |

f{,}f.fr;.{#ru ke Gabriela

B

e

Head of ac;: ‘unting —

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these Sinancial statements 5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2019
Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income taxes
Adjustments for:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3d
Depreciation of PPE and investment properties 6,18
Actuarial gain, net 14
Interest income 3h
Provision for obsolete inventory 3e
Provision for unused holidays, net
Fair value (gain)/losses, net
Interest expense and bank charges
Write off trade receivables
NBV of disposed and written off PPE
Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations
Interest expense and bank charges paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flows generated from operations
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Expenditures for exploration and evaluation assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment
Interest income received
Net cash flows generated (used in) investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to group shareholders
Dividends paid to minority shareholders

Net cash flows (used) in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net foreign exchange differences

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 11

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
1,393,649 1,139,526

(863) (4,925)

159,259 155,776
4,876 (337)
(10,098) (5,698)
4,701 3,152
(67) (183)
(12,395) (9,054)
1,459 1,071
1,513 1,654
513 19
1,542,547 1,281,001
181,246 4,840
(1,900) (43,372)
83,900 84,674
1,805,793 1,327,143
(1,458) (1,071)
(79,102) (84,753)
1,725,233 1,241,319
(208,686) (289,958)
49 -

349 4,646
10,098 5,698
(198,190) (279,614)
(808,951) (816,437)
(44,476) (43,851)
(853,427) (860,288)
673,616 101,417
3 (78)
931,271 829,932
1,604,884 931,271

The accompanying notes from 8 to 49 are an integral part of these financial statements 6
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Share Other Reinveste Retained Total
capital reserves d profit earnings
(Note 13)
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2019 1,747,730 547,917 801,080 1,048,280 4,145,007
Profit for the year - - - 1,273,373 1,273,373
Other comprehensive income
(Note 7) - 9,621 - - 9,621
Other comprehensive income
(translation differences) - (5) - - (5)
Total comprehensive income - 9,616 - 1,273,373 1,282,989
Dividends declared, net - - (853,005) (853,005)
Transfer to retained earnings - - (44,455) 44,455 -
Reinvested profit - - 240,000 (240,000) -
At 31 December 2019 1,747,730 557,533 996,625 1,273,103 4,574,991

On 27 May 2019, the General Assembly brought a Decision for distribution of dividend for the
year ended 2018 in accordance with the Company Law. The dividend declared was in amount of
MKD 853,005 thousand which consists of MKD 808,550 thousand profit from 2018 and MKD
44,455 thousand unused reinvested profit from 2017. The remaining profit from 2018 in amount of
240,000 thousand was reinvested in order to benefit from the new tax incentives available for such
activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Share Other Reinveste Retained Total
capital reserves d profit earnings
(Note 13)
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2018 1,747,730 538,150 568,606 1,094,492 3,948,978
Profit for the year - - - 1,047,160 1,047,160
Other comprehensive income
(Note 7) - 9,844 - - 9,844
Other comprehensive income
(translation differences) - (77) - - (77)
Total comprehensive income - 9,767 - 1,047,160 1,056,927
Dividends declared, net - - (860,898) (860,898)
Transfer to retained earnings - - (75,192) 75,192 -
Reinvested profit - - 307,666 (307,666) -
At 31 December 2018 1,747,730 547,917 801,080 1,048,280 4,145,007

The accompanying notes from 8 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statements 7
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 31 December 2019

1. Corporate information

Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje (“the Company”) is incorporated in the Republic of
Macedonia with the registered address at Boris Trajkovski 94, Skopje. The Company as of 31
December 2019 has one foreign subsidiary, TROJAN CEM EOOD, Bulgaria with 100% holding.

The Company’s main activity is production and trade with cement, masonry cement, ready mix
concrete, clinker and other related products. The main activity of the subsidiary in Bulgaria is
support services for sale of cement on Bulgarian market.

The Company is controlled by Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. registered in Netherlands, which
has 94.84% shareholding in the Company. In 2019 there was change in Company’s ultimate
parent. As of 31 December 2019 Company’s ultimate parent is Titan Cement International S.A.
Belgium. Previous ultimate parent was Titan Cement Company S.A. - Greece.

Officially starting from 1 July 2013, Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje has become a listed
company on the Macedonian Stock Exchange (under the sub-segment for mandatory listing). The
listed companies has continuing obligations to publish all price sensitive information, information
necessary for evaluating the current company’s condition.

The number of employees of the Group as of 31 December 2019 was 245 (31 December 2018:
258).

The Group financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2020. These financial statements are subject to
approval from the Group’s Shareholders Assembly.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Cementarnica “Usje” A.D. - Skopje and its subsidiary
(“the Group”) have been prepared in accordance with the Company Law (Official Gazette of
Republic of Macedonia 28/04 with amendments 84/05, 25/07, 87/08, 42/10, 48/10, 24/11, 166/12,
70/2013, 119/2013, 187/2013, 38/2014, 41/2014, 138/2014, 88/2015, 192/2015, 192/2015,
6/2016, 30/2016, 61/2016, 64/18, 120/18 and 239/18) and Accounting Principles applicable in the
Republic of Macedonia (“Macedonian GAAP”), which are in accordance to the new Rulebook of
Accounting published on 29 December 2009 (Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia 159/09 ,
164/10 ans 107/11) effective from 1 January 2010. This Rulebook comprise the basic text of
IFRS's including SIC’s and IFRIC’s as issued by IASB at 1 January 20009.

In the period as of 31 December 2009 applicable standards were the International Accounting
Standards published in Official Gazette of Republic of Macedonia which comprise the following:

e The revisions of International Accounting Standards, 1AS 1 to IAS 39 were published on 30
December 2004, previously effective as of 5 November 1999.The effective date for all revised
standards is January 1, 2005. In addition, International Accounting Standards, IAS 40 and 1AS
41 were published with the effective date 1 January 2005.

e On 10 February 2005 International Financial Reporting Standard 1 was published. The
effective date was set to 17 February 2005.

e On 29 December 2005 International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 2 to IFRS 7 were
published. The effective date was set to 30 December 2005.

IFRS 9, IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IFRS 13, IFRS 14, IFRS 15, IFRS 16, IFRS 17, IFRIC 18,
IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 21, IFRIC 22 and IFRIC 23 are not included in the Rule Book for
Accounting and are not applied by the Group.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the investment property that have been measured at fair value. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements are presented in Macedonian Denars (“MKD”) which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousands (*000) except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are prepared on accruals and going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary, TROJAN CEM EOOD, Bulgaria with 100% holding. The financial statements of the
consolidated subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent company, using
consistent accounting policies.

Furthermore, on 28 July 2015, the Group has registered a new warehouse in the village of
Orovnik (near Ohrid) for strategic presence of its products in the South Western part of the
country. For the same purpose, dated on 03 August 2017 the Group has registered a new
warehouse in Bitola and on 11 June 2018 a new warehouse in Strumica was also registered. The
warehouse in Bitola was terminated in January 2018.

All intra-group income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions that are recognized in assets, are eliminated in full as of 31 December 2019 for
TROJAN CEM EOOD Bulgaria including intra-group balances and transactions. Subsidiary is
fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Investment in subsidiary

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another entity.

b. Operating segments

Operating segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or
incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Management and for which
discrete financial information is available. The Management is the person or group of persons
who allocates resources and assesses the performance for the entity.

In the Group, the above described functions of the Management are performed by Board of the
Directors of the Group. The internal reporting within the Group presented to the Board of
Directors is on a Group level and as one operating segment. The decisions brought by the Board
of Directors are based on received reports presented as one operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

C.

Comparatives

In order to provide more relevant information to the readers of the Financial Statements, during
2019 the Group made a change in presentation and classification of certain items in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as well as in the Statement of Financial Position. HM usage fee is
classified as cost of traded goods instead in other operating expenses as were in 2018 due to more
appropriate treatment to prior periods. Similarly, actuarial losses and provision has been
accordingly reclassified in a cost of sales, administration and sales and marketing costs instead in
other operating expenses and provision for bad and doubtful debts is reclassified from other
operating expenses in sales and marketing expenses. Accrued refractories has been reclassified
from other current assets in inventory of consumables. In order to maintain the consistency with
the current year presentation, last year comparatives have been adjusted accordingly. The
comparatives before and after the change are presented below. The change in the presentation and
classification has no impact on the operating profit and assets of the Group.

TITAN

After the Before the

reclassification  reclassification
2018 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Sales 4,172,634 4,172,634
Other revenue 97,578 97,578
Cost of sales (2,893,780) (2,870,401)
Gross profit 1,376,432 1,399,811
Other operating income 102,351 102,351
Other operating expenses (137,993) (164,405)
Selling and marketing expenses (37,925) (35,948)
Administrative expenses (171,188) (170,132)
Operating profit 1,131,677 1,131,677

Foreign currency translation

The Group and the Company prepare the financial statements in Macedonian denars, which is the
Group’s and the Company’s functional currency and the presentation currency for local statutory
purposes. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements in each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate ruling at
the date of transaction. Monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
All differences are taken to profit or loss.

10
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

d. Foreign currency translation (continued)

The functional currency of the foreign operations, Trojan Cem Eood - Bulgaria is the Euro. As of
each reporting date, the assets and liabilities of this subsidiary are translated through conversion
in euro into the presentation currency of Cementarnica “USJE” AD (the Macedonian Denars) at
the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date (2019: 61.4856 MKD for Euro 1; 2018: 61.4950
MKD for Euro 1) and, its profit or loss is translated at the weighted average exchange rate for the
year (2019: MKD 61.5200 for Euro 1; 2018: MKD 61.5137 for Euro 1). The exchange
differences arising on the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

e. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated as follows:

= those assets acquired up to 31 December 1998, the revaluation under the previous GAAP at
the date of transition of the Group to IFRS (1 January 2004) was accepted as deemed cost
since the revaluation was broadly comparable to depreciated cost under IFRS adjusted to
reflect changes in general price index.

= those assets acquired after 31 December 1998 are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and / or accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Additions are recorded at cost. Cost represents the prices by suppliers together with all costs
incurred in bringing new property, plant and equipment into use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the Profit or Loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment that are retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from
the statement of financial position, along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in the profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, with exception of quarries, is designed to write off
the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The principal depreciation rates in use are:

Buildings 2.5-10%
Equipment 5-25%

Land is stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less impairment and is
not depreciated as it is deemed to have an infinite life, except quarries which are depreciated on a
depletion basis. This depletion is recorded as the material extraction process advances based on
the unit of production method.

The asset’s methods of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year end.

11
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
f. Investment property

Investment property, comprising of land, production premises with business offices and
construction object - restaurant and cafeteria room, is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group. The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the
market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including
the corresponding tax effect. Fair values are determined based on valuation performed by
independent valuer using the income method and the market comparison method as primary
valuation methods which are generally accepted in European valuation practice.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the income statement in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property, the cost for subsequent accounting
is the fair value at the date of change in use.

If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group’s accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date
of change in use. Any difference at that date between the carrying amount of the property in
accordance with IAS 16 and its fair value is treated in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with IAS 16.

g. Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation expenditure for each area of interest (geographically specific to the
concession, permit or mining license granted) is carried forward as an asset if a decision has been
made that a mining operation is economically feasible and can be developed for commercial
production. At the end of the reporting period, these costs include costs of acquisition of rights to
explore. All other exploration and evaluation expenditures are charged to the profit or loss as
incurred.

Administrative and general expenses relating to exploration and evaluation activities are expensed
as incurred.

12
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019
2.2Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

(i) Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial assets within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial
assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial
assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. Purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade dateline., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables,
and short term loans.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in finance income or finance costs in the income statement. The Group has not
designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate method (EIR). The gains and losses are recognized in the income
statement in the moment when the loans and receivables are reversed or when the value is
decreased due to impairment, and through the amortization process.

13
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified as held-to maturity when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold it to
maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. This method use effective interest rate which accurately
discounts the estimated future cash follows thought the use full life of the financial asset to net
financial value of the financial asset. The gains and losses are recognized in the income statement
in the moment when the investments are reversed or when the value is decreased due to
impairment, and through the amortization process.

The Group did not have any investments held to maturity during the period ended 31 December
2019 and the year ended 31 December 2018.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets which are determinate
as available for sales or aren’t classified in the previous three categories. After initial
measurement, available-for-sale financial investments are measured at fair value with unrealized
gains or losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve until
the investment is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other
operating income, or determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

The Group did not have any available-for-sale financial investments during the period ended 31
December 2019 and the year ended 31 December 2018.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets)is derecognized when:
e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
any has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

14
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. Individually significant financial assets are tested
for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in
groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses are recognized in the
income statement.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term. This category includes derivative financial instruments entered that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognized in profit and loss.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

15
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
h. Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities(continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in in
profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as ad recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, excluding distribution
costs and administrative expenses. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Tools and consumable stores are written-off 100% when consumed.

j.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, the giro account and deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of up to three months or less.

k. Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

16
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
.  Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
m. Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group, in the normal course of business, makes payments on behalf of its employees for
pensions, health care, employment and personnel tax which are calculated according to the statutory
rates in force during the year, based on gross salaries and wages. Food allowances travel expenses
and holiday allowances are also calculated according to the local legislation. The Group makes
these contributions to the Government’s health and retirement funds. The cost of these payments is
charged to the profit or loss in the same period as the related salary cost.

The Group does not operate any other pension scheme or post-retirement benefits plan and
consequently, has no obligation in respect of pensions.

Termination and retirement benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the
normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either terminate the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without
possibility of withdrawal or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy.

Pursuant to the Group’s signed collective bargaining agreements the Group is obligated to pay
retirement benefits in an amount equal to six average republic salaries and between one and three
average republic salaries to be paid out as a jubilee anniversary award. The number of average
republic salaries for jubilee anniversary awards corresponds to the total number of years of
service of the employee as presented in the table below:

Total number of Service Years Number of Wages
10 1
20 3
30 3
35 (women) 3
40 (men) 3

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the Project
Unit Credit Method. According to the model, the probability of the cash outflow is estimated by
calculating probabilities of three decrements: death, invalidity and turnover rate. The probability
table is constructed by using assumptions about the probability of death of the employee up to the
date when he/she should retire, the probability that the employee will retire earlier due to
invalidity and the probability that the employee will terminate the service in the Group before the
date when he/she should retire. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using the discount rate from the yields on the
government bonds issued in Macedonia in 2019 and classified by maturity.
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For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
m. Employee benefits (continued)
Employee’s children scholarships

Starting from 31 December 2009, included in the actuarial calculation of defined benefits are
allowances for scholarships of Group employees children attending graduate or post graduate
studies and for diseased employee children that are attending secondary school.

Additional benefits at retirement

Starting from 31 December 2013, the actuarial calculation of defined benefits has been
supplement with calculation of the present value of the newly introduced long term benefit for
certain category of employees - additional benefits at retirement. The calculation is made on the
basis of the average parameters of the mentioned population and total expected amount for
payment, delivered by the enterprise.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

n. Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. The provisions comprise of provision for retirement benefits and
provision for rehabilitation of quarries. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to time values is
recognized as interest expense.
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For the period ended 31 December 2019

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

0. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates and other sales taxes or duty. The following
specific criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Rendering of services

Fees from services provided are recognized over the period in which the services are rendered and
accepted by the buyer.

Interest income
The interest relates to time deposit are accounted for at the expired date of time deposit.
Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight
line basis over the lease terms.

p. Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

g. Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group’s shareholders.

r. Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period, which provide evidence of conditions that exist as of the reporting

date, are treated as adjustable events in these financial statements. Those that are indicative of
conditions that arose after the reporting date have been treated as non-adjustable events.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

s. Financial risk management
Accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Provisions for environmental restoration

Companies that operate quarries and processing sites are required to restore these quarries and
processing sites at the end of their producing lives to a condition that is in line with the prevailing
environmental legislation of the country in which the Company operates (to restore the land
within 3 years after the closure of the mine site), to the level acceptable to the relevant authorities
and to the level that is consistent with the Company's environmental policies and practices.

The provision for environmental restoration reflects the present value of the expected future
restoration costs that are expected to be incurred for the areas that have been disturbed at the
reporting date. The provision is determined as present value of expected future cash outflows to
be incurred for sites rehabilitation. This includes determination of the amount based on
rehabilitation project, discount rate and expected inflation rates. The provision is re-measured at
every reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the present value of the future expenses required to
fulfil the obligation.

The present value of estimated restoration costs (that is, original estimation as well as changes in
the accounting estimates) are charged to the profit or loss unless they relate to property, plant and
equipment that is on the site, in which case the costs are included within property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over the useful life of the related item of property, plant and
equipment.

Any change in the net present value of the environmental provision due to the passing of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined
on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected
to be required to settle the pension obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
Group considers the discount rate of the Central Bank of Republic of Macedonia due to the
absence of the market of high quality corporate bond or government bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
to the terms of the related pension liability.
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
s. Financial risk management (continued)

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market.
Fair value of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other current financial assets mainly have short
term maturity. The nominal value less estimated loss due to impairment of assets and payables
with maternity less than one year is approximates their fair value. Financial liabilities included in
the category Trade and other payables mainly have short term maturity. For this reason, their
carrying amounts at the reporting date approximate their fair values. The fair value of the long-
term financial liabilities is determined by using discounted cash-flow valuation technique.

t. Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.. Where applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
most critical estimates and assumptions are discussed below.

() Useful lives of assets

The determination of the useful lives of assets is based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as any anticipated technological development and changes in broad economic or
industry factors. The appropriateness of the estimated useful lives is reviewed annually, or
whenever there is an indication of significant changes in the underlying assumptions.

Further, due to the significant weight of depreciable assets in Group’s total assets, the impact of
any changes in these assumptions could be material to Group’s financial position, and results of
operations. If depreciation cost is decreased/increased by 1%, this would result in change of
annual depreciation expense of approximately 1,588 thousand denars (2018: 1,554 thousand
denars).
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2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

(i1) Potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibles

The Group is assessing the impairment of identifiable property, plant, equipment and intangibles
whenever there is a reason to believe that the carrying value may materially exceed the
recoverable amount and where impairment in value is anticipated. The recoverable amounts are
determined by value in use calculations, which use a broad range of estimates and factors
affecting those.

Among others, the Group typically considers future revenues and expenses, macroeconomic
indicators, technological obsolescence, discontinuance of operations and other changes in
circumstances that may indicate impairment. If impairment is identified using the value in use
calculations, the Group also determines the fair value less cost to sell (if determinable), to
calculate the exact amount of impairment to be charged (if any). As this exercise is highly
judgmental, the amount of potential impairment may be significantly different from that of the
result of these calculations.

(iii) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group calculates impairment for doubtful accounts based on estimated losses resulting from
the inability of its customers to make required payments as explained in section for financial
assets.

(iv) Provisions

Provisions in general are highly judgmental, especially in the cases of legal disputes. The Group
assesses the probability of an adverse event as a result of a past event to happen and if the
probability is evaluated to be more than fifty percent, the Group fully provides for the total
amount of the liability. The Group is rather prudent in these assessments, but due to the high
level of uncertainty, in some cases the evaluation may not prove to be in line with the eventual
outcome of the case.
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3. Revenue and expenses

a. Sales
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Gross sales
Domestic market 3,056,610 2,819,619
Foreign market 1,467,546 1,353,015
4,524,156 4,172,634
Domestic market
Income from cement 2,618,315 2,562,087
Pet coke and coal 230,401 172,278
Income from RMC 161,232 35,109
Income from resale 68,132 70,895
Income from limestone 17,823 19,838
Rebates and discounts (39,293) (40,588)
3,056,610 2,819,619
Foreign market
Income from cement 1,096,510 887,018
Pet coke and coal 319,148 380,568
Income from clinker 100,824 130,198
Income from resale 9,182 10,857
Income from limestone - 3,955
Income from sand 55 -
Rebates and discounts (58,173) (59,581)
1,467,546 1,353,015
b. Other revenues
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Transport of cement - related parties 51,113 43,952
Third part freight 45,487 37,941
Transport of clinker - related parties 11,963 14,735
Services 523 926
Additives - 24
109,086 97,578
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For the period ended 31 December 2019

3. Revenues and expenses (continued)

c

Cost of sales

Variable costs
Cost of traded goods
Fixed costs

Packing expenses
Depreciation
Distribution expenses

Inventory change

2018

MKD’000

1,476,139

565,536
426,347
162,248
147,196
127,130
(10,816)

2,893,780

Variable cost consist of kiln fuel, electricity, raw materials, concession fee and other variable

cost.

Fixed costs consist of cost of salaries and other benefits, contract labors, security services, cost
for quality test and other fixed cost such as cost for calibration, intellectual services etc.

Other operating income

Revenues from sold materials
Income from other services

Rent income
Fair value gain
Surpluses

Actuarial gains and reversal of unused provision
Gain from disposed fixed assets

Revenues from traded electricity

Income from sold pallets in transit

Others

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
24,688 33,016
19,534 -
15,226 15,879
12,395 9,054
12,072 12,696
1,654 9,134
863 4,926
118 -
102 5,591
12,055

102,351

Income from sold materials in amount of MKD 24,128 thousand relates to sold high-burnt bricks,
grinding balls etc. as intercompany and MKD 560 thousand to third parties. The costs are

recognised in other operating expenses (see Note 3 €)

Income from other services in amount of MKD 19,534 thousand consist of MKD 15,350
thousand related to recharging of expatriates costs for payroll, travelling and others plus mark up

and MKD 4,184 thousand others.
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3. Revenues and expenses (continued)

d. Other operating income (continued)

Rent income in amount of MKD 15,226 thousand consist of rented business premises space in
amount of MKD 10,475 thousand and land in amount of MKD 2,221 thousand, all to third parties
and then land in amount of MKD 2,530 thousand as intercompany.

Fair value gain in amount of MKD 12,395 thousand relates to fair value re-measurement of the
Investment property (See Note 7) as of 31 December 2019 recognised in the Group’s profit and
loss.

Surplus of products in amount of MKD 12,072 thousand consist of MKD 6,899 thousand related
to semi-finished and finished goods as well as surplus of pozzolana, gypsum, coal, lignate and fe
supplement recognised during inventory count as of 31 December 2019 and MKD 5,173 thousand
due to regular activities.

e. Other operating expenses

2019 2018

MKD’000 MKD’000

Sales support fee 65,558 63,806
Cost of sold materials 23,453 31,691
Restructuring costs 16,403 9,778
Expatriates expenses 14,620 -
Waste, spoilage,obsolescence and shortage of goods 12,006 12,452
Write off for obsolete inventory 4,701 3,152
Cost from traded electricity 118 -
Net book value of sold pallets in transit 102 5,591
Other 13,597 11,523
150,558 137,993

Sales support fee of MKD 65,558 thousand represents fee for Cement Plus - agent in middlemen
for selling the products on Kosovo Market.

Cost of sold materials in amount of MKD 23,296 thousand relates to sold high-burnt bricks,
grinding balls etc. as intercompany and MKD 157 thousand to third parties. The revenues are
recognised in other operating income (see Note 3 d).

Restructuring costs in amount of MKD 16,403 thousand relates to employees who applied for the
voluntary leaved scheme.

Expatriates expenses in amount of MKD 14,620 thousand relates to expatriates costs for payroll,
travelling etc.

Waste, spoilage, obsolescence and shortage of goods in amount of MKD 12,006 thousand consist
of MKD 7,583 thousand recognised limestone, pet coke, coal, fly-ash, bags and white cement
plus MKD 2,554 shortages of plates during inventory count as of 31 December 2019, and MKD
1,869 thousand which refers to shortage of consumables also recognised during the regular annual
inventory count.
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For the period ended 31 December 2019

3. Revenues and expenses (continued)

f.  Selling and marketing expenses
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Promotion and advertisement 5,057 5,635
Depreciation 2,288 2,376
Provision for bad and doubtful debs 1,513 1,500
Other expenses 32,203 28,414
41,061 37,925
Other selling and marketing expenses consist of salaries and related expenses, accommodation, IT
and telecoms, provision for staff leaving indemnities and retirement benefit obligation etc.
g. Administrative expenses
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Management support and other services 88,860 78,624
Promotion and advertisement 26,559 14,378
Depreciation 7,910 6,204
Other expenses 72,026 71,982
195,355 171,188

Management support and other services consist of MKD 84,688 thousand for provided
management support services and MKD 3,589 audit and legal fees. More specifically,
management support services refers to engineering & technology services, procurement, finance
services, information technology, legal services, human resources, corporate and social

responsibility, corporate communications services etc.

Other administrative expenses consist of salaries and related expenses, accommaodation, IT and
telecoms, car expenses, provision for staff leaving indemnities and retirement benefit obligation

etc.
h. Net Finance income

2019 2018

MKD’000 MKD’000

Interest income 10,098 5,698

Bank charges (1,284) (1,049)
Interest expense (175) (22)

Net foreign exchange (losses) (3,196) 3,222
5,443 7,849
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4. Income tax expense
The income tax expense comprises of:
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Current Income tax 120,276 92,373
Deferred tax - @)
120,276 92,366
As of 31 December 2018, the tax on non-deductible expenses is as follows:
2018
MKD’000
Net profit before income tax 1,140,923
At statutory income tax rate of 10% 114,092
Tax on non-deductible expenses: 4,602
Other compensations to the employees 2,454
Expenses not related to the main activities 197
Entertainment 784
Penalties and WHT 11
Sponsorship and donations 260
Scholarship 303
Other 593
Less
Reinvested profit (26,321)
Deferred tax credit (7)
92,366
Effective tax rate 8%
As of 31 December 2019, the tax on non-deductible expenses is as follows:
2019
MKD’000
Net profit before income tax 1,394,347
At statutory income tax rate of 10% 139,435
Tax on non-deductible expenses: 7,204
Other compensations to the employees 3,342
Donations in sport activities 1,018
Entertainment 900
Scholarship 496
Sponsorship and donations 356
Write-off and provision for bad and doubtful debts 247
Expenses not related to the main activities 272
Penalties and Withholding tax 5
Less 568
Reinvested profit (16,182)
Donations in sport activities (10,181)
120,276
Effective tax rate 8.6%
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4. Income tax expense (continued)

The periods that remain open to review by the tax authorities with respect to tax liabilities is 5 to 10
years, starting from the date of the submitted tax report. The taxation system is undergoing
continual revision and amendment. However there are still difference interpretation of the fiscal
legislation. The tax authorities may have different approaches to certain issues in different
circumstances, and assess additional tax liabilities together with additional payment interest and
penalties. The Group does not expect consequences that may result in a potential material liability
in this respect.

The management of the Group also considers that the tax liabilities presented in these financial
statements are fairly stated. Although, the Transfer Pricing Study for 2019 has not been finished
yet, the management of the Group estimates that there will not be a material impact on the result
taking into consideration the Transfer Pricing study for 2018 and considering that in 2019 there
were some new transactions.

The profit tax law has been amended and came in to force starting from 1 January 2019, valid for
the fiscal year 2019. Mainly changes relate to spreading the non- deductable expenses category,
changes on the tax treatment of the depreciation and changes in the transfer pricing provisions.
Referring the non- deductable expenses, the bonus expenses (payments) above the maximum base
for calculation and payment of social contributions will be treated as non- deductable expense. The
depreciation expense is treated as tax deductable, if the expense is calculated within the statutory
prescribed depreciation rates and rules. These rates and rules are defined in the Guidelines for
depreciation which was enacted the end of 2019 with application as of 1 January 2019. Calculated
depreciation expense above tax allowable amount is treated as non-deductable amount in the
Annual Profit Tax Return. In addition, at the end of 2019 Profit Tax law was amended, allowing
companies to use Tax credit in the future periods up to the amount of depreciation treated as non-
deductable amount in the previous tax periods. For the part of the changes regarding transfer
pricing the Company has obligation to report for transfer pricing for 2019 latest by 30 September
2020.

5. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the ultimate parent by the weighted average of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

The following reflects the outcome and share data used in the basic EPS computations

2019 2018

MKD’000 MKD’000
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent:
Continuing operations 1,273,373 1,047,160
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent for basic earnings 1,273,373 1,047,160
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic
EPS 563,784 563,784
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6. Property, plant and equipment

Land and Construction

Buildings Equipment in progress Total

MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2019 3,549,811 4,646,333 313,495 8,509,639
Additions 18,972 - 189,396 208,368
Transfers from Construction in Progress 49,373 220,640 (270,013) -
Transfer from Investment Property 1,063 - - 1,063
Transfer to Investment Property (790) - - (790)
Investment in Property held by other 319 - - 319
Translation differences Q) (1) - (2)
Disposals and write offs (1,338) (64,201) - (65,539)
At 31 December 2019 3,617,409 4,802,771 232,878 8,653,058
Depreciation
At 1 January 2019 2,198,988 3,886,814 - 6,085,802
Charge for the period 30,221 129,038 - 159,259
Transfer from Investment Property 78 - - 78
Transfer to Investment Property (790) - - (790)
Translation differences - 1 - 1
Disposals and write offs (1,338) (63,687) - (65,025)
At 31 December 2019 2,227,159 3,952,166 - 6,179,325
Net book value
at 31 December 2019 1,390,250 850,605 232,878 2,473,733
Net book value
at 1 January 2019 1,350,823 759,519 313,495 2,423,837
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Land and Construction
Buildings Equipment in progress Total
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
Cost
At 1 January 2018 3,439,032 4,538,816 286,995 8,264,843
Additions 15,352 5,942 265,305 286,599
Transfers from Construction in Progress 93,109 145,683 (238,792) -
Transfer to Investment Property (790) - - (790)
Investment in Property held by other 3,359 - - 3,359
Translation differences 2 (2) - 4)
Disposals and write offs (249) (44,106) (13) (44,368)
At 31 December 2018 3,549,811 4,646,333 313,495 8,509,639
Depreciation
At 1 January 2018 2,171,561 3,803,343 - 5,974,904
Charge for the period 28,217 127,559 - 155,776
Transfer to Investment Property (790) - - (790)
Translation differences - - - -
Disposals and write offs - (44,088) - (44,088)
At 31 December 2018 2,198,988 3,886,814 - 6,085,802
Net book value
at 31 December 2018 1,350,823 759,519 313,495 2,423,837
Net book value
at 1 January 2018 1,267,471 735,473 286,995 2,289,939
7. Investment property
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Opening balance at 1 January 187,396 168,498
Net gain from fair value adjustment 11,411 9,054
Revaluation reserves from fair value re-measurement 10,605 9,844
De-recognising revaluation reserves from fair value re-
measurement (984) -
Closing balance at period/year end 208,428 187,396

The investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects the market conditions at the reporting
date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in
the profit or loss in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding tax effect. Fair values
are determined based on annual valuation performed by independent value using the income method
and the market comparison method as primary valuation methods which are generally accepted in

European valuation practice.

Investment property principally comprise of land, production premises and construction object -

restaurant, cafeteria room which is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
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7. Investment property (continued)
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Rental income derived from investment properties 15,226 15,316
Profit arising from investment properties carried at
fair value 15,226 15,316

During 2019, the Group has changed the use of part of building from owner-occupied to investment
property. Prior to their reclassification, they were carried in the Group’s statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation for building.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group revalued its investment property on the basis of a valuation
performed by an independent valuer, Grant Thornton Consulting Doo Skopje, who holds a
recognized and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of the investment property being valued. The valuation model in accordance with that
recommended by International Valuation standards Committee has been applied.

The methodology used and key inputs to the valuation of the investment properties are as follows:

Methodology Inputs Ranges
Buildings Income method Vacancy rate 5%
plot

Landlord costs 5%
Capitalization rate 10.02%

Land plot Market approach - sales  Asking prices of comparable land plots in
comparison method the region of Municipality Kisela Voda - 40to 70
Skopje and similar other locations euro/m2

Significant increases (decreases) in the estimated landlord costs would result in a significant lower
(higher) fair value of properties. Significant increases (decreases) in the capitalization rate in
isolation would result in a significant lower (higher) fair value of properties.

As a result of the valuation, as at 31 December 2019 the carrying value of the Group’s investment
property is adjusted / increased for the amount of MKD 21,032 thousand. Part of the gain in the
amount of MKD 10,605 thousand resulting from fair value re-measurement at the moment of
change of use during 2019 from owner-occupied to investment property as explained above, has
been recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the revaluation reserve (See:
Statement of changes in equity). Plus, the gain in the amount of MKD 984 thousand resulting from
fair value re-measurement at the moment of change of use during 2019 has been de-recognized
from the revaluation reserves and recognized in the property, plant and equipment and profit and
loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 (See Note 3d and Note 6).

Remaining fair value gain in amount of MKD 11,411 thousand has been recognized in the Group’s
profit and loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 (See Note 3d).

The fair value measurement was made using valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair measurement is unobservable (level 3).

There were no transfers between assets measured using different valuation techniques during 2019.
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For the period ended 31 December 2019

8. Exploration and evaluation assets

Cost

At 1 January 2019
Additions

At 31 December 2019

Depreciation

At 1 January 2019
Charge for the period
At 31 December 2019

Net book value at 31 December 2019
Net book value at 1 January 2019

Cost

At 1 January 2018
Additions

At 31 December 2018

Depreciation

At 1 January 2018
Charge for the period
At 31 December 2018

Net book value at 31 December 2018
Net book value at 1 January 2018

Exploration and
evaluation of
mineral recourses
MKD’000

17,796
49

Total
MKD’000

17,796
49

17,845

13,613

17,845

13,613

13,613

4,232

13,613

4,232

4,183

4,183

Exploration and
evaluation of
mineral recourses
MKD’000

17,796

Total
MKD’000

17,796

17,796

13,613

17,796

13,613

13,613

4,183

13,613

4,183

4,183

4,183
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9. Inventories

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Spare parts 269,064 268,755
Consumable stores 196,603 161,685
Raw materials and fuel 143,917 180,620
Semi-finished goods 25,019 43,126
Finished goods 50,741 44,865
Packing materials 20,387 12,081
Goods for resale 154 777
Prepayments for inventory purchase 3,775 552
709,660 712,461

10. Trade and other receivables
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Trade debtors 230,631 449,249
Prepayments 56,077 18,855
Other current assets 28,875 32,100
315,583 500,204

Other current assets relates to receivables from rented land and PPE, receivables from re-invoiced
costs for rented premises, then accruals for insurance premium, accruals for receivables for interest on
forex bank deposit, receivables on disposal of tangible and intangible assets and other accruals and
receivables.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 0- 75 days terms.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

Neither past Past due but not impaired
due nor
Total impaired < 30 days 30-60 days 60-90 days 90-120 days  >120days
2019 230,631 126,206 47,706 15,370 9,686 4,733 26,930
2018 449,249 166,088 101,152 58,838 49,616 40,012 33,543
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11. Cash and cash receivables
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Bank deposits 1,545,813 822,875
Cash at bank 59,071 108,390
Cash at hand - 6
1,604,884 931,271

Bank deposits are time deposits, all in Ohridska Banka AD Skopje, with maturity of up to 3 months.
The effective interest rates on these short-term bank deposits are negotiated on a case by case basis.

12. Share capital

Number
Authorized, issued and fully paid of shares % holding
Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 534,667 94.84%
each
Other shareholders - ordinary shares of MKD 3,100 each 29,117 5.16%
563,784 100%
Amount
MKD’000
Share capital as registered
At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 1,747,730
Dividends paid and proposed
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2018
Final dividend for 2017:
MKD 1,527,00 per share
Declared: 860,898
Paid: 860,287
Declared and paid during the period ended 31 December 2019
Final dividend for 2018:
MKD 1,513,00 per share
Declared: 853,005
Paid: 853,427

Dividends declared and paid for the year ended 31 December 2018 and year ended 31 December 2019

entirely relate to cash dividends on ordinary shares.
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13. Other reserves
Investment Foreign
Asset Statutory Property currency
revaluatio reserves revaluation translation Total
n reserve reserve reserve
MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 2018 268,551 174,772 94,825 2 538,150
Other comprehensive income
(Note 7) - - 9,844 - 9,844
Translation difference - - - (77) (77)
At 31 December 2018 268,551 174,772 104,669 (75) 547,917
Other comprehensive income
(Note 7) - - 9,621 - 9,621
Translation difference - - - (5) (5
At 31 December 2019 268,551 174,772 114,290 (80) 557,533

Foreign currency translation reserves

The foreign currency translation reserves are used for recording foreign exchange differences which
rise from translation of currency in the financial statements of the foreign subsidiary.

Investment Property revaluation reserve

During 2019, the Group has changed the use of part of building from owner-occupied to investment
property. Prior to their reclassification, they were carried in the Group’s statement of financial position
at cost less any accumulated depreciation for building.

As a result of the valuation, as at 31 December 2019 the carrying value of the Group’s investment
property is increased for the amount of MKD 10,605 thousand resulting from fair value re-
measurement at the moment of change of use during 2019 from owner-occupied to investment
property as explained above, has been recognized in Other comprehensive income and presented in the
Revaluation reserve under category: Other reserves and decreased for MKD 984 thousand as
derecognising resulting from fair value re-measurement at the moment of change of use from
investment property to owner-occupied assets. The recognised net effect is in amount of MKD 9,621
thousand.

Legal reserves

According to Law on Trading Companies, the Group is required to have compulsory statutory reserve
established through appropriation of its net profits. With the changes of the Law on Trading
Companies effective from 1 January 2013, the Group is required to set aside 5 percent of its net
statutory profit for the year in a statutory reserve until the level of the reserve reaches 1/10 of the share
capital. The Group has achieved the required minimum in prior years and consequently no
appropriation in 2019 has been made.
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14. Provision for retirement benefits

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Defined retirement benefit obligations 10,625 11,206
Defined jubilee anniversary award obligations 11,334 14,508
Defined scholarship obligations 21,305 21,645
Reservation for retention plan 6,990 5,525
50,254 52,884
Analyzed as:
Non-current portion 45,979 46,177
Current portion 4,275 6,707
50,254 52,884
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
At 1 January 52,884 59,409
Current service costs 4,136 4,043
Interest cost 1,863 2,253
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net (1,123) (6,632)
57,760 59,073
Benefits paid during the year (7,506) (6,189)
At 31 December 50,254 52,884
The amounts recognised in the profit and loss are as follows:
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Current service costs 4,136 4,043
Interest cost 1,863 2,253
Recognised actuarial (gains)/losses, net (1,123) (6,632)
4,876 (336)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for change in the discount rate and wage growth as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 is as shown below:
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14. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

2019
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease

In % In % In % In %

Retirement benefits

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (7.2) 8.5 9.9 (8.6)

Jubilee awards

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (5.6) 6.5 7.0 (6.2)

2018
Assumptions Discount rate Wage growth
Sensitivity Level 1% 1% 1% 1%
increase decrease increase decrease

In % In % In % In %

Retirement benefits

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (6.5) 75 9.0 (7.9)

Jubilee awards

Impact on the net defined benefit

obligations (4.3) 5.0 5.6 (5.0)

The following payments are expected contributions to be made in the future years:

2019 2018

MKD’000 MKD’000

Year 1 4,362 6,707
Year 2 5,101 6,589
Year 3 5,211 5,370
Year 4 5,761 6,006
Year 5 4,877 4,663
Years 6-10 19,748 20,081
Over 10 years 78,176 78,686
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14. Provision for retirement benefits (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used in 2019 by the independent actuaries were as follows:

a)

b)

f)

The mortality of the employees until the date of retirement is estimated with the population
mortality table of the Republic of Croatia 2010 - 2012. Although the State statistical office of
the Republic in Macedonia on a regular basis issues mortality tables, these tables are not
adequate for actuarial calculations due to the following reasons:

- The Macedonian mortality tables are not graduated and do not satisfy the required actuarial
properties.

- There has not been a census conducted in Macedonia since 2002, so the methodology of how
the population tables are constructed for the period 2006 - 2008 is questionable;

From the data analysis of the turnover scheme of all employees that were employed in the
Company since 1953, the data was classified into two categories: data for employees that were
employed in and after 1992 and data for employees that were employed before 1992. Namely,
from the data it is observable that the employees who were employed before 1992 have
tendency to cancel their employment few years before retirement (after fulfilling more than 12
years in service in the Company), thus not getting the lump sum payments on retirement,
which is not the case for employees who were employed in or after 1992 who usually cancel
the employment in the first 12 years of their employment in the Company. The category of
employees who were employed before 1992 are modelled as a run off portfolio having
regarded that out of all employees who were employed on 31.12.2013-2018, in average 7% -
12% were cancelling their employment annually. For the category of employees who were
employed in or after 1992, the analysis of data shows dependences between the annual
cancelation rate and the number of years in service in the Company of the employees who
cancel their employment;

Employee’s retirement in the future will be according to the current legislative (64 for male
and 62 for female);

Due to unavailable data from relevant institutions for the rate of retirement due to invalidity,
the model is created on a manner that the Company will pay retirement benefits only for a
regular pension, i.e., the assumption used is that the retirement due to invalidity is zero. From
the actuarial practice the rates that are used for invalidity as a result of accident are less than
0.01%, so including this assumption would not change the result materially;

For lump sum payments on retirement, jubilee and additional benefits on retirement, for all
Company’s employees, a tax rate of 10% calculated on the gross amount that will be paid to
the employees was used. For scholarships a tax rate of 0% was used;

All of the children of the employees who will die will enrol in primary i.e., secondary school,
if they fulfil the respective age constraints. 86% of the employees’ children (including the
employees who will die) will enrol in undergraduate studies, if they fulfil the respective age
constraints. 14% of the employees’ children will enrol in graduate studies, if they fulfil the
respective age constraints. For the purpose of the models, an assumption has been used that
the future monthly instalments for all type of scholarships will be 10,738 denars.

The used financial assumptions were as follows:

Nominal annual increase of the average republic salary: 2.5%. The calculation were based on the
average annual increase of the monthly salaries in the period 2009-2019 and also from the effect of the
increase in the minimal salary which is expected to produce higher increase. The base for 2019 to
which the annual increase is applied is calculated as an average of the net monthly salaries paid per
employee in 2019.
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15. Trade and other payables

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Trade creditors 476,268 415,302
Tangible assets creditors 45,290 65,762
Customer prepayments 77,772 33,910
Other current liabilities 37,836 31,573
637,166 546,547

16. Contingences and Commitments

Contingent liabilities

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Bank guarantees 50,309 33,481
50,309 33,481

As of 31 December 2019, the Group has obtained a Bank payment guaranties from:

- Halk Banka in favour of Makpetrol Prom Gas of MKD 12,000 thousand related to the
purchase of natural gas valid till 31 January 2021, in favour of Customs of MKD 15,000 valid
till 2 November 2020, in favour of OKTA AD Skopje for crude oil in amount of MKD 4,000
thousand valid until 31 January 2020, in favour of MEPSO AD Macedonia of MKD 2,664
thousand for transmission of electricity valid till 31 January 2020, in favour of AD Elektrani
N. Macedonia of MKD 8,650 thousand for transmission of electricity valid till 12 March 2020.
Halk Banka also has issues two tender guaranties in amount of MKD 1,845 thousand and
MKD 6,150 thousand both valid until 17 April 2020.

Commitments

Operating lease commitments - group as lessee

The Group leases motor vehicles under lease agreements. The leases have varying terms and clauses.
The expenditures are recognised in the profit or loss for the period.

2019 2018

MKD’000 MKD’000

Upto 1 year 5,741 6,333
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 8,763 11,031
14,504 17,364
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16. Contingences and Commitments (continued)

Operating lease commitments - group as lessee (continued)

In 2018 the Group leases 2 terminals (Ohrid and Strumica) under lease agreements. In 2017 was

(Ohrid and Bitola). The Bitola terminal in January 2018 has been terminated. The leases have
varying terms and clauses.

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Upto 1 year 849 849
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year 320 1,089
1,169 1,938

The Group leased Horizontal Mill from MILLKO under lease agreement.
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Up to 1 year 16,115 16,110
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 year - 16,110
16,115 32,220

Purchase commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has entered into contracts for the purchase of electricity
amounting to MKD 81,861 thousand for the first quarter of 2020.

Legal proceedings

From time to time and in the normal course of the business, claims against the Group may be received.
On the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice, the management
of the Group is of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims and
accordingly no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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17. Related party transactions
Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. owns 94.84% of the Group’s share capital.
The following transactions were carried out with the related parties:

a) Sales of goods and services

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000

Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - services 8,743 -

Entities under common control:

Cement Plus Ltd - cement and white cement 384,316 279,306
Cement Plus Ltd - freight revenue 48,200 43,952
Cement Plus Ltd - materials 56 112
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - pet coke 302,926 370,904
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - clinker 97,803 113,950
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - freight revenue 14,876 12,138
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - refractory - 9,258
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - materials and services 24,238 22,859
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - limestone and cement - 4,461
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - sharmal and sand 51,308 -
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - clinker 2,610 16,249
Titan Cementara Kosjeric - freight revenue - 2,598
Antea Cement SHA - services 6,596 -
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - rent 2,530 2,530
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - other - 598
944,202 878,915

Other transactions
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - Short term loan principal 184,605 123,116
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - interest 1,602 1,175
186,207 124,291
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17. Related party transactions (continued)

Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:

Receivables from related parties

Ultimate Parent:
Titan Cement Company - services

Entities under common control:

Cement Plus Ltd - cement and white cement

SHARRCEM SH.P.K-pet coke
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-clinker

SHARRCEM SH.P.K-limestone and cement
SHARRCEM SH.P.K-other

Titan Cementara Kosjeric - clinker

Antea Cement SHA - services

MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - rent

b) Purchases of goods and services

Ultimate Parent:

Titan Cement Company - white cement and pet coke

Titan Cement Company - management support
Titan Cement Company - silos

Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd - sales support fee
SHARRCEM SH,P,K - clinker
SHARRCEM SH.P.K - other
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services
Antea Cement SHA - clinker
Titan Zlatna Panega - RMC equipment
Titan Zlatna Panega - clinker
Titan Zlatna Panega - cost of traded goods

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
4,010 -
- 10,594
13,788 88,816
6,292 122,289
4,312 2,068
1,695 19,586
2,610 -
6,591 -
- 705
39,298 244,058
2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
83,049 103,635
84,688 75,052
- 2,583
65,558 63,806
- 2,555
5,800 4,359
16,115 16,115
- 1,602
- 9,224
- 7,647
- 9,048
255,210 295,626
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17. Related party transactions (continued)
Outstanding balances arising from the transactions mentioned above are presented below:

Payables to related parties

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Ultimate Parent:

Titan Cement Company - management support 10,932 11,850
Titan Cement Company — CAPEX 3,380 17,168
Titan Cement Company - WC, pet coke and services 34,594 13,244
Titan Cement Company-silos - 750

Entities under common control:
Cement Plus Ltd. - sales support fee 16,168 19,930
Cement Plus Ltd. - prepayments 32,955 -
MILLKO - PCM Dooel Skopje - services 10,970 1,774
Titan Zlatna Panega - clinker - 1,904
SHARR CEM SH.P.K - other 357 757
109,356 73,377

The Group enter into these transactions with the above related parties at mutually agreed terms.

Key management compensation

2019 2018

MKD’000 MKD’000

Salaries and other short-term benefits 91,386 82,426
91,386 82,426

Key management compensation in amount of MKD 91,386 thousand refers to salaries and
other short-term benefits of managers and other members of the key personnel of the Group
for 20109.
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18. Expenses by nature

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
Row materials and others 1,031,564 1,093,327
Cost of traded goods and services 543,713 549,420
Utilities 419,520 388,516
Employees benefit expense 276,433 292,835
Other material costs and services 313,520 254,074
Depreciation 159,259 155,776
Distribution expenses 154,128 127,130
Management support services 84,688 75,052
Maintenance 70,421 63,398
Inventory change 16,017 (10,816)
Promotion and advertisement 31,616 20,012
Travelling 14,222 16,812
IT & Telecoms 13,274 7,833
Third party fees 4,171 3,038
Other expenses 59,185 40,074
Total cost of goods sold, selling and marketing and
administrative expenses 3,191,731 3,076,481

19. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Group has various financial
assets such as trade receivables, cash and short-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and credit risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which
are summarised below.

a) Market risk

Market risk is defined as the ‘risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices’ and includes interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk. The majority of the revenues of the Group are generated on domestic market and the
remaining part mainly generated on foreign market.

Expenses of the Group that arise are mainly arising from purchases on domestic and foreign markets.
Management believes that is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and
growth of the Group’s business in the current circumstances. Nevertheless, future market fluctuations
cannot be predicted with accuracy.

b) Interest risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

Change in the interest rates and interest margins may influence financing costs and returns on
financial investments.
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19. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
b) Interest risk (continued)

Changes in market interest rates affect the interest income on time deposits with banks. As of 31
December 2019, the Group has time deposits in banks in amount of MKD 1,545,813 thousand (2018:
MKD 822,875 thousand). therefore 1% rise in market interest rate would have caused (ceteris paribus)
the interest received to increase with approximately MKD 15,458 thousands annually (2018: MKD
8,228 thousands annually) while similar decrease would have caused the same decrease in interest
received.

¢) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal due to the fact that the majority of foreign
currency transactions relating to selling and purchases are denominated in EURO, which was stable
during all 2019. Also, domestic sales agreements are denominated in EURO.

For purposes of sensitivity analyses from foreign currency risk, Management used the assumption of
1% increase of Foreign exchange rate of EUR which is considered reasonable having in mind stable
local currency against EUR during the past years. As of the 315 December 2019, if EUR would have
been 1% (2018: 1%) weaker or stronger against MKD, profit would have been MKD 9,006 thousand
(2018: MKD 6,513 thousand) after tax in net balance higher or lower, respectively.

The Group’s outstanding balances are as follows:

2019 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,604,884 512,997 1,091,887

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 259,506 189,198 70,308

Total assets 1,864,390 702,195 1,162,195

Liabilities

Trade payables 476,267 266,807 209,460

Other payables and current liabilities 83,127 71,553 11,574

Total liabilities 559,394 338,360 221,034

Net balance sheet exposure 1,304,996 363,835 941,161

46




/

H (1] 7 T /
Cementarnica “USJE” AD - Skopje Z TITAN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 31 December 2019
19. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

c) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
2018 Total Domestic Foreign
MKD

equivalent

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 931,271 353,090 578,181

Trade receivables and other current financial

assets 481,349 235,872 245,477

Total assets 1,412,620 588,962 823,658

Liabilities

Trade payables 415,302 274,153 141,149

Other payables and current liabilities 97,335 73,331 24,004

Total liabilities 512,637 347,484 165,153

Net balance sheet exposure 899,983 241,478 658,505

Prepayments are excluded from the tables above because they are not financial assets and liabilities.

d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The table below summarises the maturity

profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Period ended 31 December 2019

On Less than 3t012 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 366,911 - - - 366,911
Other payables - 83,127 - - - 83,127
Payables to related
parties - 109.356 - - - 109.346
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19. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

On  Lessthan 3t012 1to5 > 5years Total
demand 3 months months years
Trade payables - 341,925 - - - 341,925
Other payables - 97,335 - - - 97,335
Payables to related
parties - 73,377 - - - 73,377
e) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group has policies
that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one customer. In addition, to reduce this risk the Group
has required as collateral bank guaranties and deposits. Recognisable risks are accounted for by
adequate provisions on receivables. As at 31 December 2019, there are no outstanding doubtful
significant credit risks which are not already covered by a provision for doubtful receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash
and cash equivalents and short term borrowing receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were held at short term
deposits and current accounts in highly rated financial institutions.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, following shareholders’ approval. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the periods ended 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2018.

The Group monitors its equity capital using earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) for the year.

2019 2018
MKD’000 MKD’000
EBITDA 1,547,465 1,287,453

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The structure and
management of debt capital is determined at TITAN Group level.
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20. Events after the reporting period

There are no events after the reporting period that would have impact on the 2019 Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position or Statement of Cash Flow.

Late in 2019 news first emerged from China about COVID — 19 (Coronavirus). The situation at year
end was that a limited number of cases of an unknown virus had been reported to the WHO. In the
first few months of 2020 the virus had spread globally and its negative impact has gained momentum.
Management considers this outbreak to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. While this is still
an evolving situation at the time of issuing these financial statements, to date there has been no
discernible impact of the company’s regular business operations, however the future effects cannot be
predicted. Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and will take all steps possible to
mitigate any effects. It should be emphasized that the company has rolled out its business continuity
plans and has taken precautionary measures to keep its people healthy, to ensure that the workplace is
safe and to preserve cash. The company has a strong balance sheet and ample liquidity of immediate
cash availability. In response to the changed business context, the company is also delaying certain
capital expenditures programs and will continue to respond as required.
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rOINHA TEKOBHA 3a rOINHA
AOIT
rofiiHa TEKOBHA
rOINHA

- - AKTUBA: A.HETEKOBHU CPEJICTBA
(002+009+020+021+031)

- - LHEMATEPUJAJIHU CPEJICTBA

2.686.391.875,00 2.615.415.928,00

2 (003+004+005+006+007-008) 4.231.860,00 4.182.860,00
4 - - KoHnecun, nareHTy, IUIEHIH, 3aIUTUTHA 4.231.860,00 4.182.860,00
3HAIM U CIIMYHU IpaBa
- - II. MATEPUJAJIHU CPEJACTBA
? (010+013+014+015+016+017+018+019) 2:473.731.635,00 2:423.836.683,00
10 - - Hegmwxnoctu (011+012) 1.377.962.933,00 1.338.423.002,00
11 - - BemjumTe 881.469.670,00 874.691.142,00
12 - - I'panexxnHu o6jexTH 496.493.263,00 463.731.860,00
13 - - [locTpojku u onpema 825.451.461,00 740.962.227,00
14 - - TpancnoptHu cpencrsa 4.889.367,00 4.421.795,00
15 - - AJiat, IOTOHCKH 1 KaHIIEJApUCKU HHBEHTAp U 20.266.079.00 14.136.429,00
meben
18 - - MarepujaiHu cpecTBa BO MOATOTOBKA 232.878.168,00 313.494.891,00
19 - - OcTranaru MarepHjaJHU CpeaCcTBa 12.283.627,00 12.398.344,00
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20
35

36

37
38

39

40

41
42

45

46
47

48

49

50

59

60
61

62

63

- - [II. BIOXYBABA BO HEJIBM)KHOCTHU

208.428.380,00

- - VL. OIJTOKEHU JAHOYHU CPEJICTABA 6.579,00

- - B. TEKOBHHU CPEJICTBA
(037+045+052+059)

- - . 3AJIMXH (038+039+040+041+042+043)
- - 3aMMX¥ Ha CYpOBUHH U MaTEpHjaH

- - 3aJIMXU Ha PE3EPBHHU JIEJIOBH, CUTEH
MHBEHTap, aM0ajaka 1 aBTOIYMH

- - 3aUXY Ha HEIOBPILEHU MPOU3BOIU U
HOJTYIPOU3BOAU

- - 3aNKUX¥ HAa TOTOBU POU3BOAM
- - 3aJIUXU Ha TPrOBCKHU CTOKU

- - TII. KPATKOPOYHU [TOBAPYBAIHA
(046+047+048+049+050+051)

- - [ToGapyBama o MOBpP3aHu JAPYIITBA
- - [TobapyBama o1 KynmyBauu

- - [lobapyBarba 3a 1aJicHH aBaHCH Ha
no0aByBaIN

- - [TobapyBama on apkaBaTa 1Mo OCHOB Ha
JAHOIM, IPUOHECH, IAPHUHA, aKIIU3H U 32
OCTaHAaTH JIaBauKH KOH JprKaBara (IIpeTIiaTH)
- - [loGapyBama o BpabOTEHUTE

- - V.ITAPUYHU CPE/ICTBA U ITAPUYHU
EKBUBAJIEHTH (060+061)

- - [Tapuunu cpencTaa

- - [lapu4HM €KBUBAJICHTH

- - VI. TUTATEHU TPOILIOLIN 3A UJIHUTE
TIEPMON U TTIPECMETAHU ITPUXOIU
(ABP)

- - BKYIIHA AKTHUBA: CPEACTBA

2.596.640.779,00

680.228.782,00
282.824.152,00

321.490.249,00

25.019.131,00

50.741.665,00
153.585,00

311.527.795,00

39.297.986,00
211.929.743,00

49.086.311,00

10.928.247,00

285.508,00
1.604.884.202,00

59.071.273,00
1.545.812.929,00

33.489.330,00

5.316.528.563,00

187.396.380,00
6.580,00

2.153.762.628,00

707.383.664,00
301.594.651,00

317.021.072,00

43.126.191,00

44.864.992,00
776.758,00

515.107.555,00

244.058.721,00
235.137.494,00

14.259.260,00

20.711.596,00

940.484,00
931.271.409,00

108.396.333,00
822.875.076,00

5.738.266,00

4.774.923.402,00
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64

65

66

70

71
72
74
75
76
77
81

82

&3

84

95

96
97
98

99

(001+035+036+044-+062)

- - B. BOHBMJIAHCHA EBUJIEHIINJA -
AKTHUBA

- - [TACHBA : A. TJTABHUHA 1 PE3EPBU
(066+067-068-069+070+071+075-076+077-078)

- - 1. OCHOBHA IJTABHMHA 1.747.729.749,00

- - V. PEBAJIOPU3ALIMCKA PE3EPBA U
PA3JIMKU Ol BPEJJHYBAIGE HA
KOMIIOHEHTU HA OCTAHATA

13.830.406.020,00

4.574.992.775,00

138.555.451,00

CEOII®ATHA JOBMBKA

- - VI. PE3EPBHU (072+073+074) 1.415.602.850,00
- - 3aKOHCKH pe3epBU 174.772.975,00

- - Ocranaru pe3epBu 1.240.829.875,00
- - VII. AKYMVJIMPAHA JIOEMBKA

- - VIII. IIPEHECEHA 3ATI'YBA (-) 268.669,00

- - IX. IOBBKA 3A JIEJIOBHATA I'OJUHA 1.273.373.394,00
- - b. OBBPCKMU (082+085+095) 720.199.035,00

- - 1. JIOJIFOPOYHU PE3EPBUPAIbA 3A
PU3UILM U TPOILIOLIY (083+084)

- - Pe3epBupama 3a neH3UH, OTIPEMHUHU U
CIIMYHH OOBPCKH KOH BpabOOTEHUTE

55.100.015,00

45.979.006,00

- - OcTanaru JONITOPOYHM pe3epBUpama 3a
PHU3HLIN U TPOIIOH

- - IV. KPATKOPOYHU OBBPCKMH (ox 096 1o

9.121.009,00

665.099.020,00

108)

- - O6GBpCKH cripeMa MOBP3aHH JIPYIITBA 107.681.628,00
- - O6BpckH cripeMa q00aByBaun 429.379.115,00
- - O6BpcKH 3a aBaHCH, JICTIO3UTHU U KayIHH 44.816.913,00

- - OGBpCKH 3a JaHOIM U MPUAOHECH Ha IIaTa u
Ha HaJOMECTH Ha ILIaTH

4.882.703,00

10.697.818.989,00

4.145.008.528,00

1.747.729.749,00

128.934.451,00

1.220.062.107,00
174.772.975,00
1.045.289.132,00
1.122.522,00

1.047.159.699,00
605.748.967,00

56.789.021,00

46.176.648,00

10.612.373,00

548.959.946,00

74.696.588,00
386.199.115,00
33.909.585,00

4.368.385,00
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100 - - OGBpcKH KOH BpaOOTEeHHUTE 10.082.363,00 9.271.034,00

101 - - TekoBHU TaHOYHU OOBPCKHU 41.087.696,00 16.160.635,00

jop KpaTkopouHit pescpBHpaIba 3a PHSHLLL 1 14.347.560,00 16.845.540,00
TPOILOLU

106 - - OGBpCKH M0 OCHOB Ha Y4€CTBO BO pe3yararor 442.923,00 865.131,00

108 - - OcTaHaru KpaTKOpOYHU OOBPCKHU 12.378.119,00 6.643.933,00
- - V. OIJTOXXEHO TVIAKAKE HA

109 TPOILLIOLIM U TTPUXOAN BO UAHUTE 21.336.753,00 24.165.907,00
[MTEPNOAN (IIBP)
- - BKYITHO ITACHBA : ITTABHUHA,

111 PE3EPBU U OBBPCKU 5.316.528.563,00 4.774.923.402,00

(065+081+094+109+110)
- - B. BOHBMJIAHCHA EBUJIEHITHJA-

112 ACHBA 13.830.406.020,00 10.697.818.989,00
bunanc Ha ycriex
Hcnpaska
O3Haka bpyro  ma
Hero 3a TekoBHa 3a BpenHocta IIperxonHa
3a Omnuc
AOI roivHa TEKOBHA 3a roiuHa
rOlMHa TEKOBHA
roiiHa
201 - - . IPUXOAU O PABOTEWETO (202+203+206)  5.029.493.007,00 4.594.295.749,00
202 - - [Ipuxonu ox mponaxoda 4.792.939.412,00 4.422.828.734,00
203 - - Ocranaru npuxonu 54.741.164,00 66.906.758,00
204 - - 3aUXH Ha TOTOBU IIPOU3BO/IN U HEIOBPILEHO 87.991.183,00 69.041.096,00
IIPOU3BOACTBO Ha IOYETOKOT HA rOlNHaTa
205 - - 3a]IMXH Ha TOTOBU TIPOM3EOZH M HEJOBPLICHO 71.973.897,00 79.857.012,00
IIPOU3BOACTBO Ha KPajOT HA FOAMHATA
206 - - Kanuranusupano conctBeno npousBoacTBo U yeayru 181.812.431,00 104.560.257,00
207 - L PACXOII OFl PABOTEETO 3.626.552.808,00 3.474.483.474,00

(208+209+210+211+212+213+218+219+220+221+222)
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208
209

210

211
212
213
214

215

216

217

218

220

221
222

223

224

226

227

230

- - Tpowonu 3a CypOBUHM U APYTH MaTepHjain
- - HaGaBHa BpetHOCT Ha NMPOAACHUTE CTOKU

- - HabaBHa BpeHOCT Ha MPOJAJACHUTE MaTePHjalIH,
PE3epBHHU JICTIOBH, CHTEH HHBEHTAp, amOanaxa u
aBTOI'yMH

- - Yeiyru co KapakTep Ha MaTepHjaiH| TPOLIOIN
- - OcTanaru TpOUIOIH Off pabOTEHETO

- - Tpomonu 3a Bpaborenu (214+215+216+217)

- - [Inmatn 1 HamomecToIM Ha Tuiata (HETO)

- - Tpormonu 3a TaHOIM HA TIJIATH U HaJIOMECTOIN HA
iara

- - [Ipunonecu o1 3aJOIKUTEIHO COL]AITHO
OCHUTYpYBame

- - OcraHaru TpomoNy 3a BpaOOTEHUTE

- - AMopTH3aIyja Ha MaTepujaTHUTE U
HeMaTepujaTHUTE CpesICTBa

- - BpeanocHo ycornacyBame (00€3BpeIHyBamkE) Ha
TEKOBHUTE CPEJCTBA

- - Pe3epBupama 3a TPOIIOLH U PH3HIH
- - Ocranaru pacxoau oj] paboTeHEeTo

- - TII. ®UHAHCHUCKHU TTPUXON
(224+229+230+231+232+233)

- - ®UHAHCHUCKH MPUXOH O] OMHOCH CO TIOBP3aHU
npymTBa (225+226+227+228)

- - [Ipuxoau mo 0CHOB Ha KaMaTu off paboTeme co
IIOBP3aHM JIPYILITBA

- - [Ipuxoau 1Mo OCHOB Ha KYPCHH Pa3iuKu Of] paboTeHe

CO IOBp3aHu APYIUTBA

- - IIpuxoau o oCHOB Ha KaMaTu off paboTeme co
HEMOBP3aHH JpYyIITBa

1.671.767.740,00

527.598.249,00

23.555.674,00

605.538.205,00
172.620.027,00
311.470.764,00
171.833.479,00

17.888.323,00

71.565.259,00
50.183.703,00

159.260.363,00

6.788.385,00

29.052.470,00
118.900.931,00

13.162.288,00

2.038.362,00

1.601.910,00

436.452,00

8.495.611,00

1.581.964.699,00
558.406.790,00

28.295.399,00

539.842.201,00
144.321.972,00
309.315.668,00
179.507.081,00

17.328.173,00

71.585.933,00
40.894.481,00

155.775.231,00

4.805.494,00

31.803.909,00
119.952.111,00

17.924.281,00

1.682.095,00

1.175.109,00

506.986,00

4.522.512,00
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231

234

235

237

239

240

246

250

252

255

257

258

259

260

264
265
269

271

- - [Ipuxoau mo OCHOB Ha KypCHH pa3iMKH OJl paboTeme
CO HEIMOBP3aHM JIPyLITBA

- - IV. DMHAHCHUCKU PACXOIHN
(235+239+240+241+242+243)

- - ®UHAHCHUCKH PACXOAH OJI OHOCH CO IMIOBP3aHU
npymrtsa (236+237+238)

- - Pacxonu o 0cHOB Ha KypCHH pas3JIKU of] paboTemne
CO IIOBP3aHU JIPyIITBA

- - Pacxoau mo ocHOB Ha Kamaru off paboTemne Co
HETMOBP3aHU JAPYIITBA

- - Pacxomu 1o 0CHOB Ha KypCHH Pa3JIKH off paboTeme
CO HETIOBP3aHH JAPYIITBA

- - JlobuBKa o7 pe1oBHOTO padoreme (201+223+244)-
(204-205+207+234+245)

- - JlobuBKa nipes omanouyBame (246+248) unmn
(246-249)

- - JlaHOK Ha JOOMBKa

- - HETO JJOBUBKA 3A JIEJJOBHATA TOAMHA
(250-252+253-254)

- - [Ipoceuen 6poj Ha BpaOOTEHHU BP3 OCHOBA HAa YAaCOBHU
Ha paboTa BO MPECMETKOBHUOT Neproj (BO ariCOIyTEeH
H3HOC)

- - Bpoj Ha mecenu Ha paboTeme (BO arncoayTeH U3HOC)
- - IOBUBKA/3AT'YBA 3A TTEPUO/]

- - loOuBKa K0ja MM MpHUIiara Ha UMATEIIUTE Ha aKIUH
Ha MAaTUYHOTO APYLITBO

- - BAPABOTYBAUKA T10 AKIINJA
- - Bkynna ocHoBHa 3apaboTyBauka 1o akiyja
- - JloOuBKa 3a roguHaTa

- - Ocranara ceor¢arHa 1001BKa
(273+2754277+279+281+283) -

2.628.315,00

6.435.955,00

639.581,00

639.581,00

175.133,00

5.621.241,00

1.393.649.246,00

1.393.649.246,00
120.275.852,00

1.273.373.394,00

243,00

12,00
1.273.373.394,00
1.273.373.394,00

2.259,00
2.259,00
1.273.373.394,00

10.605.000,00

11.719.674,00

9.026.340,00

576.690,00

576.690,00

21.164,00

8.428.486,00

1.139.526.132,00

1.139.526.132,00
92.366.433,00

1.047.159.699,00

267,00

12,00
1.047.159.699,00
1.047.159.699,00

1.857,00
1.857,00
1.047.159.699,00

9.844.000,00
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(274+276+278+280+282+284)

- - IIpomeHu Ha peBaJIOpU3ALICKUTE PE3EPBHU 32

279 10.605.000,00
HETCKOBHH CPEJICTBA
286 - - Heto ocranara ceondarna nobuska (271-285) 10.605.000,00
-- -
788 Bkymnna ceondarna qo6uBka 3a ronuHara (269+286) 1.283.978.394.00
nmu (286-270)
789 - - CeonaTHa 10OMBKA KOja UM MpHUIIara HA UMATECIIUTE 1.283.978.394.00
Ha aKIM{ HA MAaTUIHOTO JPYIITBO
HpxaBHa eBUICHITH]A
bpyto 3a
O3Haka 3a Oritc Herto 3a TekoBHa TeKOBHA
AOII roavHa
roanHa
625 - - 3emjuiuTa 881.469.670,00
- - HabaBHa BpeAHOCT Ha TpaieyKHU
631 00jEeKTH 0f] BUCOKOTPa10a KOH Ce 2.344.707.737,00
KOPHUCTAT 3a BPIICHE Ha JCJHOCT
- - AKymynupaHa aMmopTH3aIyja Ha
633 IpaJie’)KHU 00jEKTH O] BUCOKOTPaI0a 1.897.925.352,00
KOH C€ KOPUCTAT 3a BPIICHE Ha
JeJHOCT
- - CeraiiHa BpeIHOCT Ha IpaJeKHH
634 00jeKxTH of1 BUCOKOTpaada K'OI/I ce 446.782.385.00
KOPHUCTAT 3a BPIICHE Ha ACJHOCT (<
i = AOIT 012 ox BC)
635 - - HabaBHa BpeaHOCT Ha 00jeKTH 01 242.127.553.,00
HUCKOTpaI0a
637 -- .AKyMmepaHa aMopTH3aIyja Ha 192.416.675,00
00jeKTH 01 HUCKOTpaa6a
- - CeramnrHa BpeTHOCT Ha 00jEKTH O]T
638 Huckorpanba (< wim = AOIT 012 on  49.710.878,00

Hcnpaska
Ha
BpEIHOCTA
3a TEKOBHA
rofiHa

9.844.000,00
9.844.000,00

1.057.003.699,00

1.057.003.699,00

IIperxonna
TOAUHA

874.691.142,00

2.306.444.727,00

1.884.103.076,00

422.341.651,00

232.084.597,00

190.694.388,00

41.390.209,00
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BC)

- - HabaBHa BpeHOCT Ha
639 nH(pOpMaIMCcKa U 8.182.693,00 9.290.575,00
TEJICKOMYHHUKAIIMCKa OTpeMa

- - AKymynupaHa aMmopTH3aIyja Ha
641 nH(popMaIucka u 6.788.114,00 8.566.772,00
TEJICKOMYHHKAIIICKA OIpeMa

- - CerairHa BpeIHOCT Ha
nHpOpMaLUCKa U
TEJICKOMYHHUKAIMCKa onpemMa (< Uiu
=AOIT1 012 on BC)

- - HaGaBna BpenHocCT Ha
KOMIIjyTepcKa ornpema

642 1.394.579,00 723.803,00

643 94.142.009,00 93.781.751,00

- - AKymynupaHa aMOpTHU3aIija Ha

645 .
KOMIIjyTepcKa orpema

76.446.155,00 81.596.654,00

- - CeramrHa BpeIHOCT Ha
646 koMmITjyTepcka omnpeMa (< i = AOIT 17.695.854,00 12.185.097,00
012 on BC)

- - TproBcku KpeauTu U aBaHCU
JIa/ICHU Ha TPrOBCKH JIPYIITBA BO
IIpUBATHA U JIp>)KaBHA COTIICTBEHOCT U
JaBHU TPETNpHjaTHja, BO 3eMjaTa

668 33.075.802,00 13.501.175,00

- - Ocranaru mo6apyBama oJ
TProOBCKM JPYIITBA BO IIPUBATHA U
Ap>KaBHA COTICTBEHOCT U jaBHU
MpeTnpujaTrja, BO 3eMjara

671 4.352.807,00 3.410.708,00

- - OcCHOBHA ITaBHMHA
(COTICTBEHUYKH KaIlWTall) BO aKI[UU
MOCEeAyBaHU Off IPYT'H TPTOBCKU
678 JpYLITBA BO MPUBATHA U Ap>KaBHA 5.815.600,00 5.753.600,00
COTICTBEHOCT M jJaBHU TIPETIpHjaTHja
peructpupanu Bo 3emjara(< og AOII
065 on BC)
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- - OcHOBHA IIaBHUHA
(COTICTBEHMYKH KaIluTall) BO aKI[UU
MoceayBaHu of (pU3NUKH JTHUIIa,
TPTOBIM-TTOCIUHIIN, 3aHACTIHH,
3eMjOIEIIU, CAMOCTOJHH BPIIIUTEIU
Ha JISJHOCT ¥ HENPOUTHH
OpraHMU3aIlK PETUCTPUPAHU BO
3emjara(< og AOIT 065 ox BC)

679 83.340.400,00 84.465.700,00

- - TproBcku KpeAUTH 1 aBaHCH O
TProBCKU APYIITBA BO NPUBATHA U
Ip>KaBHA COTICTBEHOCT M jaBHU
IpeTnpujaTuja, BO 3eMjara

684 22.476.670,00 12.490.248,00

- - Ocranaru 0OBPCKH KOH TPTOBCKH
IpYIITBA BO IPUBATHA U JIP’KaBHA
COTICTBEHOCT W jaBHU NPETIPHjaTHja,
BO 3eMjara

687 29.750.188,00 27.570.637,00

- - Ocranaru 0OBPCKH KOH (PU3NYKH
JIMIA, TPTOBIH-TIOCANHIIH,
3aHACTUUH, 3eM]jOJICIILIU, CAMOCTOJHH
BPIIUTENH HA JICJHOCT U
HENPO(YUTHU OpraHU3aIUU BO
3emjara

689 442.923,00 865.131,00

- - [Ipuxoau on mponaxba Ha
MIPOU3BO/IN, CTOKU U yCIIYTH HA
noMariex nasap (< wiu = AOIT 202
on bBY)

- - [Ipuxonu on mponax0a Ha
IIPOU3BOJAH, CTOKHU U YCIIyI'Y Ha
ctpancku nazap (< miau = AOIT 202
on bY)

- - [Ipuxoau o HaeMHWHA(< WA =
AOIT 202 o BY)

- - [Ipuxonu ox HaeMHHMHA Ha
semjumnte (< win = AOIT 202 ox BY)

692 3.143.136.325,00 2.896.204.669,00

693 1.629.350.750,00 1.504.665.484,00

696 14.750.714,00 16.610.433,00

697 5.115.536,00 5.348.148,00
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699

702

703

710

717

718

720

721

722

723

725

726

727

- - JlobuBKH of mpoaax0a Ha
HEMaTepyjaTHA U MaTepHjaTHU
cpenctra (< win = AOIT 203 on BY)

- - JTo6uBKH 011 TIpoiak0a Ha
Marepujanu (< wiua = AOIT 203 ox
BY)

- - [Ipuxomm o BUIIONH (< HITH =
AOIT 203 o BY)

- - Ocranaru npuxoau of
paboremeto (< mmm = AOII 203 on
bY)

- - Tpomonu 3a cypoBUHH 1
Mmarepujaiu (< win = AOII 208 on
bBY)

- - OrpeB, ropuBO U Ma3uBa(< WU =
AOII 208 o BY)

- - Kannenapucku marepujamu (<
nmu = AOIT 208 oxg BY)

- - Tpomronu 3a ambanaxa (< i =
AOII 208 ox BY)

- - YHu(opmu-3aITUTHA 00JIeKa U
00yBKH

- - Marepujai 3a UUCTEHE U
onpxxyBame (< unu = AOII 208 ox
BY)

- - [lorporena enexTpudHa eHepruja
(< umm = AOII 208 ox BY)

- - [loTponieHu eHepreTcKku ropruba
(<umm = AOII 208 on BY)

- - [loTpomienu pe3epBHU JENOBU U
MaTepHjajy 3a OApKyBame (< WIn =
AOII 208 o BY)

1.227.682,00

102.240,00

12.071.974,00

41.339.268,00

931.403.901,00

21.366.043,00

1.435.990,00

113.272.597,00

5.050.385,00

560.716,00

426.489.927,00

104.152.704,00

66.956.735,00

4.925.874,00

5.590.880,00

13.079.198,00

43.310.806,00

940.430.262,00

11.071.956,00

1.389.340,00

95.561.930,00

4.288.518,00

645.455,00

394.434.835,00

90.886.882,00

42.259.392,00
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728

729

730

731

734

736

742

744

745

746

747

749

- - OTIuc Ha CUTEH UHBEHTAp,
ambaraxxa 1 aBTOrymMHu (BO
npou3BoAcTBO) (< umu = AOIT 208
on bY)

- - TpancnopTHU yCIIyTH BO 3eMjaTa
(<umm = AOII 211 o BY)

- - TpaHCIIOPTHM yCIyTH BO
ctpancTBo (< umn = AOIT 211 ox
BY)

- - IITT ycnyru Bo 3emjata (< wim =
AOII 211 on BY)

- - [Ipon3BOCTBEHN U 3aHACTYHCKH
yeayru (< wim = AOII 211 o BY)

- - HaemHuHM 3a onpema (< wiu =
AOII 211 on BY)

- - EnHOKpareH HaJJOMECTOK BO BH]T
Ha UCTIPaTHUHA 3apaj TPajHO
pabOTHO aHTAXKHUPAHE MO]] YCIOBU
YTBpJEHH €O 3aKkoH (< miu = AOIT
217 on BY)

- - Perpec 3a roguiien onmop (< win
= AOII 217 on BY)

- - [Tomomtu (< mmu = AOIT 217 on
BY)

- - [lojauana ucxpana (< wiu = AOIT
217 on BY)

- - JlneBHUIIM 32 CITyKOE€HU
naTyBama, HOKEBamba U aTHU
tpomonu (< win = AOII 217 on BY)

- - HagomecTtu Ha Tpouonure Ha
BpaOOTEHUTE U TIOJAPOIH (< UK =
AOII 217 og BY)

1.078.742,00

128.134.137,00

69.138.723,00

3.458.640,00

179.824.867,00

7.505.478,00

16.402.618,00

6.835.931,00

1.419.116,00

1.602.718,00

6.659.591,00

9.094.325,00

996.129,00

99.301.065,00

63.354.808,00

2.990.476,00

168.083.680,00

7.000.721,00

9.778.123,00

6.974.520,00

698.511,00

1.779.005,00

9.337.755,00

8.742.466,00
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- - HamomecTu 3a 01BO€H KHUBOT (<

751 1w = AOII 217 o1 BY) 1.391.085,00 1.184.040,00
- - [Tomaporu Ha BpaboTeHuTe (<
752 s = AOTI 217 oz BY) 1.663.222,00 1.709.241,00
- - Tpomonu 3a crioH30pcTBa (< WU
758 — AOII 212 01 BY) 17.892.651,00 8.010.150,00
- - Peripezenranyja (< mwim = AOIT
759 212 0x BY) 9.938.194,00 8.609.884,00
- - [Ipemuu 3a ocurypyBame Ha UMOT
760 (< 1w = AOII 212 o1 BY) 5.280.402,00 5.696.932,00
- - HamomecT 3a 6ankapcku yciayru
761 (< 1 = AOII 212 oz BY) 1.283.388,00 1.048.990,00
- - JlaHOLIM KOM HE 3aBHCAT Of]
762 pesynrarot (< uinu = AOII 212 ox 712.696,00 788.985,00
BY)
- - UneHapuHH Ha 3[py>KE€HH]jaTa BO
764 3emjara u crpancTBo (< wim = AOIT  335.605,00 345.645,00
212 on BY)
- - OcTanaru Tpouony Ha
765 paboremeto (< wm = AOIT 212 og 137.177.092,00 119.821.387,00
BY)
- - Ka3Hu, neHanu HaJIoMECTOLH 3a
766 mTeTd U apyro (< uimm = AOIT 222 30.116,00 7.500,00
on bY)
769 - - Ucrutarenu auBuaeHIu 853.427.400,00 860.287.368,00
770 - - PeunBectupana qo0uBKa 161.817.260,00 263.210.364,00
- - [Ipoceuen 6poj Ha BpaOOTEHU BP3
771 OCHOBa Ha cocrojOara Ha kpajor Ha 249,00 264,00
MeCeloT
CrpykTypa Ha MPUXOIH 10 ACJHOCTH
O3Haka 3a Hero 3a TekopHa DPYTO 32 Hcnpagka Ha [TperxomHa

Onuc
AOII rOMHA TEKOBHA BPEIHOCTA  ronupa
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3a TEKOBHA
roauHa
ronvHa
- 08.11 - Banemwe Ha 1eKOpaTUBEH
2047 KaMEH M KaMEH 32 TPa/IeKHAIITBOTO, 5.073.086,00
BapOBHUK, CypOB THIIC, Kpena u
HIKPHITIA
2048 - 08.12 - Bazeme Ha yakaja U MECOK; 55.400,00
IJIMHA U KAOJIHH
2166 - 23.51 - IIpon3BoACTBO HA IIEMEHT 3.897.277.042,00
2170 - 23.63 - IIpou3BOACTBO Ha TOTOBA 161.364.054.00
OeTOHCKa cMeca
2788 - 35.14 - TproBuja Ha enekTpuyHa 118.493,00

eHepruja

-46.71 - TproBuja Ha TOJIEMO CO
2370 LBPCTH, TEUHU U TACOBUTU FOpPHUBA U 549.742.773,00
CJIMYHU TIPOU3BOIH

- 46.73 - TproBuja Ha TOJIEMO CO JPBa,
2372 rpajie’keH MaTepHjasl U CAaHUTapHA 101.442.242,00
onpema

- 46.77 - TproBuja Ha TOJIEMO CO
OTMAIO0IK U OCTATOIH

2376 2.323.097,00

- 52.21 - YenyXHU 1€JHOCTH IOBP3aHU
CO KOTTHEHHOT IIPEBO3

2431 108.562.225,00

- 64.99 - JIpyru pUHAHCUCKO-YCITYKHH
JIEJHOCTH, OCBEH OCHTYPYBahe U
NEH3UCKH (DOHI0BH, HECIIOMHATH Ha
JPyTO MECTO

2478 13.162.288,00

- 68.10 - KynyBame u npogax0a Ha
COIICTBEH HEABNKCH UMOT

2490 862.860,00

- 68.20 - M3naBame U ynpaByBame CO
COTICTBECH HEJIBH)KCH UMOT HITU
HCABUKCH UMOT 3€MCH I10 3aKYIT

2491 20.452.337,00
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(JT3UHT)

- 82.99 - Ocranary AeJIOBHU ITIOMOIITHA

2545 YCIIYXXHU J€JHOCTH, HECIIOMHATH Ha 72.219.398,00
JIPYro MECTO

IMornumano ox:

Gabriela Barlakoska
gabriela.barlakoska@usje.com.mk
CN=KibsTrust Qualified Certificate Services,
OU=Class 2 Managed PKI Individual
Subscriber CA, OU=Symantec Trust Network,
O=KIBS AD Skopje, C=MK
KibsTrust Qualified Certificate Services

W3jaByBam, moa MopaiHa, MaTeprjaiHa ¥ KpUBHYHA OATOBOPHOCT, JCKa ITOIATOIMUTE BO TOJMIITHATA CMETKA CE TOYHU U BUCTHHHTH.

[TomaroruTe o1 roAUIIIHATA CMETKA CE€ BO MIOCTANKa Ha JOCTaByBamke, Koja Ke 3aBpILHU cO O/UTyKa (0100pyBame/on0uBame) o ctpana Ha LlenTpannuot Perucrap.
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KOHCOJ/IMIUPAHU OBJACHYBAUYKHU BEJIEHIKA

1. OINIITH UHO®OPMAILIUUA 3A IPYIITBOTO

emenrapuura “Ycje” AJl - Ckomje (“dpymrBoTo”) e ocHoBaHO Bo PemyOmnka MakemoHuja, co
peructpupano cemumre Ha bopuc TpajkoBckm 0p.94, Ckomje. JlpymTBOTO 3aKIIyIHO CO
M3BECTYBAuKHUOT mepuon nma eana noapyxkauna, TROJAN CEM EOOD byrapuja Bo 100%
COIICTBEHOCT Ha J{pymTBOTO.

OcHoBHara JejHoCT Ha JIpyImITBOTO € MPOW3BOACTBO M TPrOBHja CO IIEMEHT, yCjeMal, TOTOB
0OCTOH, KIMHKEP W JIPYrH NPOM3BOAM OJ meMeHT. OCHOBHATa JICJHOCT Ha MOJPYXKHHIATA BO
Byrapwuja e ycinyru 3a nmoazpiika Ha npojaaxoara Bo byrapuja.

HpymrBoTo ¢ koHTpoaupano of Titan Cement Netherlands B.V. co cemuiure Bo Xoanauja. Koj
nocenysa 94.84% ox akmuure Ha JpymTBoTo. Bo 2019 ronuna 1ojae 1o mpomMeHa BO MaTUYHaTa
kommanyja Ha pymrBoro. Ox 31 nexemBpu 2019 roguna. MaTiyHa KoMnanyja Ha pymTBoTo €
Titan Cement International S.A. benruja. Ilperxoana matnyna komnanuja oemie ,, TutaH neMeHT™
C.A. - I'puwmja.

Odunujanno ox 1 jymu 2013 romuna , Llementapauna “Ycje” Al - Ckomje cTaHa KOTUPAYKO
IpymTBO Ha MakemoHckara Oep3a (o ommen 3amoiDKUTEIHA KoTairja). Kotupanurte npymraa
UMaaT II0CTOjaHO OOBPCKM Ja I'M 00jaByBaaT CHUTE IICHOBHO YyBCTBUTCIIHH HHGOpPMAIUH,
uHQOpMauK NOTPeOHM 3a MPOLICHKA HAa MOMEHTATHATa COCTOj0a Ha APYLITBATA.

Bpojor Ha Bpaborenum Ha ['pynammjara Ha 31 nekemBpu 2019 romuna e 245 (2018: 258
BpaOOTEHH).

®duHaHCHCKHATE M3BEIITad HA ['pymanujara 3a roguHara IiTo 3aBpinyBa Ha 31 mexemBpu 2019
rojauHa ce omo0peHn oj ctpaHa Ha Oa00poT Ha aupekTopu Ha 26 depyapu 2020 roguna. OBue
(DMHAHCUCKH H3BEIITAaH ce TMpeaMeT Ha oxobpyBame on CoOpaHMETO Ha AaKIHOHEPH Ha

I'pynarujara.
2. OCHOBA 3A IOAI'OTOBKA HA KOHCOJIMJUPAHA I'OJUIIHA CMETKA
Koncommmupanata romumiHa cMetrka Ha llemerntrapuumna Ycje A.JI. - Ckomje W Hej3auHaTa

noapyxuuua (“I'pynanujaTa”) 6ea MOArOTBEHH BO COTNIACHOCT CO 3aKOHOT 3a TPTOBCKH JPYILITBA
(Cnyx06en Becunk Ha PenyOmuka Makemonuja 6poj 28/04 co msmenute 84/05, 25/07, 87/08, 42/10,
48/10, 24/11, 166/12, 70/2013, 119/2013 w 187/2013, 38/2014, 41/2014, 138/2014, 88/2015,
192/2015, 6/2016, 30/2016 u 61/2016) u cmeTkoBoAcTBeHUTE NpuHIUNHU (“MakenoHcku OIICIT”), kou
ce ce BO COIIaCHOCT cO HOBHOT IIpaBMIIHMK 3a BOJEHE HA CMETKOBOJCTBO 00jaBeH Ha 29 IeKeMBpH
2009 rommna (CmyxOen BecHuk Ha PemyOnuka Makemonuja 159/09 u 164/10) mpumennuB ox 1
janyapu 2010 rogmna. OBoj IlpaBHIHMK TH COApPXH @KypUPAaHUTE M COOABETHO NPEBEICHHUTE
MeryHapoHU cTaHIapau 3a (PUHAHCHCKO WM3BECTYBamE T.€. OCHOBHHOT TEKCT Ha MeryHapoHHUTE
CTaHJapau 32 QUHAHCHCKO U3BecTyBame BKiyuyBajku Tv 1 [IKT u KTM®U kako mTo ce o0jaBeHn 0]
ctpana Ha MACDH 3axiryuHo co 1 janyapu 2009 ronuna.

Bo mepuwomor 3akmyuno co 31 gmekemBpu 2009 rogumHa Bo mnpuMmeHa Oea MelyHapoIHHTE
CMETKOBOJICTBEHHU cTaHAapau objaBeHn Bo CmyxOeH BecHHK Ha PemyOnmka MakenoHHja Kako IITO
crenu:
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e PeBuaupanure MeryHapoaHu cMmerkoBoacTtBenu cranmapau, MCC 1 mo MCC 39 Gea
o0jaBenn Ha 30 nexemBpu 2004 roauHa, IPETXOAHUTE CO BAXHOCT o7 5 HoemBpu 1999
rofauHa. J[aTyMOT Ha cTamyBame BO CHJIa Ha CUTE PEBUAMpPAHU cTaHaapmu ¢ 1 janyapu
2005 rommua. Merynapoaaute cmetkoBoacTBenu ctanmapau, MCC 40 u MCC 41 ce
o0jaBeHHU U cramyBaar Bo cuia Ha 1 janyapu 2005 roauna.

e Ha 10 despyapu 2005 roguHa e o0jaBeH MelyHapOIHHOT CTaHAAp] 3a (HUHAHCHCKO
u3BectyBame 1. /latara Ha cranmyBame Bo cuia € 17 despyapu 2005 roauHa.

e Ha 29 nexkemBpu 2005 roauna ce o6jaBeHrn MeryHapoIHUTE CTaHAApIU 38 (PUHAHCHCKO
u3BectyBambe, MCOU 2 no MCOU 7. latymor Ha cramyBame BO cuia € 30 nekeMBpH
2005 roauHa.

MCoU 9, MCOU 10, MCOU 11, MCOPU 12, MCOPU 13, MCPH 15, MCDPU 16, KTMDU 18,
KTM®U 19, KTM®U 20 u KTMOU 21, KTMOU 22 u KTM®U 23 He ce BKIyYEHU BO
[TpaBUITHHUKOT 32 CMETKOBOJICTBO U HE C€ MMPUMEHETH O cTpaHa Ha [ pymanujara.

Konconmuaupanara rogummnba cmetka Ha [pynanmjara Oemie HMOATOTBEHa BpP3 OCHOBA HA MCTOPHUCKA
HaOaBHa BpeaHocT. KoHcommaumpanata rogumiHa cMeTka Ha ['pymanujata ce Npe3eHTHpaHH BO
makenoHcku aeHapu (MKJI) u cute usnocu ce Bo wijaau (‘000) ocBeH ako HEe € TIOMHAKY HAaBE/ICHO.

OcHOBHM 32 KOHCOIHAALM]A

KoHconuaupanata rojuiiHa cMeTKa ce cocTojaT o (DMHAHCHUCKUTE W3BelITan Ha JIpymTBOoTO M
HeroBata nonpyxHarna TROJAN CEM EOOD byrapuja Bo 100% comcteenoct Ha ['pymanmjara.
loguimHaTa cMeTKka Ha TOAPYKHUIATA € MOATOTBEHA 3a WCTAaTa rOJIMHA HAa HM3BECTYBAIE KAKO U
W3BEIITAaNTe Ha MAaTHYHATA KOMITaHUja, KOPUCTEJKH KOH3UCTCHTHH CMETKOBOJICTBEHU MTOUTHKH.

Ucto taka, Ha 28 jynu 2015 roauna ['pynanmjara peructpupa ckiaj Bo ceno OpoBHHK (BO OIM3MHA
Ha rpagot OXpH1) 3a CTPaTEeIIKO MPUCYCTBO Ha CBOUTE MPOMU3BOAM BO jyro3anaJHHOT el Ha 3eMjara.
3a uctara men, Ha 3 ABryct 2017 roguna I'pymanmjara peructpupa ckian Bo buroma, a Ha 11 jyau
2018 roguna peructpupa ckiaza u Bo Ctpymuna. Ckiagot Bo butona 6emie 3aTBopeH Bo janyapu 2018
TOJMHA.

Ha 18 nexemBpu 2017 romuna ['pynanmjara 1o0u IuneHIa 3a TProBuja co eJIEKTpUYHA €Hepruja co
KOja HOCH OJApEJICHU ONTOBOPHOCTH KOH JlpkaBHarta perynatopHa komucuja. Bo 2018 roguna mema
MMOBP3aHU TpaHCAKIUU co jureHmnara. Bo 2019 romguaa camo eqHa TpaHCaKIHja TOBp3aHa CO TProBHja
co enexkTpuyHa enepruja (Buan benemka 31 u 3e).

Cure MEryKOMITAHHUCKH Caijla, TPAHCAKIWW, MPHUXOJA U TPOIIONH M JOOMBKHM M 3aryoWm KO
MPOU3JIeTyBaar O] TPAaHCAKIIMUTE BO paMKUTE Ha ['pynarujara, a Kou ce eBUIACHTUPAaT KaKo CPEelICTBa
uenocHo ce enmuMubupand 3a TROJAN CEM EOOD Byrapuja 3aknyuno co 31 mekemspu 2019
roquHa. [loapyxHUIaTa € ETOCHO KOHCOJNUANPAaHa Of TaTyMOT Ha MPEB3EMamET0, KOj BCYIIHOCT €
JaTyM Ha koj ['pymamujata ja cTekHama KOHTpOJaTa, W MPOJOJDKYBAa Ja c€ KOHCOJIHIUpA Ce JIO
JATYMOT JI0 KOj TaKBaTa KOHTPOJIA K€ TIOCTOH.

3. 3HAYAJHU CMETKOBOJICTBEHMU IIOJIMTUKHN

a. BiaoxkyBamwa BO NOAPYKHULH

[MonmpyXHUIIM ce CUTE EHTUTETH BO Koum JIpymTBOTO MMa MOK Ja Blajgee co (UHAHCUCKHUTE W
OTIEpaTHBHHUTE TOJHMTHUKH, TJIABHO IPOIpPAaTEHa CO COICTBEHOCT Ha TOBEKE OJf €JHa MOJOBHHA OJ
rracaykute mpaBa. [loctoemero u eDEeKTOT Oj MOTCHIWjaTHHWTE TJacadykd IpaBa KOW INTO BO
MOMEHTOT C€ Ha paclojiarame WM MaK MOXaT Ja ce KOHBepTHUpaaT ce 3eMaaT BO NPEABHI IPH
YTBpAyBame Janu J[pymTBoTO NMa KOHTPOJIA HaJl eHTUTETOT.
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0. OnepaTHBHH CerMeHTH

OrmnepaTHBHUTE CETMEHTH CE KOMIIOHEHTH KOM CE€ aHT)XUpaaT BO JIIOBHOTO PabOTEHEe KOM MOXKAT Ja
3apaboTaT MPHUXOIM W KOM IMPEAN3BHKYBaaT TPOIIOIH, KOW OIEPATUBHU PE3YNTaTH CE PEIOBHO
CIICICHH OJ] CTpaHa HA pPAaKOBOJICTBOTO M 32 KOM (UHAHCHCKM HH(OpMAIMK Cce€ JOCTaITHH.
PakoBoICTBOTO € JMIle WIM Tpyla Ha JMIA KOM aJloUUpaaT pPecypcd M KOW TH TPOICHYBaat
nepdopmancute Ha [pynanmjara.

OyHKIMHUTE HAa PAaKOBOJCTBOTO C€ M3BPIIYBaaT o]l cTpaHa Ha bopaot Ha nupektopu Ha ['pynanujara.
WnTepHOTO M3BECTyBame BO paMKuTe Ha I'pymanmjata Koe ce mpe3eHTHpa Ha PakoBOACTBOTO € Ha
HUBO Ha [pynamujata Kako eJeH olepaThBeH cerMeHT. OMIyKHTe [OHECeHH Of CTpaHa Ha
PakoBoacTBoTO ce 6a3upaHy Ha IPUMEHHU M3BEIITaN NPE3CHTUPAHU KaKO €/IeH ONepaTHBEH CErMEHT.

B. [IpeBenyBame Ha CTPAHCKHU BAJIYTH

I'pynanmjata M mNOArOTBYBAa ()MHAHCHUCKUTE W3BEIUTaH BO MAaKEAOHCKH JIeHapH, KOU ce
(yHKIIMOHAIHA M TIpe3eHTUpadKa BalyTa Ha [pymanujara 3a JIOKQIHU 3aKOHCKH ToTpedu. Cekoj
eHtuter BO [pynammjara omnpeaendyBa corcTBeHa (YHKIMOHAIHA BallyTa M EJIEMEHTUTE Ha
(MHAHCHCKHTE M3BEIITAaH 32 CEKOj CHTHTET CE MepaT KOPUCTEJKH ja Taa BalyTa.

TpaHcaknuuTe BO CTPAHCKHA BaIyTH WHHIIMjATHO C€ €BUJICHTHpaaT BO (PyHKHOHAIHA BalyTa IIO
KypCOT KOj € Ba)KeUKHM Ha JEHOT Ha TpaHcakuujara. MOHeTapHUTE W HEMOHETapHHUTE CPEACTBa U
00BpCKH IEHOMHUHHMPAaHU BO CTPAHCKHU BAJIYTH CE€ CBEACHU BO (DYHKLUMOHAIHATA BaJlyTa 10 KypC KOj €
Ba)KEUKHU HA JIaTyMOT Ha U3BecTyBame. CUTe pa3IMKy ce IPEHECeHH BO OMJIAaHCOT Ha yCIIeX.

OyHKIMOHATHUTE BATYTH Ha CTpaHCKuTe omeparun, Tpojan Llem - Byrapuja e eBpo. Ha cexoj matym
Ha U3BECTYBame, CPEeICTBaTa U OOBPCKHUTE Ha OBaa MOJPY)KHHUIA CE CBEICHM NPEKY KOHBEp3Wja Ha
€Bpa BO BajyTaTa Ha mnpe3eHTupame Ha [lementapuuna YCJE A/l (MakemoHCKH JigHap) MO KypC KOj
BaXH HA JJaTYMOT Ha u3BecTyBameuvawe (2019: 61,4856 3a 1 EUR; 2018: MK/ 61,4950 3a 1 EUR), a
HETOBHOT OWJIAHC Ha YCIIEX € CBEJICH I10 MOHepHupaH npocedeH rogumeH kype (2019: MKD 61,5200
3a 1 EUR; 2018: MK]J] 61,5137 3a 1 EUR). KypcHute pa3iuku Kou pou3JIeryBaar 0Ji OBa CBEIyBambe
ce MpEeHeceHH AYypeKTHO BO ocTaHara ceomndarHa poouska. [Ipu mpomaxba Ha CTPAaHCKHOT €HTHTET
KyMYJIATUBOT O]l OBHE Da3iIMKH IPU3HATH BO OcTaHata ceondarTHa IOOMBKAa KOj ce OJHEecyBa Ha
COOJIBETHHOT CTPAHCKH EHTUTET CE MPHU3HaBa BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIeX.

r. HepBmkHOCTH, MOCTPOjKH U onpemMa

HensmkHOCTH, TOCTPOJKH U OIIpEMa, Ce €BHISHTHPAAT KaKo IITO CIIEIH:

= 3a cpencrtBata HabaBeHH 1m0 31 mekemBpu 1998 roamHa, peBajopu3amnmjaTa HalpaBeHa BO
cormacHoct co mperxomaute OIICII, Ha gatymoT Ha npudakame Ha MCDP ox ctpana Ha
I'pynanmjara (1 janyapu 2004 roguna) e nmpudareHa Kako MPETIOCTaBEeH TPOIIOK OWICjKH
peBasiopu3anujara Oele IpruOJMKHO ¢IHaKBa Ha TPOIIOKOT 3a amopTu3aiuja criopeq MCDOP
KOpPETrHpaH 3a MopacToT Ha MHAEKCOT Ha [IEHH HA HHAYCTPUCKHUTE MPOU3BOTUTEIH.

= (CpencrtBata HabaBenu 1o 31 mexemBpu 1998 romuHa ce eBuaeHTHpaaT 10 HabaBHA BPEIHOCT
HAMaJICHW 3a aKyMyJiMpaHaTa aMOpTH3allija W TOCIEIOBATCITHUTE aKyMyJIUpaHH 3aryou
nopaau 00e3BpICHYBabE.

HabaBkute ce eBupeHTHpaaT 1o HabaBHa BpenHocT. HaGaBHaTa BpeIHOCT MpETCTaByBa HaOaBHA IICHA
on n00aByBauoT 3aeHO CO CHUTE TPOIIONM HACTaHATH IMPU CTaBake BO yNOoTpeba HAa HOBaTa
HEJBMXKHOCT, TIOCTPOjKa U OIpeMa.
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CraBkUTe Ha HEIBW)KHOCTH, TOCTPOJKM M OINpeMa KOW ce€ OTNHIIYBaaT WM OTTylyBaaT ce
eIMMUHMPAaT O] M3BEIUTAjOT 3a (HUHAHCHCKA COCTOj0a, 3aeAHO CO COOJBETHATa aKyMyJHMpaHa
amoprtuzanuja. JJoOuBKuTe MM 3aryOuTe O] OTYlyBameTO ce ONpeAeiayBaaT CoO CIOpelyBame Ha
MIPUXOJIOT CO CMETKOBOJCTBEHATa BpEeIHOCT. THe ce BKIIydyBaaT BO JOOMBKAaTa WM 3ary0arta.

AMopTu3anjaTa Ha HEABIDKHOCTHUTE, MOCTPOJKUTE M ONpeMaTa € YTBPACHA 3a Ja Ce OTIHIIE
Ha0aBHATa BPEIHOCT WJIM IPOICHETaTa BPEIHOCT HA HEIBM)KHOCTHTE, ITOCTPOJKUTE M OMpeMaTa Bp3
OCHOBA Ha MPaBO-IPOMNOPIIHMOHAIHA METOJ[a BO TEKOT Ha MPOIIEHETHOT KOPHUCEH BEK Ha ynorpeda Ha
cpeacraara.

OcCHOBHUTE AMOPTHU3allMOHU CTAIIKKU CC€ CIICAHUTEC!:

3rpaau 2,5-10%
Omnpema 5-25%

3emjara ce eBUICHTUPA BO M3BEIITAjOT 3a (PMHAHCHUCKA COCTOj0a 10 HabaBHATA BPEIHOCT HaMaJicHa 3a
HCIIPaBKHUTE TIOpaan OO0E3BpEIHYBA-¢ W HE CE aMOPTH3Hpa, OWIEJKH Ce IMPETIOCTaByBa Jieka WMa
HCOTPaHUYCH BEK Ha Tpack-e¢, OCBEH 3a PYAHMIIUTE KOM CE€ aMOPTU3MpPaaT BP3 OCHOBA Ha CTCICHOT Ha
ucnprieHoct. VcrpreHocra ce eBUISHTHPA KaKO MPOLEC HA MAaTEPHjaTHO U3BIEKYBakhE, a CE KOPUCTH
METOJOT Ha €IMHHUIIA HA IIPOU3BOJICTRO.

MCTOZ[I/ITC Ha aMOpTI/I3aLII/Ija, KOpHUCHHUOT BCK Ha yHOTpe6a " pe3uyajiHata BpCIHOCT Ha CPCACTBATa
CC MPCOIICHYBaaT Ha CCKOj JAaTyM Ha U3BCCTYBabC.

. BnomyBa}ba BO HCABMIKHOCTH

BrnoxyBamaTa BO HEJBM)KHOCTH, IJIABHO CE COCTOM OJ 3€MjHUILTE, IPOU3BOIHU O0JEKTU CO JEJIOBHU
KaHLeIapul U TpajeskeH 00jeKT - pecTopaH U KadeKyBapHHUIIa KOM HEMaaT CBOja HAMEHaA, U CE YyBaaT
3a JIOJTOPOYHO H3HAjMyBamkbe€ M HE Ce KOpHucTaT of crpaHa Ha I'pymamnujara. BioxyBamara BO
HEJBIDKHOCTHU CE BOJAT 10 (ep BPEAHOCT, OHOCHO T1a3apHa, Koja TH OJpa3yBa Ma3apHUTE YCIOBH Ha
JCHOT Ha u3BecTyBame. J[OOMBKMTE MM 3aryOMTe KOM NpOH3JIeryBaaT O IPOMEHHUTE BO ¢ep
BpPEIHOCTa Ha BIOXKYBamaTa BO HEJBIKHOCTH C€ COCTABEH Jell Ha OMIAHCOT Ha yCIeX BO IEPHOAOT
BO KOj UCTUTE HACTAaHYBaaT, BKIYYyBajKu I'M M COOJBETHHTE JaHOYHU edektu. [lazapHaTta BpemaHOCT
ce oJpeayBa Ha OCHOBA Ha IMPOLEHKA CIPOBEAEHA OJf HE3aBHCHHU NPOLEHHUTENIN KOM T'O KOpHCTAT
METOOT Ha NPUXOJU M MOJAEJIOT Ha Ma3apHU YCJIOBM KaKO OCHOBHHM MOJENH Ha MPOLIEHKU KOW ce
ommro npudarenn Bo EBporickara npakca.

BroxyBamaTta BO HEABMKHOCTH C€ JIETIPU3HABAAT Kora ke OWmaT OTTYI'€HH WM KOTa THE TPajHO Ke
Ommar moBJeUYeHH OX ymoTpeba, a WaHA €KOHOMCKAa KOPHCT HE ce OYeKyBa OJ HHUBHATa Ipojaxoa.
Paznukara momery HETO MPUIIMBUTE OJ MPOAaX0a M CMETKOBOJCTBEHATA BPEAHOCT Ha CPEJICTBOTO CE
MpU3HaBa BO OWJIAHCOT Ha yCIIEX BO MEPHUOIOT KOTra CPEICTBOTO € JIENPU3HACHO.

[IpeHocoT BO WM 0Of BIIOXKYBamba BO HEJBM)KHOCTH C€ MPaBH KOra MMa NMPOMEHa BO ymoTpebaTa Ha
CPEACTBOTO. 3a MPEHOC O] BJIOXYBamkE€ BO HEJBUXKHOCT BO CPEICTBO KOE C€ KOPHUCTH O]l CTpaHa Ha
I'pymanujara, HabaBHaTa BPEIHOCT BO IOCJICIOBaTEIHATA CBUICHIIM]ja HA CPEICTBOTO € 00jeKTHBHATA
BPEIHOCT HAa TOA CPEACTBO HA JATYMOT KOTa € HaIlpaBeH MPEHOCOT.

JIOKOIIKy CcpelcTBO KOe ce KOPUCTH O] cTpaHa Ha ['pynammjara ce mpeHece BO BIOXYBamba BO
HEJIBWKHOCTH, BpENHOCTAa HA TOa CPEJCTBO CE€ YTBPIyBa BO COMIACHOCT CO TMOJIUTHKATa 32
HEABWXHOCTH, TIOCTPOjKH U OIIpeMa 10 JaTyMOT KOra € HalpaBeH npeHocoT. [ pymanujara Tpeba aa ja
TpeTHpa CeKoja pasivKa Ha AaTyMOT IOMely CMETKOBOJCTBEHATa BPEAHOCT Ha HEIBMKHOCTHTE BO
cornacHoct co MCC 16 u HuUBHaTa 00jeKTHBHA BPETHOCT, HA UCT HAYMH KaKO W peBaJiopHu3alyjaTa BO
cornacHoct co MCC 16.
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r. CpencTBa 3a HCTPaxKyBame U BpeHYBame

Uznaronure 3a UCTpaKyBame M BpEJHYBame (reorpadcki Bp3aHO 3a KOHIIECHjaTa, J03BOJIaTa WIN
omobpeHaTa pynapcka JMIEHIA) e KAMUTAIM3UPaaT W Ce MPU3HABAAT KaKO CPEJICTBO JOKOJIKY €
OJUTYYEHO OJ1 CTpaHa Ha PaKOBOJACTBOTO JIeKa PYAAPCKUTE aKTHBHOCTH €KOHOMCKH CE OMpaBIaHU U
MOXeE JIa Ce pa3BUjaT 3a KOMEPIIHjaTHO TIPOU3BOICTBO. Ha KpajoT Ha MeproioT Ha U3BECTYBakE, OBUE
TPOIIONM TH BKIIydyBaaT TPOIIOIUTE 3a CTEKHYBal€ HA KOHIECHM 3a JCTAIHU TEeOJIOIIKA
ucTpaxkyBama. CuTe IPYrH U3AATOLH 3a UCTPAXKYBAhE U BPEIHYBAME Ce MPU3HABAAT KAKO TPOIIOK BO
OMIIAaHCOT Ha yCex BO MOMCHTOT Ha HUBHOTO HAaCTaHYBambC.

AJIMUHUCTPATUBHUTE M OIIITH TPOLIOIM TMOBP3aHU CO HCTPAXyBawmaTa WU BpEJIHyBamaTa Ce
NpPU3HABAAT KAKO TPOIIOIHX BO OMIAHCOT HA yCIeX BO MOMEHTOT HA HUBHOTO HACTaHYBAmbE.

e. ®UHAHCHCKN HHCTPYMEHTH - HHAULMjaJTHO IPU3HABAaK:e M MOCJIe0BATE/HO Mepemhe

DUHAHCHCKH CPEICTBA

Unuyujanno npusnasarve

Cnopen MCC 39, dbwuHaHCHCKHTE CpencTBa ce KiacudummpaaT Kako (DMHAHCHCKH CpEACTBa IO
00jeKTHBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy MOOMBKAaTa WM 3ary0bara, 3aeMH W MM0oOapyBama, MHBECTHITHN KOU CE
YyyBaaT JI0 JIOCIICBame, (PMHAHCHUCKH CpPEJCTBA PACIIONIOKIMBH 3a TMpojakda WM JepUBATUBU
OTIpeJIeJICHN KaKO XE[IMHT HHCTPYMEHTH BO e(eKTHBEH XelHHT, cooABeTHO. [ pynanujata ja yTBpayBa
knacupukanjata Ha (UHAHCUCKUTE CPEJICTBA IMPH WHUIMjATHOTO TpH3HaBamke. DUHAHCHCKHTE
CpelCTBA WHUIIMjaJTHO C€ MpH3HABaaT 1O OOjeKTHBHA BPEJHOCT IUIYC JUPEKTHO TIOBP3aHUTE
TPaHCAKIIMOHU TPOIIIOIH, BO CITy4aj KOra BJIOXYBamara C€ BpEAHYBaaT M0 BPEIHOCT KOja € pa3linvHa
o OO0jeKTHMBHATa BPEIHOCT NpeKy Jjo0uBka wiM 3aryba. HaOaBkata win mnpojaxkbata Ha
(hMHAHCHCKUTE CPEeNICTBA KOM MOApa30rpaaT UCIIOpaka Ha CPEACTBA BO BPEMEHCKHU MIEPUO]T YTBPACH CO
MpaBHA peryJjaTHBa WIH Na3apHa crorojda (peJoBeH HAYMH Ha Ha0aBKa) ce MPU3HABAaT HA JTaTyMOT
Ha TpaHCakIyjaTa T.e. JaTyMOT Ha Koj [ pymanujara ce 0OBp3yBa Jja KyIH WIH TPOJIaJie CPEICTBO.

DuUHAHCHCKUTE CpelncTBa Ha I'pymanmjaTa BKIydyBaaT MapH W HNapUYHU CPEICTBA U KPATKOPOUHHU
JETI03UTH, T00apyBama 0J1 KyIyBayHl U OCTaHATH M00apyBamba.

THocneoosamennu meperna

ITocnenoBarenanTe Mepema Ha (PUMHAHCUCKUTE CpPEACTBA 3aBHCAT OFf HUBHATA KiacH(UKallrja, Kako
IITO CIIE/H:

DUHAHCHCKH CPE/ICTBA EBUICHTHPAHU MO 00jeKTHBHA BPETHOCT MPeKy T00UBKA HJIN 3aryoa

OHUHAHCUCKH CpEACTBA EBHIACHTUPAaHU IO OOjEeKTUBHA BPEAHOCT TpeKy NOOMBKa WM 3aryba
BKITy4yBaaT (MHAHCHCKU CPECTBA PACIOIOXKIIMBH 32 TPryBamke W (UHAHCUCKH CPEJICTBA YTBPACHU
TIPY MHUIIN]ATHOTO TIPHU3HABALE TT0 00jEKTHBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy J0OUBKa MM 3aryoa. OHHAHCHCKUTE
cpeAcTBa ce KiIacH(pUUIUpaHH KaKO DPAacHONOKIIMBH 3a TpPryBame OOKOJNKY ce HabaBaT co IIel
npogakba Bo Onmucka wuanmHa. OBaa Kareropuja TW BKJIy4YyBa (DHMHAHCUCKUTE WHCTPYMCHTH -
JIEpUBATHBU KOW HE TH HCIIOJHYBAaaT KPUTEPUYMHUTE 32 yrmoTpeda BO CMETKOBOJICTBO Ha XEUHUHT KaKO
mro e npepunupano Bo MCC 39. I'pynamujata Hema omnpeneiceHo (QUHAHCHUCKH CPEICTBa 10
00jeKTHBHA BPEJHOCT NpeKy AO0OMBKa WK 3aryoa.

3aemu n nodapyBama

3aemMuTe u TMOOapyBamara ce HEJACPUBATUBHHU (DUHAHCHCKH CPEJICTBA CO (PMKCHU WM YTBPIJIUBH
IUlakama, KOM He KOTHpaaT Ha aKTHBHUOT mazap. OBHEe (UHACHUCKH CPEICTBA CE CBEIyBaaT IO
aMopTH3upaHa Ha0aBHA BPEIHOCT CO KOPUCTEH-¢ Ha METOJ Ha e(EeKTHBHA KamaTHa CTarka.
JloOuBkHTEe W 3aryOuTe Cce MpH3HABaaT BO OWJIAHCOT Ha YCIEX BO MOMEHTOT KOTa 3acMHUTE U
nobapyBamaTa ce aHyJIMpaar Wi UM ce HaMallyBa BPeJHOCTa IOPai 00e3BpeIHYBakhe, KAKO H MPEKY
MIPOIIECOT Ha aMOpTHU3aIHja.
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B.]'IO)KyBaH)a KOH C¢ YyBaaT /10 J0CI¢eBambE

HenepuBatuBHHUTE (PUHAHCUCKU CPEACTBA CO (DUKCHU MM OMPECICHHU TJiakama U CO (PUKCEH JaTyM
Ha JIOCTeBambe ce Kiacu(UIMpaaT Kako BJIOKYBamkba KOWM CE YyBaaT 0 JOCIEBAambe, TOKOJIKY
I'pynamjata ¥Ma HaMepa ¥ MOXKHOCT Ja TH 4YyBa 0 JOCIEBame. 110 MHHUIMJATHOTO MEpeme,
BJIOKYBamaTa KOU CE 4yBaar J0 JOCIEBame Ce BPEIHYyBaaT Mo aMOPTU3UpaHa HaOaBHA BPEIHOCT CO
KOPHUCTEH¢ Ha MeToJaTa Ha e(eKTHBHA KamaTHa cTamka. OBOj METOA KOPHUCTH e(peKTHBHA KamMaTHa
cTamKa Koja Mperu3Ho T JUCKOHTHPA MPOLCHETHTE UIHHU MapUYHH IPUIHBHA HU3 0OYEKYBAaHUOT BEK Ha
(UHAHCHUCKOTO CPEACTBO 10 HETO CMETKOBOJCTBEHATa BPEIHOCT Ha (PUHAHCHCKOTO CPEICTBO.
JlobuBKHTE U 3ary0UTe ce €BUIACHTHUPAAT BO OMJIAHCOT HA yCIeX BO MOMEHTOT KOTa BIIOXKYBarmbara ce
aHyJIMpaaT WIM UM Ce HamajayBa BpPEIHOCTA Mopaau 00e3BpeIHYBame, KaKO M HU3 MPOLECOT Ha
aMopTH3alyja.

I'pymanujata Hema BIIOKYBama KOM TH UyBa IO JIOCIIEBaEkE¢ BO TOAMHUTE INTO 3aBpIryBaar Ha 31
nexemBpH 2019 roguna u 2018 roauHa.

DOUHAHCUCKH cpeacrBa pacCnmoJjoKJIuBH 3a nponamﬁa

OUHAHCHUCKU CPEJICTBA PACIIONIONKIIMBY 32 MPOJaK0a ce HEeJePUBATUBHY (DMHAHCHUCKHU CPEJICTBA KOU ce
OTIpe/ICNICHN KaKO PACIOJIOKIIUBU 33 Tpoaax0da WM He ce KIACH(PUIMPAHH BO MPETXOJHUTE TPH
kareropur. 1o MHHIIUjATHOTO Mepeme, (UHAHCUCKHTE CPEJCTBa PACIIONOXKIIMBH 32 Mpoaaxda ce
MepaT 1Mo OOjeKTHBHa BPEAHOCT CO CBHJCHTHPAE HA HEpeaJn3WpaHuTe NOOMBKH WIH 3aryOu
EBUJICHTUPAHH JUPEKTHO BO KAIUTAJIOT CE€ JIOJIEKa BIOXKYBAKETO € aHYJIUPAHO, KOra KyMyJIaTUBHATA
MoOWBKa WM 3ary0a €BHJCHTHpaHa BO KAlMTAIOT CE NMPU3HABA BO OWJIAHCOT HA YCIEX, WK €
YTBpAEHO 00€3BpeHyBame, KOra KyMyJlaTUBHAaTa 3ary0a eBHICHTHPaHA BO KallUTAJIOT Ce NMpPHU3HAaBa
BO OMJIAHCOT Ha yCIIeX.

I'pynarujata HeMa BJIOKYBamba PACIONOXIIMBY 3a MPOAaX0a BO TOJUHUTE MITO 3aBpIIyBaaT Ha 31
nexemBpH 2019 roguna u 2018 roauna.

JenpusnaBame

®duHaHCHUCKUTE CPeNCTBa (WU, JOKOJKY € COOIBETHO el O (PMHAHCHUCKO CPEACTBO WIIHM JIEN O
rpyna Ha CJIMYHU (PMHAHCUCKU CPEACTBA) CE JECNPU3HABAAT JIOKOJIKY:
- MPaBOTO 3a MPHEM Ha MAPUYHU MPHIHBH O] CPEIICTBOTO € HCTEUCHO; HITH
- TI'pymanujara ru uma npedpiieHo CBOHWTE TpaBa 3a NMPUEM Ha MAPUYHU TPUITUBYU BO [EIIOCEH
U3HOC 0€3 3Ha4ajHO OJUI0KYBamkhE Ha TPETO JIUIIE MPEKY ,,apaHKMaH! HAa TIOCPETHUK Y WITH
(a) I'pynamujara mMa mnpedpiicHO 3HAYUTENICH JEN Off CUTC PU3BHIM M KOPUCTH O]
cpenctBoro, win (0) I'pynanujara Hema npedpiieHO HUTY 3aAPKaHO 3HAUUTEIICH JEN O]
CUTE PU3UIU U KOPHUCTHU OJ] CPEACTBOTO, HO ja MMa IpedpIIeHO KOHTPOIIaTa Ha CPEeICTBOTO.

HamasyBame Ha BpeJHOCTA MOPaaH 00e3BpeHyBame

I'pymarujata Ha CEKOj JaTyM Ha H3BECTYBamE YTBPAYBA JalM IOCTOM OOjeKTHBEH J0Ka3 JeKa
(DMHAHCHCKOTO CPEACTBO WM Ipyna Ha (UHAHCHCKHA CpejicTBa ce 00e3BpenHeTH. DUHAHCHUCKOTO
CPE/ICTBO WM TpyMa Ha (DMHAHCHUCKHU CPEACTBA Ce cMeTa 3a 00e3BPEIHETO aKo, M CaMO aKo, OCTOH
00jeKTHBCH JI0Ka3 3a HaMallyBambe Ha BPEIHOCTA MOPaaIn 00e3BpeHYBamhEe KaKO PE3y/ITaT Ha €CH HiIH
MOBeke HACTAHW KOW HACTaHyBaaT 10 WHUIMjATHOTO MPHU3HABAE HA CPEICTBOTO (,,HACTAH Ha
3ary0a”) W TOj HacTaH 3a 3ary0a WMa BIHjaHHE HAa TPOICHETHTE WIHU MAPUYHU TPWINBH Ha
(MHAHCHUCKOTO CPEICTBO WIIM Ha rpyna Ha (UHAHCHCKHA CPEICTBA KOM MOXE CO CHT'YPHOCT Ja Ce
nporieHaT. J[oka3oT 3a 00e3BpeAHyBakbe MOXKE Ja BKIyuyyBa HMHIAMKATOPH JeKa JODKHHUIIUTE MU
rpyna Ha JO/DKHHUIIM C€ COOYyBaaT CO 3HAYMTEIIHU (PMHAHCHCKH TPOOJIIEMH, HEHCIONHYBAmbe Ha
00BpCKHUTE 3a MCIIJIaTa Ha KamaTa WJIM Bpakame Ha IIaBHUIIATa, BEPOjaTHOCTA JeKa ke o0jaBar creyaj
win Jpyra (UHAHCUCKA peopraHu3alyja M KaJie IITO TOCTOjaT BUIJIMBH HMHIMKALMU 32 MEPIHBO
HaMajyBamke Ha MPOICHETUTEC WIHU MapUYHM TEKOBH, KaKO INTO Ce MPOMEHH BO o0JiacTa Ha
C€KOHOMCKHTE YCJIOBH KOH JIOBEyBaar JI0 HEyCIieX.
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3aryba mopagud oO0e3BpelHyBamke BO OJHOC Ha (DMHAHCUCKUTE CpPEJACTBA BpPEIHYBAaHH 110
aMOPTHU3AI[MOHEH TPOIIOK C€ NPEeCMETyBaaT Kako pa3jihka I[oMely HHBHAaTa CMETKOBOJICTBEHA
BPEIHOCT W CEralllHaTa BPEAHOCT HA TNPOICHETUTEC WIHHM TMapU4YHM MPWIUBU JIUCKOHTHpaHa IO
opurnHaimHa e(eKkTHBHA KamaTHa cTanka. [loeJMHEYHWUTEe 3HAYMTEIHM (PUHAHCHUCKU CpeJCcTBa ce
TECTHpaaT 3a HaMallyBaleé Ha BpPEJHOCTa TOpagu o0e3BpelHyBame MmoeaquHedHo. (OcTaHaTHTE
(hMHAHCUCKHU CpEJCTBAa CE MPOILEHYBAaaT 3a¢IHO BO TPYNH KOM MMaaT CIMYHU KapaKTEPUCTHKU BO
BpPCKa CO KPEAUTHUOT PU3HK.

Cure 3arybm mopamu o0Oe3BpeIHYBame CE MPHU3HABAaT BO OMIAHCOT Ha ycmeX. 3arybara mopamd
00e3BpeTHYBakbC MOXKE Ja Ce aHyJHupa JOKOJIKY MOXKE€ O0jeKTHBHO Jla C€ IOBp3€ CO HACTAHOT IO
MIPHU3HABAKETO Ha 3arybara mopaau o0e3BpeHyBamke. 3a (PMHAHCUCKUTE CPENICTBA KOU CE BpEAHYBaaT
M0 aMOpTU3MpaHa HabaBHA BPEIHOCT, aHYJIMPAKHETO CE MTPU3HABA BO JOOMBKATA WM 3ary0arta.

DUHAHCHCKH 00BPCKH

Huuyujanno npusnasarve

Crnopen MCC 39, dunaHcuCKHTE OOBpPCKH ce Kiaacuduimpaar Kako (UHAHCHCKH OOBPCKH 110
00jeKTHBHA BPEAHOCT MPEKy NOOMBKA WM 3ary0a, Kako 3aeMU W IM033jMHUIU WIA KaKO JCPUBATHBH
KOM CIIy’)KaT KaKO XEUHHI WHCTPYMEHTH cO e(eKTUBeH XEeUWHr, COOJBETHO. [pymanujara ja
ompeJieNyBa KilacupukanyjaTa Ha (QHUHAHCUCKUTE OOBPCKM TPH WHHUIMjATHOTO TPU3HABAME.
®duHaHCHCKUTE OOBPCKM WHHIIMjaTHO CE€ MpH3HABaaT MO OOjeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT, IUIYC JIUPEKTHO
MOBP3aHUTE TPOIIOIH HA TPAHCAKIIMjaTa JOKOJIKY CE€ KIIaCU(UITUPAAT KaKO 3a€MH U 11033 MHUIIH.

OdunaHcucKkUTEe OOBpCKM Ha [pynammjara BKIydyBaaT OOBPCKH CIpemMa J00aByBadWTe W JIPYTH
00BpCKH.

THocnedosamento meperve

MepeH,eTo Ha (bHHaHCHCKI/ITe 06BpCKI/I 3aBHCH OJf HUBHATa K.]'IaCI/I(bI/IKaL[I/Ija KakKoO IITO CICOU:

DUHAHCHCKH 00BPCKH eBHIECHTHPAHHU MO 00jeKTUBHA BPEIHOCT MpPeKy A00MBKa WJIH 3aryda

DOUHAHCUCKATE OOBPCKHM CBUICHTHUPAHW II0 OOjEKTHBHA BPEIHOCT MPEKy no0MBKAa WM 3aryba
BKITy4yBaaT (MHAHCHCKH OOBPCKH PACIIONIOXKIIMBY 32 TPTyBame U (PUHAHCUCKH OOBPCKHU OJPEICHU 110
00jeKTHBHA BPETHOCT MPEKYy JAOOWBKA WM 3ary0a MpH WHUIMjaTHOTO Mpu3HaBame. DUHAHCUCKUTE
00BpCcKH ce Kiacu(puIupaaT Kako pacIoOJIOKIMBH 33 TPryBame JIOKOJIKY C€ Ha0aBeHH CO Iel
nponax6a Bo Omucka uaHuHA. OBaa KaTteropuja BKIy4yBa JCPUBATUBHYU (PUHAHCHCKHA WHCTPYMECHTH
KOM HE T'M HUCIHOJHYBaaT CMETKOBOJCTBEHUTE YCIOBHM 3a XeUWHr ompeneneHu cropenq MCC 39.
JloOuBkuTe M 3aryouTe off OOBPCKUTE KOW C€ UyBaaT 3a TPryBame Ce MpH3HABaaT BO OMJIAHCOT Ha
ycnex. ['pynanujara Hema ojpe/ieHo (GHUHAHCHCKM OOBPCKHU 10 00jeKTUBHA BPEAHOCT MPEKY A00MBKA
WM 3aryoa.

3aemMu U no3ajMuM

[To wHUIIMjaTHOTO MPHU3HABAKHE, KAMATOHOCHUTE 3a€MHU M T03ajMHIIM MOCICIOBATEIIHO CE MEpaT HU3
NpoIecoT Ha HUBHA aMOPTH3alldja CO KOPUCTEHhE Ha MeToJl Ha e(eKTHBHA KamaTHa CTallka.
JloOuBKHTE U 3aryOuTe Ce MPU3HABAAT BO OMJIAHCOT HAa YCIEX Kora OOBPCKHTE CE aHyJIHMpaar, Kako U
HU3 TIPOIIECOT Ha HUBHA aMOPTHU3aIlH]a.

Je-npuzHaBame

duHaHcHCcKaTa 00BpCKa ce Jie-PU3HaBa Kora 3aJI0JDKEHHETO 32 00BpCKaTa € OJMUPEHO, MOHUIITEHO
WM TIPECTaHyBa Ja BAXH.
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Kora mocroeuka ¢uHaHCcHCKa OOBpCKa € 3aMEHETa CO JIpyra oj MCT 3acMoJaBaTell Mo 3HAYUTEITHO
MOPa3JIMYHU YCIIOBH, WU MaK yCJAOBUTE HA MOCTOCUYKATa 0OBPCKA 3HAUMUTEIHO CE MPOMEHETH, TaKBa
pa3MeHa WM U3MEHa Ce TPeTHpa KaKo Je-MPHU3HABAhe HAa OPUTHHAIHATA 00BpPCKAa U MPU3HABAKE HA
HOBaTa 00BpCKa, a pa3JIMKaTa Ha COOJIBETHUTE CMETKOBOJICTBECHH U3HOCH Ce€ TIPU3HABA BO OMIIAHCOT Ha
yCIiex.

Hetupame Ha pUHAHCHUCKNTE HHCTPYMEHTH

OUHAHCHCKUTE CPEJCTBA U (PUHAHCHCKUATE OOBPCKH CE HETHPAAT W HETO U3HOCOT € MPE3CHTUPAH BO
KOHCOJIMIMPAHUOT HM3BEIITAjOT 3a (DMHAHCHCKATa COCTOj0a, ako W caMO aKo, MOCTOW TPHUMEHIIUBO
3aKOHCKO MPaBO 3a HETHPame Ha CBUJCHTUPAHHUTE M3HOCH M TIOCTOM HaMmepa Jia ce MOpaMHU Ha HETO
OCHOBA, WJTU JIa CE MPU3HAAT CPEJICTBATA WM J]a C€ IOPaMHAT OOBPCKUTE UCTOBPEMEHO.

K. 3a7IMxXu

3anuxuTe ce BpeAHyBaaT CIIOpel TOHHCKAaTa BPEAHOCT O HabaBHAaTa M HETO pealu3allioHaTa
BpenHocT. HabaBHaTa BpenHOCT ce yTBpAyBa CIIOPEA METOIOT Ha NMPOCeYHH LieHH. LleHaTa Ha ynHeme
Ha TOTOBHUTE NMPOU3BOJIM M IMPOM3BOACTBOTO BO TEK BKIYy4dyBa CYpOBHHH, OTUPEKTHa pabOTHa cuia,
OCTaHATH JIUPEKTHU TPOUIOIM W TOBP3aHH IMPOM3BOJICTBEHU PEKHUCKU TPOIIONH, UCKIYIyBajKH TH
MpOAKHUTE W aJIMHUHUCTPAaTHBHHUTE Tpomonu. Hero peann3annoHaTta BpPEOHOCT € TMpOIEHETaTa
NpoJaXHa IIeHA BO PEJAOBHHOT TEK Ha PadOTEHETO, HaMalleHa 3a MpPEeABHICHUTE TPOILOLU 3a
JOBPILYBaE M MPEABUACHUTE TPOLIOLHM 32 J1a CE€ U3BPIIM MpoaaxoaTa.

CutHuot unBeHrap ce ornuiiysa 100% npu craBame BO ynoTpeda.
3. [lapyn m mapu4yHM cpeacTBa

[Mapute m mapudHWTE Cpe/CTBA BKJIydyBaaT TOTOBMHA BO OJiarajHa, MapWyHU CpEJCTBA BO OAHKHU U
JIETIO3UTHU CO POK HA JIOCTIEBAKE O TPU MECELIU I IOMAJIKY.

S. AKIIMOHEPCKH KATTMTAJI

OOWYHY aKkIuK ce KIacu()UIMPaHU BO KalMTal.
u. Janouu

Jlanok na oobuexa

JaHokoT Ha 1OoOMBKa 3a TEPHOJOT CE COCTOM O TEKOBEH M OAJIOKEH AaHOK. J[aHOKOT ce Mmpu3HaBa co
JoOuBKaTa wiM 3arybara, OCBEH 3a JEJIOT KOj C€ OJHECYBa Ha CTaBKH NPHUKAXAHH BO OCTaHATH
ceondaTHA NPUXOAN WK JUPEKTHO BO KaMTAJIOT. Bo TOj ciydaj, TaHOKOT ce Mpu3HaBa BO OCTaHATH
ceondaTHN MPUXOAN WK TUPEKTHO BO KAUTAJIOT, COOABETHO.

Tekosen Jlanok Ha 0obuexa

TexoBHHOT JITaHOK Ha JOOMBKA € MPEeCMETaH BP3 OCHOBA HA JIAHOYHHTE 3aKOHH YCBOCHHU IIPEJl MU IO
JaTyMOT Ha W3BELITajoT 3a (puHaHCHCKaTa cocTojOa, BO 3eMjuTe Kaje ITo ['pymanmjata U HEroBUTE
MOJPYKHUIK paboTaT M TeHepupaaT OJaHOWIMB MPHUXOJ]. PaKOBOACTBOTO MEPUOAWYHO TH IMPOIEHYBA
3a36MCHHTE MO3ULMK BO OJHOC HA JIAHOYHH MOBPATH, 3€MajKH T'H MPEIBHA JIEJIOBUTE OJ JAHOYHATA
peryyiaTiBa KOH IITO e MOJIOKHH Ha TOJNKyBambe. Kako pe3ynrar Ha HCTUTE, KaJie IITO € COOBETHO, CE
YTBpJyBaaT pe3epBallii Bp3 OCHOBA HA W3HOCHTE KOM CE OYEeKyBaaT Aa OMAAT IUIATEHU Ha JAQHOYHHTE
BIIACTH.



_
é/TlTAN

Oonoocen Oanok Ha 0obusKa

OnI0KEHUOT TaHOK Ha J0OMBKA ce MPHU3HABA HA MPUBPEMECHUTE PA3IMKU KOHM MPOM3JIECTYBaaT momery
JIAHOYHATa OCHOBHWIIA HA CpEICTBaTa M OOBPCKUTE W HHBHHTE HETO CETallHH BPEJHOCTH BO
KOHCOJMIUPaHUTe (PUHAHCUCKA M3BeITan. MefyToa, 0OBPCKUTE 3a OJUIOKCHHUOT JAHOK Ha JOOWBKA HE
ce TMPHU3HACHH aKO TMPOU3NICIyBaaT OJ] MHHUIIMjATTHOTO MPU3HABAME HA TYABWI, OJJIONKEH TAHOK Ha
JIOOMBKAa CMETKOBOJICTBEHO HE C€ MPUKaXYBa, JOKOJIKY IPOU3JIETyBaaT 0/ MHHUIIMjAIHO IPU3HABAKHE HA
CPeJCTBO WJIM OOBpPCKa BO TpaHCaKIMja HAIABOP O OM3HMC KOMOHWHAIMja KOja BO BPEMETO Ha
TpaHCAaKI[MjaTa He BIIMjac HUTY Ha CMETKOBOJICTBEHATA, HUTY HA OJ[aHOYIMBATA JOOWBKA MK 3aryoa.

OI0’KeHHNOT JTAHOK Ha JOOMBKA C€ YTBPAYBa KOPUCTEjKH JAHOYHU CTANKH (M 3aKOHW) KOW INTO OMITe
JIOHECESHU JI0, WU TIOCJICA0BATEIIHO JOHECSHH TI0 JaTYMOT Ha M3/IaBam¢ Ha M3BEIITAjOT 32 (PMHAHCHCKA
cocToj0a u ce 0YEeKyBa Jia ce yHoTpedaT Kora OBP3aHOTO CPEICTBO WM 0OBPCKA HA OJIOKEH JTAHOK Ha
JIOOMBKA K€ CE MOIMHPECHH.

Om10’keHN TaHOYHH CPEJCTBA CE€ TIPHU3HABAAT CaMO JI0 HUBOTO JIO0 KOE € BEpOjaTHO JeKa UIHH TaHOYHHU
JIOOMBKHM ke OWJaT pacIojiOXKIIMBH, BO OJHOC HAa KOW, NMPUBPEMCHUTE pAa3MKU Ke MOXKe Ja Oujar
nuckopructeHu. OJUIOKCHUTE JTAHOYHU CPEICTBA M OOBPCKH C€ HETHpaaT Kora 3a Toa WMa IIPaBHO
MPUMEHJIMBO IIPAaBO 3a HETHpPAmkeé Ha TEKOBHW JAHOYHU CPEICTBA BO ONHOC HAa TEKOBHH JAHOYHH
OOBpPCKH W KOTa OJUIOKEHHWTE JTaHOYHHM CPEJICTBAa U OOBPCKH C€ OJIHECYBaaT Ha JIaHOK Ha JTOOMBKA
CIIpeMa MCT JAHOYEH PEryjaTop 3a MCTHOT JAHOYEH CHTUTET WM Pa3IMYHU JAHOYHU CHTUTETH KaJe
MMa MHTEHIMja Ja Ce MOAMHpAT caijiaTa Ha HETO OCHOBA.

j- KopncTu 3a BpaboTenure

Tlensuu

I'pynarijata, BO HOpMQJIHAOT TEK Ha PabOTEHETO, BPITH yIUIaTa Ha MPHIOHECUTE HA BPaOOTCHHTE 3a
TICH3WH, 3]JPaBCTBO, BPaOOTYBamke U TIEPCOHAIICH JIAaHOK Ha JIOXOJ KOH ce MPEeCMETaHu cO PUMEHa Ha
3aKOHCKUTE CTalKh KOW CE€ BAaXKEYKM BO 3eMjaTa BO TEKOT Ha TOAMHATa Ha OpyTO IUIATHUTE.
['pynarujara ru BpIlid OBUE YIIATH BO BIAJMHUATE 3J[PABCTBEHU U MTEH3UCKH (DOHJIOBH.

TpomokoT 3a OBHEe YIUIaTH C€ MPHKaXyBa BO OMJIAHCOT HAa YCIEX BO HCTHOT IMEPHOJ BO KOj €
MPHUKaKaH ¥ MOBP3aHUOT TPOIIOK 32 IJIATHTE.

I'pynamjata He pabotu cmopen OWo KakBa Apyra IEH3WCKa IIeMa WIH IDIaH 32 HaJIOMECTOIH OJI
NEH3NOHHUPAE U ITOPaJIN TOA HeMa HUKAKBH JIOTTOTHUTETHU OOBPCKH 110 OBHE OCHOBH.

Haodomecmoyu 3a npecmarnok nHa pabomer 00HOC U HAOOMECHOYU 00 NEeH3UU

Hanmomecronure 3a npecTaHok Ha pabOTeH OJHOC Ha BPaOOTEHHOT Ke TpeCTaHe Mpejl HOPMATHUOT POK
3a TICH3WOHHpPAame WIM Kora BpabOTEHHWOT ke mpudaTé JOOPOBOIHO Ja 3aMHHE BO 3aMEHA 3a OBOj
HaJIoMecTOK. [ pymanujara npu3HaBa HaJJOMECTOK 3a MPECTaHOK Ha pabOTEH OJHOC BO CITy4aj Kora uMa
OJUTyKa 3a TIPECTaHOK Ha paOOTHUOT OJTHOC Ha OJIPEJICHN BpaOOTeHH 0e3 MOXKHOCT 32 TIOBJICKYBambhe Ha
OJUTYKaTa WIIM KOTa TIOCTOW JOOPOBOJHO IMpPHjaBYBamke OJi BPAOOTEHHUTE 3a MPECTAaHOK HA HUBHHOT
paboTeH oTHOC.

Crniope; MOTNMIIAHKOT KOJEKTHBEH AOToBOp, ['pymamujara e oOBp3aHa Aa HCIUIATH OTIPEMHHHH BO
M3HOC KOj € €IHAKOB Ha IIEeCT IMPOCEYHH pEeMyOJIMyKH IJIaTH W TOMery eJHa W TpU IMPOCEUYHH
penyOiMuKy TiaTy Ja OuaaT UCIUIaTeHH Kako jyOuinejHu Harpanu. bpojot Ha mpoceynnTe permyOnniku
IaTh 3a jyOwsiejHUTe HArpad OATOBapa Ha BKYIHHOT Opoj Ha TOOMHHM Ha CIyk0a oj cTpaHa Ha
BpabOTEHHTE KaKo IITO € MPE3eHTUPAHO BO Tabeara MoAoy:



_
é/TlTAN

BxynHo 0poj Ha roAvHM CJIyx0a bpoj na natn
10 1
20 3
30 3
35 (keHu) 3
40 (Maxn) 3

JlebuHMpaHuTEe KOPUCTHU CE MPECMETYBAaT FOJIUIITHO OJ] CTpaHa Ha HE3aBUCHH aKTyapy CO MPUMEHA Ha
KpeJAWTHATA METOJa 3a MpOeKTHpaHa eauHuia. COrjJacHO MOJENOT, BEPOjaTHOCTA JleKa MapUIHHOT
OJUTHB Ke ce pean3upa, € U3BEJCHA CO KOPUCTEHE HA TPH JICKPEMEHTH M TOa: CMPT, HHBAIUAUTET U
MPEeKUH Ha paboTeH oxHoc. Tabnuiiata Ha BEPOjaTHOCT € KOHCTPYHMpPAaHA CO TIOMOII HAa KOPHUCTCH-C
MPETIIOCTABKH 3a: BEPOjaTHOCTA 32 CMPT Ha BpaOOTCHHOT JI0 aTYMOT Ha KOj Tpeba J1a ce MeH3UOHHPa,
BEpOjaTHOCTA Jieka BpaOOTECHHUOT MPEIBPEMEHO Ke ce MEH3UOHUPa KaKO TOCIeInIa Ha HHBATUIUTET U
BepojaTHOCTA JIeKa BPaOOTCHHUOT Ke IO IMPeKuHEe paboTHHOT ogHOCc Bo KommanujaTa mpen 7aTyMOT Ha
MEH3UOHUpamke. CeraiHaTa BpeIHOCT Ha 00BpcKara 3a Je(MHUpPaHU KOPUCTHU C€ YTBPIYBa CO JAUCKOHTHPAHE
Ha TIPOIEHETHTE WJIHU TApUYHU OJJIMBU CO KOPHCTCH-¢ Ha €CKOHTHATA CTalKa O]l MPUHOCUTE Ha
JIp’KaBHUTE OOBP3HMIIM M3aieHU BO Makenonuja Bo 2019 roauHa u Kiacu(pHUIIMpaHH 110 POYHOCT.

Haoomecmoyu 3a cmunenouu na deya na spabomenu

ITounysajku ox 31 nexemBpu 2009 roamHa, BO aKTyapcKara MpecMeTKa € BKIydeHa U MpecMeTKaTa Ha
HAJIOMECTOIIUTE 3a CTUIICHINN KOW TH 00e30eayBa ['pymanyjara Ha nemara Ha BpaOOTCHUTE KOU CE Ha
PEIOBHU JOAMILIOMCKH W TOCJIECIUIUIOMCKU CTY/IHWU, KaKO W Ha JiellaTa Ha MOYMHATUTE BPaOOTCHH
JI0JIeKa e CPETHONIKOIIIH.

,ZZOnOJZHMme]ZHM Kopucmu npu neH3uonuparbe

ITounyBajku ox 31 mexemBpu 2013 rommna, akTyapckaTa mpecMeTKa Oellie JTOMOoJHeTa CO MPEeCcMEeTKa
Ha ceramrHata BPEeJHOCT Ha WIHUTE KOPCHTH 32 HOBO BOBEJICHATA JIOJITOPOYHA KOPHUCT 32 OJpe/ieHa
KaTeropuja Ha BpaOOTEHU - JOMOJHUTEIHN KOPHUCTH NP MEeH3UOHUpame. [IpecMeTkara e HamnpaBeHa
Bp3 OCHOBAa Ha MPOCEYHH MapaMeTpH Ha CIIOMEHATAaTa IMOIyJalfja U BKYITHO OYEKYBaHUOT M3HOC 32
UCILIaTa, IOCTaBeH O] cTpaHa Ha [ 'pymaryjara.

AKTyapckuTe NOOMBKM W 3ary0M KOHM NpOM3IETYyBaaT KakO pe3yiATaT Ha HMCKYCHH NPOLECHKH M
MIPOMEHHN BO aKTyapCKUTE MPETHOCTaBKU C€ NMPHU3HABaaT KaKo MPHUXOAU WJIM TPOUIOLU BO MEPHOAOT
KOTa UCTUTE HacTaHalle.

K. PesepBaunu

PesepBupamara ce TpH3HaBaaT M MpecMeTyBaar Kora [pymanujara UMa ceraniHa 3aKOHCKa WIIH
JIOTOBOpPEHa 0OBpCKa KaKO pPe3yiITaT Ha MHUHATH HACTaHM, M KOTa € BEpOjaTHO JieKa ke Ouie MmoTpeOeH
OJUTMB Ha CPEJICTBA 3a JIa CE MOMUPHU 00BPCKATa; M KOra MOe Jia Oujie HalpaBeHa peaiiHa IMPOICHKA Ha
nu3HocoT. PesepBanmure Ha I'pymainujata ce COCTOjaT Off pe3epBalMK 3a OTIPEMHHUHH, [yOHJICjHH
Harpajay, CTUICHAWU W pPEBHTANM3aIMja HA pynHHUIWTE. PesepBanmure He ce NMpU3HABAaT 3a WJIHU
OTepaTHBHHU 3aryOu.

OnaMy Kaje IITO MOCTOjaT TojieM Opoj Ha CIMYHU OOBPCKH, BepojaTHOCTa AeKa Ke Ouae moTpedeH
OJUTMB Ha CPEJICTBA 3a J]a ce TIOAMUPAT OOBPCKUTE, CE OAPEAyBa CO 3eMamke BO MPEABU Ha KilacaTa Ha
OOBpCKHTE KaKo e1Ha IeinHa. PesepBammu ce mpu3HaBaaT IypH U KOra BEpOjaTHOCTA JIeKa OJUINB Ha
cpeAcTBa ke Ouae moTpeOHO € MHOTY Maia, a ce OJHeCyBa Ha OWJIO KOja CTaBKa BKJIy4eHa BO HCTaTa
KJ1aca Ha 00BPCKH.

PesepBanuuTe ce BpenHyBaar 1o ceramrHaTa BpeAHOCT Ha OYEKYBaHUTE U3ATOIU KOH Ce OTPeOHU J1a
HacTaHaT CO IIeJI Ja ce MoAMHpH OOBpcKaTta co ymoTpeba Ha pre-tax CTamka Koja TH OTCIHKYBa
TEKOBHO TAa3apHUTE IMPOICHKH Ha BPEMEHCKATa BPEJHOCT HA MapHTe W IMOBP3aHWTE CHelUOUIHN
pU3UIM Ha JaJICHUTEe OOBPCKH. 3TOJIEMYBAamETO HA PE3CPBAIMHUTE KAKO Pe3yiaTaT Ha BPEMEHCKHUTE
pacTojaHuja ce Mpu3HaBaaT Kako TPOIIOIH MO0 KaMaTH.
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JI. le/I3HaBalbe Ha MIPpUX0AUTE

IIpuxomuTe ce mpu3HaBaaT 0 CTEIICHOT M0 KOj € BepojaTHO Acka [ 'pymaiijara ke mMma MPWIMB Ha
UJIHA CKOHOMCKM KOPHCTH M THE KOPUCTH MOXaT BEPOIOCTOJHO Ha ce m3Mepar. lIpuxomor ce
BpEIHYBa CIIOpe] 00jeKTHBHATA BPEAHOCT Ha MPUMEHHUOT HAJIOMECT WM TO0apyBamkETO 33 MPOIaJACHU
moOpa W yCIayrd HamalleH 3a OJOOpPEHHUTE IUCKOHTH, padaTH M JAaHOKOT Ha JOJaJeHa BPEITHOCT.
CrnenauBe crierMpUIHA KPUTESPUYMH UCTO Taka Tpeba Aa OWmaT 3aJ0BOJICHH TIPeX MPHUXOIOT 1aa Oume
MIPU3HAT:

Tlpodancba na cmoxu

[Ipuxoaure ce mpu3HaBaaT Kora 3Ha4ajHUOT PU3UK O JOJETyBamke HAa CONICTBEHOCTA HA CTOKHUTE Ke ce
IIpeHece Ha KyITyBayoT.

Jlasarwe Ha ycnyeu

Hanomecronm ox 00e30e/eHn yCIIyru ce TMpHU3HABAaaT 3a MEPUOJOT BO KOj YCIYTUTE CE JalicHH U
nprdaTeHn of KyITyBadoT.

Tpuxoou 00 kamamu

Kamatute 1o neno3uTa ce mpecMeTyBaar 1o HCTEKYBamke Ha OPOUyBambETO Ha UCTUTE.
Ipuxoou 00 3axynnuna

HpI/IXO,Z[I/I O 3aKyllHHMHAa CC OAHCCyBaaT HaA NPUXOAUTEC OCTBAPCHU OJ OICPATUBCH HACM O[
BJIOKYBalkaTa BO HCJIBMXKHOCTU U CC ITPU3HABAAT HA IMPAaBOJIMHMUCKA OCHOBA BO TEKOT HA LICIUOT IEPHUOT
Ha HAEMOT.

Jb. Haemu

Haemure co xom 3HavacH AC O PU3UKOT U HarpaauTe o4 COIICTBCHOCTA CC 3aJipiKaHU O[] CTpaHa Ha
HacMOJaBadoT C€ Knacn(bnunpa KakKO OIICpaTUBCH HACM. IInakamara HalpaBCHU 110 OCHOB Ha
OINICPAaTUBHUOT HACM (HCTO o1 OUI0 KakBU IMNOTTUKHYBaka OJ CTpaHa Ha HaeMO}IaBaTCJ'IOT) ce
IMpu3HaBaatT BO OMIAHCOT Ha YCOICX Ha NPaBOJMHUCKA OCHOBA BO TCKOT Ha MCPUOAOT HAa HACMOT.

M. Pacnipenenoa Ha TMBHICHAN

Pacnpenenbara Ha muUBHICHIWTE Ha aKIMOHEPHWTE Ha [ 'pymammjara ce mpu3HaBa Kako OOBpPCKa BO
(hMHAHCUCKUTE W3BEIITAH BO MEPUOJIOT BO KOj C€ 0JIOOPEHH TUBUICHINTE OJf CTPaHA Ha aKIIMOHEPHTE
Ha ['pymanmjara.

H. HacTanu mocJe AAaTyMOT Ha U3BECTYBaL€

Hacranute mociie JaTymMOT Ha H3BECTyBame, Kou 00e30elyBaaT €BHICHIIMja 3a cOCTOjO0ara Koja
MOCTOM Ha JIaTyMOT Ha M3BECTYBamE, C€ TPETHUPAAT KaKO KOPEKTHBHHU HACTaHU BO OBHE ()MHAHCHCKH
m3BemTan. OHHE KOM Ce€ WHIUKATHBHM HA COCTOjO0aTra KoOja NPOM3JIEryBa IOCIE IaTyMOT Ha
W3BECTYBabEC UMAaT TPETMaH HAa HEKOPEKTUBHY HACTAHH.

4. KOPUCTEHH INPOLEHKHA

I'pymanyjara mpaBu MpOIEHKH W MPETHOCTABKH KOM C€ OJHECYyBaaT Ha WAHWHATA. Pesyntupauknre
CMETKOBO/ICTBCHH TIPOIICHKH, 10 JEPUHHUIINja MHOTY PETKO CE MICHTHYHU CO aKTYCITHHUTE PE3yJITaTH.
[IpouieHkuTe W TPETHOCTABKUTE KOW BIMjaaT 3HAYUTEIHO HAa IMPEIU3BHKYBAalkEC MAaTCpHjalTHU
KOPEKIIMA JIO CETAITHUTE BPEAHOCTH HA CpEICTBaTa W OOBPCKUTE BO paMKHTE HAa HapeIHaTa
(hvHAHCHCKA TOJIMHA C€ TIPE3CHTUPAHU TIOJIOITY.
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Pesepsayuja 3a pesumanuzayuja na pyonuyume

JlpymTBara mTo BpUIAT €KCIUIOATAIlMja HA MUHEPAJTHA CYpOBHHHU OJ PYIHHIUTE MOTPEOHO € UCTHUTE
Ha KpajoT O] HMBHUOT BEK Ha €KCIUIOAaTalMja Ja TM BparaT BO NMPBOOMTHA COCTOjOa, OAHOCHO BO
coctoj0a BO Koja Owie Ha MOYETOKOT Mpen Ja OWaT eKCIIOATHpPaHH, LITO € BO COTJIACHOCT CO
3aKOHCKaTa peryjaTvBa 3a 3alllTUTa HA JKMBOTHATAa CpeOMHA INPHUMEHIMBA BO 3€Mjara BO Koja
I'pymanujara pabotu (1a ce BpaTH 3€MjUIITETO BO IPOBOOUTHA COCTOj0a MMOCIIe TPU T'OJUHH OTKAKO Ke
Ce 3aTBOPH PYAHUKOT M OTKAaKO K€ 3aBpIIM HEroBara eKcIuloaTaluja), U TOa J0 HUBO KOE € BO
3aKOHCKUTE PaMK{ W JIO HHBO KO€ € BO COIJIACHOCT CO IOJUTHKATa M IpakcaTa Koja ce BOAH 3a
3alTHTA HA )KHBOTHATA CPE/INHA.

PesepBanujaTa 3a peBuTaNIM3aIMja Ha PyJHALUTE ja Opa3yBa CeramIHaTa BPEIHOCT HA OYCKYBAaHHTE
W/IHU TPOLIOLM 32 PEKYATHBH3ALMja KOU Ce OYeKyBa J1a HacTaHAT 3a OHUE JACJOBU O PYJHHULIUTE KOU
OuJie eKcIuIoaTHpaHu co TaTyMOT Ha U3BECTyBame. PesepBaiyjaTa mpeTcTaByBa ceramiia BpeJHOCT Ha
OYEKyBaHM HIHU OJUIMBH Ha IapH KOM C€ OUYCeKyBa JeKa Ke HacTaHaT 3a pEeBHTANM3alfja Ha
pyzuunute. OBa BKIydyBa U OJIpEAyBam-e Ha BPEIHOCTa HA OCHOBA HAa MPOEKTOT 32 PEBUTAIM3AIIN]a,
JUCKOHTHUTE CTAallKW M OYEeKyBaHHM MH(MIAUMCKU cTanku. PesepBauuuTe ce MpeoleHyBaaT Ha CEKOj
M3BECTYBAUKU JIaTyM M C€ KOpEerupa co Iel Jia ja Opa3n CeralHaTa BPeIHOCT HAa MIHUTE TPOIIOIH
NMoTpeOHN 32 Ja ce MCIIOHN 00BpCKaTa.

CeramHaTta BpeIHOCT Ha OYEKyBaHHTE TPOIIOIHM 32 PECTaBpUpame (TOa € OpUIHMHAjJHAaTa MPOICHKA
Kako M MPOMEHUTE BO CMETKOBOJCTBCHHTE IPOIICHKH) CE NMPU3HABA BO M3BEIITAjOT 3a ceodaTHa
JIOOMBKAa OCBEH aKO HE C€ MOBP3aHH CO OCHOBHHTE CPEJICTBA KOM C€ HaoraaT M CE€ IMOBP3aHU CO
PYAHUIUTE, P HUBHOTO MPBUYHO MpPU3HABAKHE BO KOj CIIy4aj, TPOIIOLMUTE CE KalWUTAU3Upaar u
aMOpTHU3UpaaT BO TEKOT Ha HUBHHOT BEK Ha ymoTpeoa.

Cexkoja mpoMeHa BO HETO CeralrHaTa BpEJHOCT Ha MCIpaBKaTa 3a PEBHTANN3aNHMja HA PYIHUIIUTE BO
TEKOT Ha BPEMEHCKOTO pacTOjaHHWe Ce MpHU3HAaBa KakKo (PMHACHUCKM TPOIIONM BO H3BEIITAjOT 32
ceondarHa J0OMBKA.

Kopucmu 3a spabomenume

CeramHarta BpeIHOCT Ha OOBpCKaTa 3a MEH3MOHUPAIE 3aBHCH O] TolleM O0poj Ha (akTopu Ko ce
ollpeyBaaT Ha TOJUWIIHA OCHOBAa CO ymoTpeba Ha rojeM Opoj Ha MPETHOCTaBKH. YMOTpeOeHHTE
IPETIIOCTaBKH BO OJPEyBAmbETO HA HETO €PEKTOT (TPOLIOK MM MPUXO[) 32 MEH3MOHNPAhe BKIydyBa
JUCKOHTHU CTanKu. buio KakBU IPOMEHHM BO OBHE IIPETIOCTaBKU Ke Ce€ 0Jpa3aT Ha ceraliHara
BpPEIHOCT Ha 0OBpCKaTa 3a MEH3MOHUpaLE U Apyrure OeHeduiy 3a BpabOTECHHTE.

I'pymarjaTta KOPUCTH MPETIIOCTaBEHA TOAMINHA AMCKOHTHA CTamka. Toa € KamaTHa CTalka Koja Ou
Tpebaso Ja ce ynotpedyBa co IIejd Jia ja Opa3u CeramrHata BPEJHOCT Ha MPETIHOCTABCHUTE WIHU
MapUYHU OJJIMBH KOW CE OYEKYBa Jla HACTAHAT CO IIEN Ja Ce MOAMHUPAT OOBPCKHUTE 3a JAchUHUpAHUTE
kopuctd. Bo ojapeayBameTO Ha COOIBETHA JUCKOHTHA cramka, [ pymangjata ja ynorpeOysa
JMUCKOHTHA cTanmka Ha Hapomna Banka na PenyOmuka MakenoHuja BO OTCYCTBO Ha Tasap Ha
BHUCOKOKBAJIUTCHH KOPIOPATUBHH OOBP3HMIIM WM IPXKABHU OOBP3HHIIM KOW CE JICHOMHUHUPAHH BO
BajJyTa BO Koja OcHeduIMuTe ke OMIaT UCIUIATCHU, U KOM MMaaT YCJIOBH 3a JIOCIICBAmE MPUOIMKHU
Ha YCJIOBHUTE HA MOBP3aHU OOBPCKH 32 TIEH3UOHHUPAIHE.

OcraHaTuTe KIyYHH NPETIOCTAaBKH 3a IMPECMETKa Ha OOBpCKaTa 3a NEHCHOHHMPAE BO €IEH Aei ce
3aCHMBAaT Ha TEKOBHUTE Ma3apHU yCIIOBH.

Objexmusna epednocm

HomunanHata BpeqHOCT HamalleHa 3a TPOICHETUTE 3aryOM TOopajy OINTETyBame Ha cpeicTBara U
OOBpPCKUTE CO POK Ha JIOCIEBAbEe MOMAIKY OJl ¢lHAa TOAWHA ¢ MPHONMKHA HA HUBHATA O0jCKTHBHA
BPEIHOCT.
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T'omem ©Opoj Ha CMETKOBOJCTBCHHM IIOJIMTHKH W 00eJOoJeHyBamka OapaaT oOmpeleilyBame Ha
00jeKTHBHATa BPEIHOCT, KaKO 3a (PMHAHCHUCKHUTE M He(DMHAHCUCKUTE CPEJICTBA TaKa M 32 OOBPCKHTE.
OO0jeKTUBHUTE BPEIHOCTH CE OIPE/eTyBaaT 32 MEPECHE U/ 3a 00€I0CHYBAYKH 1IeJI HA OCHOBA Ha
moBeke wmeromu. OHaMmy Kajae IITO € BO3MOXKHO, IIOHATaMOITHH WHGOpPMAIWM BO MOCJIOT Ha
MPETIIOCTABKUTE 3EMEHH TpPU OApeayBameé Ha O00jeKTHBHATAa BPEIHOCT Ce 00eJIoJecHyBaaT BO
3a0eJeKuTe TOBP3aHU CO KOHKPETHUTE CPEJICTBA WITH OOBPCKH.

5.MIPOMEHA HA CMETKOBOJACTBEHHU NOJIMTUKHU U KOPEKIIUHU HA I'PELLIKHN

CMeTKOBOICTBEHUTE TMOJMTHUKKA Ha [’pynammjara ce mnpuMeHyBaaT oOJ TEpHOJ A0 Tepuoj Ha
KOH3UCTEHTHa OCHOBa. CMETKOBOJICTBEHUTE TOJUTUKUA CE€ MEHYBaaT JOKOJKY TOa € YCIOBEHO CO
W3MCHA WU JoHecyBame Ha HoBu MCOU.

I'pynanmjara npaBu MpOLEHKH U MPETIOCTaBKY 32 BO HIHUHA. [[pOLIEHKUTE IOCTOjaHo ce cleaar, a ce
0a3upaat Bp3 OCHOBA Ha MHHATH MCKYCTBA U Ipyrd (haKkTOpH, BKIydyBajKH TM OUeKyBambaTa 3a HIHNUTE
HactaHu. Haj3HayajHHUTE MIPOIIEHKN M MTPETIOCTABKH CE MPUKAXKAHU TIO0IY.

KopuceH Bek Ha cpeficTBara

KopucHnoT Bex Ha cpeicTBara ce YTBpAyBa Bp3 OCHOBa Ha MHUHATO MCKYCTBO CO CIMYHH CPEJICTBA,
KaKo ¥ WIHHUOT TEXHOJIOIIKH Pa3Boj W MPOMEHU Ha eKOHOMCKUTE M MHAycTpuckute akropu. ITokpaj
TO4, KAKO OCHOBEH BOJUY CE€ KOPUCTAT CMETKOBOJCTBECHUTE MOJUTHUKHU 32 aMOPTU3ALMOHU CTAIKU
MPOMHUILIAHU Off CTpaHa Ha JaHOuHAaTa peryiaTuBa. COOABETHOCTAa Ha MPOLIEHETUOT KOPHUCEH BEK CE
OIIEHYBa TOJIUIIIHO, MJIK KOTa TIOCTOjaT WHAWKAIMH 33 3HAYUTEITHA IPOMEHH Ha MPOIICHKHTE.

[lopangu 3HAYMTETHOTO YYECTBO HAa CpEICTBATa KOM CE€ aMOpPTH3MpaaT BO BKYIIHUTE CPEICTBA,
BIIMjaHUETO Ha EBEHTYaJHH NPOMEHW BO OBHME MPETIIOCTaBKH MOXe Jia Ouje MaTepHjalHo 3a
¢uHAHCHCKAaTa MO3UIKja M PEe3YyNTaToOT O] aKTHMBHOCTHUTE. [IOKOJKY TPOLIOKOT 3a AEHperyjamnuja ce
Hamaiy/ 3rojemu 3a 1% oBa ke pe3ysTHpa co MPOMEHa BO TOAWIIHMOT TPOLIOK 32 aMOpPTH3aldja BO
usHoc ox npubmmwkau 1.588 wijanu nenapu (2018: 1.554 unjanu neHapu).

HOTCHI_II/IiaIIHO OIITCTYBAKC Ha HCABMIKHOCTUTE, HOCTDOiKI/ITG h onpémMmara Hu HGMaTGDI/IiaJIHHTe
CpCACTBa

I'pynarmijara ja mporeHyBa motpedara ofl OMTeTyBamhe Ha HEBIDKHOCTHTE, ITIOCTPOJKUTE M OIpeMara
U HEeMaTepHjalTHUTE CPEJICTBA CEKOTall Kora MOCTOM NMPUYMHA JIeKa CMETKOBOJICTBEHATa BPEIHOCT
MO’KE€ 3HAUUTEITHO J1a ja HQ/IMHHYBA HAJIOMECTINBATA BPEAHOCT U KOTa OMITETYBAKETO € MPEIBUICHO.
HamomectnuBaTta BpeJHOCT ce YTBpZyBa CO TIOMOII Ha MPECMETKH Ha yIMoTpeOHAaTa BPEIHOCT, MpU
HITO C€ KOPHUCTAT MIMPOK 00eM Ha MPOIIEHKU U (haKTopH KOM BIIHjaaT Bp3 Hea.

[Mokpaj Toa, I'pynanmjata ru 3eMa BO MPEIBHI HIHWTE MPUXOIU W TPOIIONH, MAKPOSKOHOMCKHTE
WH/IMKAIMH, TEXHOJIOIIKATa 3aCTAPSHOCT, IPEKUH Ha aKTUBHOCTUTE W JPYTH NMPOMEHU Ha (PaKTOPUTE
KOM MOXKaT Jia JIOBEAAT JIO OIITETyBame. JJOKONKy ce MIeHTH(UKYBA OIITETYBAKE CO KAJKyJaldjaTa
Ha ymoTpeOHATa BPEIHOCT, MCTO Taka Ce YTBPAyBa pasiukaTa Mely 0OjeKTHBHATa BPEIHOCT H
TPOIIONUTE 3a Mmpojax0a, co IeN Aa ce IMpecMeTa TOYHHMOT M3HOC Ha OINTETyBame. buiejku oBaa
mpecMeTka € CyOjeKTHBHA, M3HOCOT Ha TOTEHIMjaIHOTO OINTETYBaEke MOXE 3HAYUTEITHO Ja Ce
pas3IuKyBa O] pe3yJTaTUTE O]l OBUE KAIIKYyJIAIIHH.

HcnpaBka Ha BpeqHOCTA HA TO0ApyBamkaTa 01 KYIYBAYUTE U OCTAHATH [TO0ApyBamka

Kankynanujata 3a ucrnpaBka Ha CIIOpHH mobapyBama ce MPEeCMETyBa BP3 OCHOBa Ha IMPOICHETHTE
3aryou oJ1 HeCllocOOHOCTa Ha KyIyBaunTe Ja TH UCIUIATaT OapaHUTE U3HOCH.
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Pesepranuu

PesepBanuute reHepanHo ce CyOjeKTHBHH, ITOCEOHO BO CJIydaj Ha CYACKH clopoBu. | pymamujara ja
NpOIIeHyBa MOXKHOCTA 332 HETaTMBEH HAcTaH, Kako pe3yiATaT Ha MUHATH HACTaHW W JIOKOJIKY Taa
W3HECYBa HaJ TeAeceT MporeHTH, | pymamujata BO MMEJIOCT ja MpUKakyBa obBpckata. ['pymarmjara
BOOOMYAECHO W3BPIIYBa pasyMHa NPOLEHKA, HO MOPagd BUCOKOTO HHUBO HAa HECHUTYPHOCT, BO HEKOH
ClIyyad eBajlyalyjaTa MOXHO € Jia C€ pa3IuKyBa Ol KpajHHOT e(heKT Ha CYJCKHOT CIOP.

6. YITIPABYBAIBE CO PU3UK

OcHoBHUTE (PMHAHCHUCKU OOBPCKH Ha ['pymnaryjara T COYMHYyBaaT OOBPCKH CIpeMa 100aByBauuTe H
ocTaHaTh 00OBpckH. I'pymammjara pacmosiara co pa3HOBHIHHW (DWHAHCHUCKH CPEICTBAa KaKO INTO Ce:
nobapyBama O]l KylyBauuTe, MapH W MapHYHH CPEJICTBA M KPATKOPOUYHH 3aCMH W JETIO3UTH KOW
MIpoM3JIeTyBaaT TUPEKTHO of1 paboTemeTo Ha [ pymanujaTa.

I'pynamijata Bo CBOETO pabOTeHE c€ M3NOKEHU Ha MOBeKe (PMHAHCUCKU PHU3WIK. | TaBHUTE PU3HIIN
Ce: PU3HMK Ha JMKBUIHOCT, JIEBU3CH PU3HMK M KPEAWTCH PU3UK. YTPaBYBAHETO CO CEKOj OJf OBHE
PHU3HIIN CE OJIBHBA BO COTIIACHOCT CO TMOJIUTHKUTE of00peHu o1 Om0opoT Ha JUPEKTOPH KOj BOCIHO €
U OJICOBOPEH 33 PEBHIMPAhE HA UCTHTE.

a) Ilazapen puzux

[MazapHuoT pu3uk ce aeuHUpa Kako ,,pU3UK o1 (UIyKTyalWja Ha Ha3apHaTa BPeJHOCT WM MIHHUTE
NapuYHU TEKOBH Ha (PMHAHCHCKHUTE MHCTPYMEHTH KaKO pe3ysTaT Ha MpOMEHa Ha Ma3apHUTE LEHH,, U
BKJIydyBa KaMaT€H PU3UK, BaJlyTe€H PU3UK U IpYIU LIEHOBHU pu3uuu. Hajroizemuor aen ox npuxoaure
Ha ['pynanujata ce ocTBapeHM O] JOMAIEH I1a3ap BO MaKEIOHCKU JIEHAPH, a IPEOCTaHATHOT A€ Ha
cTpaHckH nmasap Bo EVP.

Hajromemmor nem ox Tpomonure Ha ['pymamujata ce OCTBApeHHW O] HAOABKM HA JOMAITHHUOT H
CTPAHCKHOT Ia3ap.

PaKOBO,Z[TCBOTO BCpYyBa JICKa I' Mpe3eMa CUTC HCOIMXOJHU MCPKHU 3a MOAAPIIKA HAa OAPKIMBOCT U pacT
Ha OM3HHUCOT Ha KOMHaHI/IjaTa BO CCTallIHUTE OKOJIHOCTH. CenaK, HWIHHUTC (bHyKTyaI_II/II/I Ha 1a3apoT HC
MOIXKE [1a CC NpCABUAAT CO TOUYHOCT U IMPCIU3HOCT.

6) Kamamen puzux

[IpuxonnTe M omepaTWBHUTE MapUYHM TEKOBH Ha ['pymamujata ce BO ronemMa mMepa HE3aBHCHHU O
MPOMEHATA Ha Ta3apHUTE KAMATHHU CTAITKH.

[IpoMena Ha KaMaTHWTE CTAaNKH ¥ KaMaTHUTE MapruHH MOXKaT Ja BIHjaaT Bp3 (UHAHCHCKHUTE
TPOILIONM U TOBPATOT Ha (PMHAHCHCKHUTE WHBECTHUIUH. [[pOMEHUTE Ha Ma3apHUTe KaMaTHHU CTAIKU
BJIMjaaT Ha MPUXOIUTE OJf KaMaTH Ha OpoYeHH Jeno3utu Bo Oanku. Ha 31 mexemepu 2019 romuna,
I'pymanpjata ©Ma OpOYEHH IEHO3MTH BO OaHkuTe BO mM3HOC ox 1.545.813 wmmjamu nenapu (2018:
822.875 unjaau neHapu).

8) Jlesusen pusux

Uznoxenocra Ha ['pynanujata Ha JIeBU3EeH PU3UK € MUHHMAITHA CO OTJIEA Ha (akKoT JieKa HajrOJIEMHOT
JIe]T O JIOTOBOPHTE IIOBP3aHH CO METYHApOIHWUTE TpaHCAKIHK (TIpogakOuTe W HabaBKWTE) ce
HoMmuHupanu Bo EYPO, umjmito kype Oeme crabuieH Bo TekoT Ha nejata 2018 roauna. Mcro Taka,
JIOTOBOPHTE 3a Mpoaak0a Ha TOMAITHUOT Ta3ap ce HoMmuHupanu Bo EYPO.

3a moTpebuTe Ha aHaNW3a Ha YYBCTBHTEIHOCT OJ JIEBU3HHOT PHU3WK. PaKoOBOICTBOTO KOPHCTH
npernocTaBka ox 1% 3rojemyBame Ha 1eBU3HUOT Kypc Ha EYP. mTo ce cMeTa 3a pasymHO co oruef
Ha cTa0MIIHATa JOMaIllHa BaiyTa Bo ogHoc Ha EYP Bo TekoT Ha m3MuHatuTe roguau. Ha 31 nexemBpu
2019 rogmna. gokonky EYP 6u 6mno 1% (2018: 1%) mocnabo mnm mocwiiHO Bo criopenda co MK
JIOOWBKATA TTOCIIC OJaHOYYBamke BO HETO OmrancoT 6u 6mina 9.006 wrjanu nenapu (2018: 6.513 wrjann
JIeHapH) TIOBHUCOKA MJIV IIOHUCKA. COOABETHO.
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2) Pusux Ha auxeuoHocm

YrpaByBameTO CO PHU3UKOT HA JIMKBUAHOCT IMOApa30Mpa pacrojiarae CO JOBOJHHA KOJMYECTBA Ha
TOTOBHHA, KaKO ¥ MOKHOCT 32 (PHHAHCHPamke TPEKy KOPUCTEHE Ha IOTOBOPHU KPEAUTHH apamKMaHM.

0) Kpeoumen pusux

I'pynamujata HemMaaT 3HavajHA KOHIICHTpAIMja Ha KPESAUTECH PU3HK. | pymanujaTa ©MaaT BOCIIOCTABEHO
TaKBa TMOJWUTHKA KoOja INTO MPEABUAYBa MpPOJakda Ha CBOHWTE MPOM3BOIU HAa KIHEHTH CO COOJIBETHA
KkpenutHa ucropuja. Vcro taka, ['pymanujata uMa BOCIIOCTAaBEHO TaKBa TOJMTHKA KOja MPEIBHIYBa
JTMMUTHPAh¢ Ha W3HOCOT HAa KPEJUTHA W3JIOKEHOCT Ha MoequHeuHHuTe KieHTH. [loceOHo, 3a ma ce
HaMaJId OBOj pu3WK [ pymanujara 6apa o0e30emyBama Kako IITO ce: OaHKapCKH TapaHITH U TCTIO3UTH.

Bo Bpcka co KpeaUTHHOT PHU3MK KOJIITO MpPOM3JIEryBa OJ JApyrute (UHAHCHUCKH CpEJICTBa HA
I'pynamijata, Kom ce cocTrojaT O THapd M TAPUYHA CPEICTBA, W KPAaTKOPOYHH To0apyBama 3a
03ajMH1Ia, MaKCUMaTHaTa M3JI0KEHOCT Ha ['pymanujaTa Ha KpEeAWTEH PU3HMK IOPAIN HEIUIaKame Ha
JIOTOBOpHATA CTpaHa € ¢JIHaKBa Ha CMETKOBOJICTBEHATA BPEJHOCT HA OBUE HHCTPYMEHTH.

anaByBaﬂ)e CO KanmuTaJaoT

IIpumapHaTa 11€)1 Ha YIpaBYBamETO CO KaMUTAJIOT Ha I'pymammjata € ma ce 00e30eau M onpikyBa
CTaOWIIeH KPEIUTCH PEJTHHT W COOJIBETHU IOKa3aTelW Ha KalUTaJOT CO IeNl Jia ce MOIJPKU
paboTemETOo U J1a ce MAaKCUMHU3UPa BPEHOCTA Ha aKIHOHEPUTE.

I'pynanmjara ynpaByBa co cBojaTa CTPYKTYpa Ha KallMTaJl U TPaBH KOPEKIMU Ha UCTHUOT, KOU CE€ BO
COTJIACHOCT CO TPOEMEHWTE Ha eKOHOMCKHTe (akTOpH. 3a Ja ja OIpKyBa M Ja ja KOperupa
CTpYKTypaTa Ha KanuTaioT, [pymanujara MoXKe Ja ja KOperupa JWBWJACHJIATa HUCIUIATeHA Ha
aKIMOHEPUTE, JIa BPATH KalUTall Ha aKIIMOHEPUTE WM TaK JIa U3/1aje JOTIOJHUTEITHN HOBH aKIIUH, BP3
OCHOBa Ha TPETXOJHA OJJIyKa Ha aKIuOHepuTe. Bo TEKOT Ha ToAWHHWTE MTO 3aBpmryBaaT Ha 31
nexemBpu 2019 roamua m 31 mekemBpu 2018 romuHa He Oea HampaBeHH IPOMEHH BO IIEJIHTE,
MOJIUTUKUTE WK TiporiecuTe Ha ['pynanyjara.
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7. HEMATEPWJANHWU CPEACTBA

CpeactBa
MateHTH M r OcraHatu
yasun  Codreep BO BkynHo
nuueHum cpeacTBa HOAroTOBKa
Hab6aBHa BpegHoCT
Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2019 17.796.460 - - - - 17.796.460
3ronemyBate 49.000 - - - - 49.000
Hamanysare - - - - - -
Canpo Ha 31 Jekemspu 2019 17.845.460 - - - - 17.845.460
WUcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa
Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2019 13.613.600 - - - - 13.613.600
AmopTusauuja - - - - - -
Hamanysatbe - - - - - -
Cango Ha 31 Jlekemepn 2019 13.613.600 - - - - 13.613.600
Hemo cMmemkoeodcmeeHa eped-
Hemo cMmemkoeodcmeeHa eped-
HabaBHa BpegHoCT
Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2018 17.796.460 - - - - 17.796.460
3ronemyBate - - - - - -
Hamanysare - - - - - -
Cango Ha 31 Jekemepn 2018 17.796.460 - - - - 17.796.460
WUcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa
Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2018 13.613.600 - - - - 13.613.600
AmopTusauuja - - - - - -
Hamanysame - - - - - -
Cango Ha 31 Jlekemepn 2018 13.613.600 - - - - 13.613.600
Hemo cMmemkoeodcmeeHa eped-
Hemo cMmemkoeodcmeeHa eped-
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8. MATEPWJAIHU CPEACTBA

HabaBHa BpegHocT

Canpo Ha 1 Janyapw 2019
3ronemyBate

Hamanysare

KypcHu pasnuku

Canpo Ha 31 Jexkemepu 2019

WUcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa

Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2019
AmopTusauuja
Hamanysatbe

KypcHu pasnuku

Cango Ha 31 Jekemepu 2019

HeTo cmeTkoBOACTBEHA BpeAHOCT Ha
31 fekemBpu 2019

HeTto cmeTkoBOACTBEHA BPeAHOCT Ha
1 JaHyapm 2019

HabaBHa BpegHoCT

Cango Ha 1 JaHyapu 2018
3ronemyBate

Hamanysare

KypcHu pasnuku

Canpo Ha 31 Jexemepu 2018
WUcnpaBka Ha BpeaHoCTa
Cango Ha 1 Janyapu 2018
AmopTusauuja

Hamanysatbe

KypcHu pasnuku

Canpo Ha 31 Jexemepu 2018

HeTo cmeTKOBOACTBEHA BPEAHOCT Ha
31 OekemBpu 2018

HeTo cmeTkoBOACTBEHA BpeAHOCT Ha
1 JaHyapm 2018

3emjuwre Fpa.ge)xl-m Onpema VHBecTUUY BO BKYNHO
06jeKkTu TeK

1.011.282.601 2.538.529.324 4.646.332.716  313.494.891 8.509.639.532
19.290.543 49.646.165 220.639.581 278.241.797 567.818.086
- (1.339.185)  (64.200.629) (358.858.520) (424.398.334)
- (1.014) (908) (1.922)
1.030.573.144 2.586.835.290 4.802.770.760 232.878.168 8.653.057.362
124.193.115 2.074.797.464 3.886.812.265 6.085.802.844
12.626.732 16.883.854 129.039.119 158.549.705
- (1.339.185)  (63.687.314) (65.026.499)
- (106) (217) (323)
136.819.847  2.090.342.027 3 952 163.853 6.179.325.727
893.753.297 496.493.263 850.606.907 232.878.168 2.473.731.635
887.089.486 463.731.860 759.520.451 313.494.891 2.423.836.688
993.261.042 2.445.772.537 4.538.815.429  286.994.647 8.264.843.655
18.021.559 93.007.845 151.625.287  265.304.915  527.959.606
- (249.041)  (44.106.194) (238.804.671) (283.159.906)
- (2.017) (1.806) - (3.823)
1.011.282.601 2.538.529.324 4.646.332.716  313.494.891 8.509.639.532
112.082.850 2.059.480.406 3.803.341.705 5.974.904.961
12.110.265 15.317.097 127.558.249 154.985.611
- - (44.087.608) (44.087.608)
- (39) (81) (120)
124.193.115 2.074.797.464 3.886.812.265 6.085.802.844
887.089.486 463.731.860 759.520.451 313.494.891 2.423.836.688
881.178.192 386.292.131 735.473.724 286.994.647  2.289.938.694
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>
9 BUOJIOLLKKA CPEACTBA
HepoBpluenu Moseke- CpepctBa
2019 3emMjopencku Ocroso - ObptHo roAuLLHN BO BKYMHO
ctajo  cTapjo
npov3soau Hacagu  noAroToBKa

Cocrojba Ha 1 JaHyapu 2019
3ronemyBatbe Kako pe3ynTar Ha
HabaBKu

HamanyBare kako pe3yntar Ha
npogaxou

OxHeaHun 3emjoaernckm nponssoam
MpeHeCeH BO 3amnmxu

[MpomMeHa Ha BpeaHocTa Ha
OuonoLkuTe cpeacTea

Tpowoun Ha amopTusauuja Ha
GuonoLwkuTe cpeacTea

Cocmoj6a Ha 31 [lekemepu 2019

HemekosHu cpedcmea
TekogHu cpedcmea

BkynHo 6uonowku cpedcmea 2019

2018

Cocroj6a Ha 1 Janyapw 2018
3ronemyBatse Kako pesynTar Ha
HabaBkm

HamanyBatbe kako pesynrar Ha
npoaaxou

OxHeaHu 3emMjogencku Npou3Boam
NPEHECEHN BO 3aNnXu

[MpomMeHa Ha BpeaHocTa Ha
GuonoLk1Te cpeacTea

Tpowoun Ha amopTu3auMja Ha
BuonoLk1Te cpeacTea

Cocmoj6a Ha 31 [Jekemepu 2018

HemekoeHu cpedcmea
TexosHU cpedcmea

BkynHo 6uonowku cpedcmea 2018
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10. AONTOPOYHN ®UHAHCUCKN CPELACTBA

BroxyBatba BO KOHBEPTMOMIHYM 06BP3HMLM

BkynHo:

Bpoj Ha koHBEPTMOMNHI 06BP3HMLK:

[paBa Kom r1 HocaT KOHBEPTUBUIHUTE 06BP3HULM:

11. NOBAPYBAHA Of1 KYMYBAYU

lNobapysara of kynyBauum BO 3eMjaTa
lMobapyBarsa 0 KynyBain BO CTPAHCTBO
3acTapeHu, COMHUTENHM 1 CopHU nobapyBaksa
BpeaHocHo ycornacysare Ha nobapysara
BkynHo:

12. NAPU4HU CPEACTBA

lMapnyHu cpeacTsa Ha AeHapPCKN CMETKM
MapnyHm cpeacTea BO AeHapcka bnarajHa
[leBn3Ha cmeTka

[eBn3Ha bnarajHa

BkynHo:

TekoBHa roguHa

MpeTxoaHa roguHa

TekoBHa roavHa

I'IpeTxo.qHa roguHa

198.867.994 234.822.341
52.359.735 244.373.874
3.433.530 1.920.601
(3.433.530) (1.920.601)
251.227.729 479.196.215

TekoBHa roauHa

MpeTxoaHa roauHa

512.996.969 352.376.826
- 6.124
1.091.887.233 578.888.459
1.604.884.202 931.271.409
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13. OCHOBHA NMABHWHA

PopoBu Ha akumm  Bo concTBeHOCT Ha Cocrojba
2019 01.01.2019 sronem. Haman. 31.12.2019 %
®uanykm nuua 90.263.305 5,16 90.263.305 5,16
MpaBHu nuua 1.657.466.444 94,84 1.657.466.444 94,84
ObnyHM aKkLmMm
OTKyneHn CONCTBEHM
aKumm
MpvoputeTHn akumn GO
BkynHo 1.747.729.749 100 1.747.729.749 100
2018 01.01.2018 sronem. Haman. 31.12.2018 %
®uanykn nuua 90.263.305 5,16 90.263.305 5,16
MpaBHu nuua 1.657.466.444 94,84 1.657.466.444 94,84
OBuYHM aKumm
OTKyneHn CONCTBEHM
aKuum
MpropuTeTHn akuum OO
BkynHo 1.747.729.749 100 1.747.729.749 100

14. 0ONTOPOYHU OBBPCKU

06BpCKM CO POK Ha AOCTacyBate Hapg 5 rognHu:

Bwva Ha obBpcka:
Bup Ha 06e3benyBarbe:

O6BpckuM cnpema noBp3aHun ApyLUTBa

O6Bpcku koH fobaByBaum

O6BpckuM cnpema noBp3aHW ApyLUTBa N0 OCHOB Ha 3aeMm
OBBpCKK MO OCHOB Ha KpeauTy

O6BpCKM NO OCHOB Ha 3aemu

OcTaHaTti 0onropoyHu 06BpCKN:

BkynHo:
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15. KPATKOPOYHU OBBPCKU CMPEMA IOEABYBAYHU

TekoBHa roavHa

I'IpeTxo.qHa roguHa

[o6aByBaun BO 3emjaTa 272.445.266 300.738.583
[o6aByBauu BO CTPAHCTBO 232.277.065 137.020.182
[o6aByBaun 3a HehakTypupaHn CTOKM 32.338.412 23.136.938
BkynHo: 537.060.743 460.895.703

16. KPATKOPOYHU OBBPCKW MO 3AEMU U KPEOUTU

TekoBHa roavHa

KpaTKOpO‘-IHVI 06BpCKVI Nno 3aemMu 1 KpeauTtun cnpema
noBp3aHu opywTea -

KpaTkopoyHu kpeauTn BO 3emjaTa -
KpaTKopo4HM KpeauTi BO CTPaHCTBO -

I'IpeTxo.qHa roguHa

BkynHo:

17. NPUXOAN oA NMPOAAXBA

TekoBHa roavHa

HpeTxo.qHa rogunHa

Mpuxoau op npopaxba BoO 3emjaTa 3.143.136.325 2.896.204.669
Mpuxoaw of npogaxba BO CTPAHCTBO 1.629.350.750 1.504.665.484
BkynHo: 4.772.487.075 4.400.870.153
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=% CEMENTARNICA
18. OCTAHATM NPUXOAM

Mpuxoan 04 HAEMHUHH
lpuxozu of HannaTeHu oTNHWaKM nobapyeatsa

lMpuxoaym on APXKABHW NOLAPLUKA
BkynHo:

19. OCTAHATI PACXOAOM

TpaHenopTHu yenyru
TpoLuoLi 3a caemu
HaemHuHa

LHeBHWLM 32 cryxGeHN NaTyBatba W NETHA TPOLLIOLM

TpOLIOLM 33 YNEHOBM HA OPraHOT Ha YNpaByBatLe,
Hap30pHUOT ORGOP W 3a YNBHOBUTE HA OCTaHATUT
Opranu

Tpoluouy 3a npoMoLja, Nponaraxaa 1 pexnama
Mpemuu 3a ocurypysarse

BaHkapcku yenyri ¥ TPoLLOLK 33 RnaTeH npoMeT
TpoLuoLu 3a pesusuja

TpOILLIOUY 38 OCTAHETH UHTENEKTYAIHW YCryTv

BpeaHocHo ycornacysaie Ha KpaTKopodHy nobapysara

3arybu op oTylyBatbe Ha HETEKOBHU CpeacTea
OcraHati pacxogu
BikynHo ocTaHaTi onepaTuBHM pacxonu

20. TPAHCAKLIK CO NOBP3AHU APYLUTBA

[lobapysatba no 0CHOB Ha KynonpoAaXKHH OAHOCH

O6BpCKy NO OCHOR Ha KYNONPORAKHW QAHOCH

Mpuxogx oA nposawGa Ha roToBY NPOU3BOAN
I'lpuxo.qu oA npcgqi}kﬁa Ha crorm/

J i

.'I 'ﬁ];

Lelbéimantadia YCJE AfL G
|I|' ll. I

TekoBHa roauHa

20.452.337

20.452.337

TexoBHa roguHa
197.272.860

7.505.478
6.659.591

1.850.850
10.362.289
1.283.388
1.317.510
22.385.428
2.087.875
513.315
30.302.787

281.541.381 '

TeKkoBHa roguHa

39.297.986
107.681.628
561.720.080
327.044.665

21.958.581

MpeTxoaHa roguna
21.958.581

lpeTxofHa roguHa
162.655.873
7.000.721
9.337.755

3.203.750
6.387.752
1.048.960
1.599.710
17.172.649
1853.778
18.586
26,634,935
236.804499

MpetxogHa roavHa
244.058.721
74.696.588
436.520.891
403.707.165
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